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CITY OFFICIALS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Name Title Term Expires
Eric Bookmeyer Mayor 2014
Scott Torngquist Mayor Pro-Tem 2014
Jeff Marsters Council Member 2012
Don Nelsen Council Member 2012
Max Weaver Council Member 2012
Travis Hickey Council Member 2014
Janet Soclherg Council Member 2014
Brent Trout City Administrator/Clerk 2011
Mark Rahm Public Works Director 2011
Kevin Jacobson Director of Finance/Treasurer 2011
Tom Meyer (through 9-2-11) City Attorney/Human Resources Manager 2011
James Locher (effective 9-6-11) Interim City Attorney 2011
James Locher Airport Attorney 2011
Michael Lashbrock Police Chief 2011
Bob Platts Fire Chief 2011
Pamela Myhre Growth Development and Planning Director 2011
William Stangler Operations and Maintenance Manager 2011
William Stangler Parks Manager 2011
Brian Pauly Interim Recreation Manager 2011
Pam Osgood Airport Manager 2011
Edith Blanchard MacNider Museum Directoxr 2011
Mary Markwalter Library Director 2011
Randy Opheim Elmwood Cemetery Manager 2011
Lionel Foster Human Rights Director 2011
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10 First Street Northwest
Masaon City, |1A 50401-3224
(641) 421-3600
www.masoncity.net

January 13, 2012

The Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
city of Mason City, Towa

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the City of Mason City, Iowa for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 (FY11i} is submitted herewith in accordance with the
provisions of Section 384.22 of the Code of Iowa, 1995, as amended, the
recommendations of the Government Finance Officers Association and in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

The comprehensive annual financial report is presented in four sections:
introductory, financial, statistical and compliance. The introductory section
inecludes a table of contenkts, a list of city Officials, the organizational chart,
this transmittal letter, and a copy of the Certificate of Achievement for
Excellence in Financial Reporting earnmed for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010.
The financial section includes management'’s discussion and analysis, the basic
financial statements, and nonmajor funds and other schedules for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2011, as well as the independent auditors' report on the finmancial
etatements and schedules. The statistical section includes selected financial and
demographic information, generally presented on a multi-year basis. The compliance
section encompasses reguirements related to the single audit, various federal and
state grants, and statutory and requlatory compliance

This report was prepared by the City's Department of Finance. Responsibility for
both the accuracy of the presented data and the completeness and falrmess of the
presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the City. We believe the data,
as presented, is accurate in all material aspects; that it is presented in a manner
designed to fairly set forth the financial position and results of operations of
the City as measured by the financial activity of its various funds; and that all
disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain the maximum understanding of the
City's financial affairs have been included.

GAAP require that wmanagement provides a narrative introduction, overview, and
analysis to accompany the hasic financial statements in the form of Management’s
Discussion and Analysis (MD&R). Thisg letter of transmittal is designed to
complement MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The City of Mason
City's MD&A can be found immediately following the xeport of the independent
auditors.

GOVERNMENTAL STRUCTURE

The City of Mason City operates under the Mayor/Council form of government with six
City Council wmembers, four of which are elected from wards and two elected at-
large. The Mayor is elected at large for a four-year term. The City Council is
elected to four-year terms. Three Council seats are up for election every two
years. The City Administrator reports to the City Council. Ten City departments
are under the direction of the City Administrator. The City Attorney is under the
direction of the City Counecil and six departments are under the direction of a
board or commission. The Mayor and Council appoint members of the Airport, Mason
City Housing Authority and Youth Task Force Commissions and the Library, Cemetery
and Museum Boards.

- Y -
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Departments include City Clerk, Growth Development and Planning, Engineering,
Finance, Fire, Human Resources, Operations and Maintenance, Parks, Recreation and
Police. The Neighborhood Services Division oversees Transit, Health, Inspections
and Animal Control services. The City owns the Mason City Public Library, the
Highland Park Golf Course and the Mason City Municipal Airport.

ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK

The City’s Growth Development & Planning Department continues its planning and
economic development efforts to spur development and redevelcopment in the community
in accordance with the City’s Comprehensive Plan and city Council goals.
Development activities are focused on both downtown and the community’'s industrial
parks. The June B, 2008 flood event in the community continues - 3 years later -
to focus the department’'s efforts on residential property buyouts and demolition
activities. A Buyout Administrator assists in this effort. Over 160 houses will
be purchased and either demolished or moved, and the land will become permanent
public open space. Approximately 145 homes have been purchased to date. Habitat
for Humanity has partnered with the City to salvage materials from the houses for
resale in their ReStore. Fortunately, the business and industrial areas of the
community suffered limited flood losses.

The City continues to work with the Mason City Economic Development Corporation
(MCEDC}, a non-profit public-private organization, and their sister organization,
the North Towa Corridor Economic Development Corporation (NICEDC), to promote and
facilitate job creation and capital investment in the Mason (ity area. The NICEDC
is a new, county-wide economic development corporation that has merged the assets
and efforts of Mason City, Clear Lake and Cerro Gordo County to market the entire
county, assist local industries and attract new capital investment and jobs.

NICEDC is partially funded by the City to serve as the City's economic development
marketing and recruitment arm. They work with prospects, maintain a database of
available buildings and sites in a 7-county region and partner with numerous local,
state and national organizations to market and recruit business to North Iowa. Key
industries targeted by NICEDC are wind energy, value-added agriculture and food
processing, and warehousing.

Accomplishments for the past fiscal year include:

. New marketing and promotional materials created.

" Tndustrial park initiatives along the Avernue of the Saints and I-35 corridor,
including new signage.

Ll Hosted IDED-generated prospect visits to buildings and sites in the community,
with the City offering public financial incentive packages.

* TLeading effort to revisit HNTB corridor study regarding land use and economic
opportunities along Hwy 122 between Mason City and Clear Lake.

Mason City, with its transportation network of interstate, four-lane highways,
airport and rail service, a regional workforce, low property tax rates, excellent
education system and community college, top notch hospital and health care,
regional retail center, regiomal cultural and recreational amenities and the
willingness to use public financial incentives to assist quality job retention and
creation, remains a competitive force for economic development in north central
Towa.
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EXPANDED AND NEW INDUSTRIES (7/1/10-6/30/11)

The valuation of expanded industrial development totaled approximately $3,023,365
while new or expanded commercial and industrial development together totaled
$17,725,976. The Cargill Kitchen Solutions project was the front-runner for
industrial development. The commercial sector experienced development of five new
structures (Holiday Inn Express, Ruby Tuesday's, YMH Torrance, North TIowa Power
Lifting, and McDonalds) in addition to over 68 expansions, remodeling or
improvement projects. Major developments in our commercial sector were the
construction projects for Hy-Vee for 44,500,000, Coca Cola for 5333,245, Spee-Dee
Delivery for $322,240, Mason City Honda for £213,132, Stone Creek Partners for
$243,004, Pizza Hut for $136,000, and Rue 21 for $120,000.

Other commercial and industrial ventures such as Mercy Medical Center, Vi-Cor, Soy
Energy, Golden Grain, Burger King, Bliss Bridal, Chops/Eleven, State Street Deli,
NIACC Emergency Service Fire Training faeility, MecCloskey BAppliance and Hogan
Hanson Accountants also engaged in physical additions and/or renmovations to their
current facilities. Zeveral of the above listed businesses opened for business
during the vyear, while others either completed or started remodeling and/or
expansion projects. The City of Mason City saw a remodel project for the Public
Library completed during this period as well as a $1,170,800 storage building at
the Street Dept. Also, there were renovations to John Adams and Mason City High
Schools totaling $14,821,557.

DOWNTOWN

The City has successfully completed a $2.6 million Federal Avenue and Plaza
streetscape renovation with over 51.3 million in new underground utility
improvements. The project has had a major impact on the face of downtown and
highlights the $18 million restoration of the Frank Lloyd Wright desigmed Park Inn
Hotel/City National Bank buildings into the new Historic Park Inn Hotel, the last
remaining FLW designed and built hotel in. the world. The City alsc provided a
$600,000 parking solution for the hotel project.

The City has continued to work with Main Street Mason City (MSMC) to stabilize and
enhance the Downtown area. The MSMC organization and its many volunteers provide a

program that includes business improvement, promotions/events/marketing and design
(appearance) improvements in the downtown, including the following:

» Over $2 million in private investment tracked in past year.

» Conducted promotional events including ValenWine, the Friday Night Live summex
concert series and Home for the Holidays.

» Completed a Real Estate and Retail Market Enalysis of the downtown.

* Organized and facilitated, for the 3™ year, the new downtown Mason City Market,
a Saturday morning farmers' market in Central Park.

* Agreed to manage a $500,000 CDBG grant received by the City to rehab 14 building
facades in the downtown.

» partnered with local banks to make $5 million available to downtown businesses
for building and business improvements.

s Aggists City in management of a $5150,000 low-interest revolving loan fund for
building improvements in the downtown TIF district.

» Continued recognition as a Natiomal Main Street Community.

HOUSING

Housing construction for Fiscal Year 2011 included 16 single-family dwellings, and
one duplex {(two units}, for a total of 18 new housing units. The number of gingle
family dwelling units built is lower than that of previous years. 46% single-family
dwellings were demolished. After reducing the number of housing units built by the
number demolished, the net loss for housing in FY1l totals 28 dwelling unita for
the community. :

* 38 of these demolitions were due to the flood of 2008
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TRAFFIC

In 2011, the Mason City Engineering Department completed the following
transportation improvement projects throughout Mason City. The purpose of these
types of projects is to expand the street system, increase safety, and to restore a
safer driving surface for motorists.

The 19" Street SW Railroad Overpass Project included the construction of a railroad
overpass bridge, 630 feet in length and 62 feet wide. In addition, bridge approach
pavement on 19th gtreet SW totaled 1245 feet of 4-lane pavement. The project also
inciuded an extension of South Polk Avenue, a 31 foot wide paved street extending
south from 19 Street S5W approximately 300 feet.

The South Monroe Avenue Street Improvements Project included widening of the
existing pavement between 15t Street SW to 19%" Street SW. The widening of this
gection of roadway has added a center turn lane, curb and gutter and included new
traffic sigmals at 19" Street SW.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

For financial reporting purposes, in conformance with Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 14 The Financial Reporting Entity, the City
includes all funds, organizations, agencies, boards, commissions, and authorities
that are finaneially accountable to the City.

Single Audit: As a recipient of federal, state and county financial assistance, the
City alsc is responsible for ensuring that an adequate internal control structure
is in place to ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations related to
those programs. This internal control structure is subject to periodic evaluation
by management and the internal audit staff of the City. '

As a part of the City's single audit, described gearlier, tests are made to
determine the adequacy of the intermal control structure, including that portion
related to federal financial assistance programs, as well as to determine that the
City has complied with applicable laws and requlations. The results of the City's
gsingle audit for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 provided instances of material
weakness in the intermal control structure.

Budgetary Controls: In addition, the City maintains budgetary controls. The
cbjective of these budgetary controls is to ensure rompliance with legal provisions
embodied in the annual appropriated budget approved by the City's governing body.
Activities of all funds are included in the annual appropriated budget. The legal
level of control for budgetary purposes for all funds as set by Towa law 1s at the
program level.

As demonstrated by the statements and schedules included in the financial section
of this report, the City continues to meet its responsibility for sound financial
management. As with the financial section, all amounts presented in the remainder
of this letter are expressed in whole dollars.

General Covernmental Functions: The following schedule presents a summary of
general fund, special revenue fund and debt service fund revemues for the figecal
year ended June 340, 2011.

Percent

Revenues Amournt of Total

Taxes $16,587,221 50.15%
Liicenses and Permits 627,128 1.90
Intergovernmental 13,348,253 40.36
Service Revenues 860,768 2.60
Fines and Forfeitures B1,31%7 0.24
Usze of Monies and Properties 568,186 1.73
Special Assessments 9,245 0.03
Miscellaneous 082,251 2.97
Refunds 7,984 0.02
Total 533,073,353 100.00%
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The following schedule presents a summary of general fund, special revenue fund and
debt service fund expenditures for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011.

Percent
Expenditures Amount of Total
Public Safety $ 8,744,332 21.14%
Public Works 3,228,134 7.80
Health and Sccial Services 787,650 1.90
culture and Recreation 2,906,913 7.03
Community & Economic Development 12,624,763 30.52
General Government 2,113,201 5.11
Capital Projects 7,311,577 17.68
Debt Service 3,637,109 g.82
Total 541,353,679 100.00%

GENERAL FUND BALANCE

The General Fund closed the FYll with a fund balance of %7,056,782 compared to
58,525,858 on June 30, 2010. This was due to a $1,469,076 decrease of revenues
over expenditures for FY11.

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

The Enterprise Funds of the City include the following:

1. Cemetery Pund - Operating revenues were $91,746 in FY1ll, an increase of
5.4% from FY10. Operating expenses were §$303,340 in FY1l, an increase of
2.2% from FY10. Net income was ${2,B846) in FY11, a 38.9% increase from FY10.

2., Waterworks Fund - Operating revenues were $5,238,573 in FY1ll, an increase of
5.2% from FY1.0. Operating expenses were $4,6189,555 in FY¥il, a decrease of
0.6% from FY1O0. Net income was 5750,494 in FY1l, a 1,252.9% increase from
FY10.

3. Sewer Rental Fund - Operating revenues were $4,656,1339 in FY11, an increase of
8.2% from FY10. Operating expenses were §2,308,110 in FY1l, an increase of
0.1% from FY10. Net income was §2,048,882 in FYll, a 73.4% increase from FY10.

4. Parking Lots Fund - Operating revenues were 559,450 in FY1l, an increase of
19.5% from FY1O0. Operating expenses were $125,386 in FY1l, a decrease of
6.5% from FYL10. Net income was $27,037 in FY1l1l, a 44.2% increase from FY10.

5. Storm Sewer Fund - Operating revenues were $283,112 in FY¥1l, a decrease of 1.5%
From FY10. Operating expenses were 179,709 in FY¥1ll, an increase of 7.0% from
FY10. Net income was $94,145 in FY1l, a 12.5% decrease from FYi0.

€. 8olid Waste Fund - Operating revenues were $1,205,672 in FY1l, a decrease of
1.7% from FY10. Operating expenses were §1,270,154 in FYll, an increase of
3.2% from FY10. Net income was $(62,832) in FY11l, a 33.9% increase from FY10.

7. Golf Course Fund - Operating revenues were $400,967 in FY1l, a decrease of
8.5% from FY10. Operating expenses were £470,349 in FY1ll, an increase of
3.8% from FYL0. Net income was §{43,145) in Fyll, a 338.5% decrease from FY10.

8. Ambulance Fund - Operating revenues were $1,546,875 in FY¥1l1l, an increase of
5.5% from FY10. Operating expenses were §$1,533,340 in FYlli, an increase of
23.5% from FY10. Net income was 526,041 in FY1l, a decrease of 89.4% from
FY10.

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

The Central Services Internal Service Fund is used to account for the costs of the
centralized service operations, and the Employee Health Care Fund is used to
account for the payment of health insurance costs and the reimbursement of
employee's portion of costs. '
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS

Fiduciary Funds are established to account for assets held by the governmental
units in a trustee capacity or as an agent for individuals, private organizations,
other governmental units, and/or other funds.

DEBT ADMINISTRATION

The ratio of net bonded debt to assessed valuation and the amount of bonded debt
per capita are useful indicators of the City's debt position to management,
citizens, and investors. The following shows this information as of June 30, 2011:

RATTOS
Debt to Debt per
Amount Assesged Value Capita
Net Bonded Debt §33,089,047 2.86% $1,178.43

The City issued $6,775,000 of General Obligation bonds and notes during the year as
part of the streetscape project and various public works and utility-related
projects.

CASH MANAGEMENT

Cash temporarily idle during the year was invested in demand deposits, certificates
of deposit, and obligations of the U. §. Treasury. Police and Fire Retirement
Special Revenue funds investment portfolic also included mutual fund accounts with
Wells Fargo. The City earned interest revenue of %365,972 on all investments for
the year ended June 30, 2011.

For the fiscal periods ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, interest income was as
follows:

Fund Type June 30, 2011 June 30, 2010
General Fund S 40,987 $127,232
Special Revenue Funds 252,631 254,043
Capital Projects Funds 2,947 5,948
Enterprise Funds 17,535 36,151
Permanent Funds 30,946 40,471
Debt Service Funds 3,471 7,821
Fiduciary Funds 7 76
Internal Service Funds 17,448 21,177

Total Interest Earned 5365,972 ' §492,919

The decrease in earnings on idle funds invested for the year ending Juune 30, 2011
was due to the decrease in rate of return on invested funds.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The City has a Safety Loss Control Program for the purpose of providing a safe and
healthy workplace for its employees. Also, the City has a Fleet Safety policy for
the purpose of promoting safe driving by the municipal employees. As part of these
comprehensive plans, the City has regular safety training meetings to instruct
employees im wvarious risk control techniques, as well as accident prevention
training. Tnsurance coverage is currently maintained for workers compensation
¢léims greater than-$300 and other potential losses.

FINANCIAL POLICIES AND LONG-TERM FINANCIAL PLANNING

The City Council has adopted budget and fiscal policies. For the City's General
Fund, the fund balance policy strives to maintain an unassigned general fund
balance no less than &5,000,000. These funds are necessary to meet cash flow needs
during the initial months of the new figscal year as property tax revenue, the
primary source of funding for general operations, is collected semi-annually with
the vast majority of those taxes remitted to the Ccity in the months of October and
April. Fund balance policies are also set for Road Use Tax, LOST, Water, Sewer and
Sanitation. During FY 2011, the City met all fund balance policies.
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As a guideline for the budget process the City uses the established financial and
budget policies which are reviewed and adopted anmnually by the City Council in
connection with the budget process. Some of the goals of the financial poliecies
include preserving capital through prudent budgeting and financial management,
achieving a stable balance between the City's ongoing financial commitments and the
continuing revenues available to the city, and to leverage local dollars with
Federal and State funding grants. These finmancial policies ensure the City has
appropriately recoxrded and accounted for transactions in our financial statements.

The City's adopted financial and budget policies generally provide for the City to
use unrestricted cash reserves, not to exceed 5% of the projected year-end level,
to keep the tax levy rate from increasing in the next fiscal year. Reserve use
greater than 5% will need City Council approval. For fiscal year 2012, the City
used approximately $200,000 of General Fund reserves to maintain the General Fund

levy.

The City Council also adopted Debt Service, Investment and Fund Transfer policies.

OTHER INFORMATION

Independent Audit: The Code of Iowa requires an annual audit be made of the
financial condition and transactions of all administrative departments of the City
by the State Auditor or by a Certified Public Accountant selected by the City
Council. The audit for FY1ll was made by Kronlage & Olson, P.C., Certified Public

Accountants. Their opinion has been included in this report.

Awards: The Govermment Finance Officers Association of the United States and
Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial
Reporting to the City of Mason City, Iowa, for its Comprehensive Annual Financial
Report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010. This was the twenty-fifth
consecutive year that the government has achieved this prestigious award. The City
of Mason City was one of only approximately 20 Iowa cities to receive the award foxr
this fiscal year.

Tn order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a governmental wunit must
publish an easily readable and efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial
report, whose contents conform to program atandards. This report must satisfy both
generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe
our current comprehensive annual financial report continues to meet the Certificate
of Achievement Program requirements, and we are submitting it to the GFOA to
determine its eligibility for another certificate.

Acknowledgments: Preparation of this report could not have been accomplished
without the professional, efficient, and dedicated services of the entire staff of
the Department of Finance and the various department heads and employees who
agsisted and contributed to its preparation. We wish to thank each one of you for
your interest and support in planning and conducting the financial operations of
the City in a responsible and progressive manner.

Respectfully submitted,

s

Kevin E. Jacobson
Director of Finance
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im0 e INDEPENDENT. AUDITOR'S REPORT '

'jTo the Honorable Mayor and -
Membere of the City Counc1l
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our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial
statements that collectively comprise the City of Mason City, Iowa's basic
financial statements. The combining and individual nomnmajor fund £inancial
statements and other schedules listed in the table of contents as supplementary
information, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a
required part of the basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of
expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as
required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States,
Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and is also not a required part of
the basic financial statements of the City of Mason City, Iowa. The combining and
individual nonmajor fund financial statements and the schedule of expenditures of
federal awards have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all
material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

The accompanying introductory and statistical sections, as listed in the table of
contents are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a recuired
part of the basic financial statements. This information has not been subjected to

the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and,
accordingly, we express no opinion om it.

Piﬁ*“ALﬂFL‘ é O y L.

January 13, 2012
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City of Mason City, Iowa
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

As management of the City of Mason City, we offer the readers of the City of Mason City’s financial
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City of Mason City for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here
in conjunction with additional information that we have furnished in our letter of transmittal, which can
be found on pages v-xi of this report. Professional standards require the inclusion of certain
comparative information in the Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A).

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

» The assets of the City of Mason City exceeded its liabilities at the close of June 30, 2011, by
$146.30 million (net assets). Of this amount, $25.57 million (unrestricted net assets) may be
used to meet the government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

> The government’s total net assets increased by $11.79 million.

> At the close of the current fiscal year, the City of Mason City’s governmental funds reported
combined ending fund balances of $19.77 million, a decrease of 1.7% as compared to the prior
fiscal year.

> At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the general fund was $5.125
million, or 27.54% of the total general fund expenditures. .

> Total debt increased by $1,776,000 (3.0%) during the current fiscal year. The City issued $7.1
million of new bonds and retired $5.32 million of existing bonds.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the City of Mason City’s basic
financial statements. The City of Mason City’s basic financial statements are comprised of three
components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the
financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic
financial statements themselves.

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the
City of Mason City’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the City of Mason City’s assets and liabilities,
with the difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net
assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City of Mason City is
improving or deteriorating. '
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The statement of activities presents information showing how the government’s net assets changed
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event
giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and
expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal
periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City of Mason City that
are principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other
functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and
charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of the City of Mason City include
general government, police and fire protection, parks and recreation oriented activities, library services,
museum services, airport, cemetery services, and street operations and maintenance. The major
business-type activities of the City include the water and wastewater treatment facilities, storm sewer
system, solid waste management collection, ambulance service, parking lots and the golf course. The
City’s two component units, the Museum Foundation and the Mason City Housing Authority are
included. Financial information for the foundation is included with governmental special revenue
funds, while the housing authority is shown separately as a component unit,

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 13-16 of this report.
Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been
segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City of Mason City, like other state and local
governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements. All of the funds of the City of Mason City can be divided into three categories:
governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental Funds

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental
activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial
statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of
spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal
year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By
doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing
decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison
between governmental funds and governmental activities.



o

The City of Mason City maintains 27 individual governmental funds. Information is presented
separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the General Fund, HMGP Voluntary Acquisition Fund
and Road Use Tax Fund, which are considered as major funds. Data from the other governmental funds
are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these non-major
governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report.

The City of Mason City adopts an annual appropriated budget for its governmental funds. A budgetary
comparison statement has been provided for all of these funds to demonstrate compliance with the

approved budget.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 17-28 of this report.

- Proprietary Funds

The City of Mason City maintains two different types of proprietary funds. Enterprise funds are used to
report the same functions presented as business type activities in the government-wide financial
statements. The City uses enterprise funds to account for its Water and Sanitary Sewer funds. All
other business type funds are combined into one non-major business type fund. Internal service funds
are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the City’s various
functions. The City of Mason City uses internal service funds to account for its maintenance functions
and employee health care trust, Because these services predominately benefit governmental rather than
business type functions, they have been included within the governmental activities in the
government-wide financial statements.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as government-wide financial statements, only
in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for the Water
Treatment and Sanitary Sewer as these are considered major funds of the City. Data from the other six
enterprise funds are combined into a single aggregate presentation. Individual fund data for each of the
non-major enterprise funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report.
The basic proprietary financial statements can be found on pages 29-38 of this report.

Fiduciary Funds

Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the government.
Fiduciary funds are not reflected on the government-wide financial statements because the resources of
those funds are not available to support the City of Mason City’s own programs. The accounting used
for fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds. The basic fiduciary funds financial
statements can be found on pages 39-40 of this report.

Notes to the Financial Statements
The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in

the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found
on pages 41-66 of this report.
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Government-wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial
position. In the case of the City of Mason City, assets exceeded liabilities by $146,304,437 at the close
of the most recent fiscal year.

By far the largest portion of the City of Mason City’s net assets (79.8%) reflects its investment in capital
assets (e.g., land, buildings, infrastructure, machinery, and equipment); less any related outstanding debt
used to acquire those assets. The City of Mason City uses these capital assets to provide services to
citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending.

Although the City of Mason City’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it
should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since
the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

The following two tables present eondensed financial information on the City’s Net Assets and Changes
in Net Assets for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2011 and June 30, 2010.

City of Mason City’s Net Assets

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010

Current & other assets $ 40451919 § 40,159,058 $§ 945,046 $ 8050330 § 49902965 § 48,209,388
Capital assets 104,201,664 01,640,879 72297911 72,705,221 176,499,575 164,346,100

Total assets 144,653,583 131,799,937 81,748,957 80,755,551 226,402,540 212,555,488
Long-term fiabilities outstanding 24,138,588 21,269,337 30,235,184 31,710,904 34.373,772 52,980,241
Other liabilites 21,391,315 20172309 4,333,016 4,578,367 25,724,331 24,750,676

Total liabilites 45,529,903 41,441,646 34,568,200 36,289,271 80,098,103 77730917
Net Assets:
Invested in capital assets, net 77367493 67,769,666 39,361,650 38,361,919 116,729,143 106,131,585

ofrelated debt

Restricted 1,142,649 1,200,538 2,866,908 2,853,334 4,009,617 4,053,872
Unrestricted 20,613,538 21,388,087 4,952,139 3,251,027 25,565,677 24,639,114
Total $ 99123680 § 90358291 $ 47,180,757 § 44466280 § 146304437 § 134824571

A portion of the City of Mason City’s net assets (2. 7%) represents resources that are subject to external
restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net assets (825,565,677)
may be used to meet the government’s ongoing obligation to citizens and creditors.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Mason City is able to report positive balances in all
three categories of net assets, both for governmental as a whole, as well as separate governmental and
business-type activities. As projects are finalized and closed, the majority are financed through the
issuance of bonds, which are then repaid through the debt service levy or tax-increment financing.



There was a decrease of $774,549 in unrestricted net assets for the City of Mason City’s governmental
activities. The decrease in governmental activities is due to the previously issued bonds for the Library
project being spent in fiscal year 2011,

The government’s net assets increased by $11,796,866 for the current fiscal year. Most of the increase

was due to the Sewage Treatment Plant expansion, the Downtown Streetscape project, the Delaware

Bridge replacement and the Street department storage building. New capital grants used for various
sireet and sewer projects also contributed to the increase in net assets.

City of Mason City Change in Net Assets

Gmernmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010

Revenues:

Charges for services 5 1,586677 $ 1,715593 § 13542357 § 12896588 § 15123234 § 14612181

QOperating grants & contributions 3,748,874 2,380,822 619,206 188,313 4,368,080 2,569,135

Capital grants & contributions 10,109,341 7,737,713 914,735 206,190 11,024,076 7,943,903
General Revenues:

Taxes 19,080,199 20,180,309 113,087 112,825 19,194,186 20,293,134

Investment eamings 596,673 1,068,587 81,894 133,399 678,567 1,201,986

Miscellanecus 645,710 32,770 96,638 93,300 742,348 126,070

Total revenues 35,767,474 33,115,794 15,369,017 13,630,613 51,136491 46,746,409

Expenses:

Public safety 0,402,887 8,897,795 - - 9,402,887 8,897,795

Public works 7,450,233 6,910,495 - - 7,450,233 6,910495

Health & social servies B0B916 719,197 - - 808,916 779,197

Qulture & recreation 3,503,976 3,475,535 - - 3,503,976 3,475,535

Community & econ development 2,252.333 2,368,084 - - 2752333 2,368,084

General government 2,176,829 2,593,594 - - 2.176,820 2,593,594

Interest on debt 1,053,911 987,814 - - 1,033,911 087,814

Water - - 5,218,343 5,244,979 5,218,343 5,244,979

Sewer - - 3,505,748 3,473,401 3,505,743 - 3,473,401

Other - - 3,966,449 3,581,816 3,966,449 3,581,816

Total expenses 26,649,085 26,012,514 12,690,540 12,300,196 39,339,625 38,312,710

Increase in net assets before transfers 9,118,389 7,103,280 2678477 1,330,419 11,796,866 8,433,659
Transfars {36,000) {3,749 36,000 3,749 - -
Increase in net assets 9,082,389 7,009,531 2714477 1,334,168 11,796,866 8,433,699
Net assets 7-1-2010 (as restated) 00,041,291 B3,258,760 44,466,280 43,132,112 134,527,571 126,390,872
Net assets 6-30-2011 $ 99123680 § 90358291 § 47,180,757 § 44466280 § 146304437 § 134,824,571




Governmental Activities

The governmental activities’ net assets for the City of Mason City increased by $9,082,389 during the
current fiscal year, accounting for 76.35% of the total increase in the net assets of the City of Mason
City. The majority of the increase in the net assets is a result of the Downtown Streetscape project,
street construction and park improvements.

Business-type Activities

Total net assets increased by $2,714,477 for fiscal year 2011, accounting for 23.65% of the total
growth in the City of Mason City’s net assets. The increase is due to the City continuing upgrades of
the water and sanitary sewer system and completing the Sewage Treatment expansion project,

Charges for services for business-type activities increased 5.0%. There were no utility rate increases
for fiscal year 2011. However, ambulance fees and golf fees were increased 5% and 3%, respectively,
on July 1, 2011.

Operating expenses for business type activities increased by 3.2%. Expenses in the Water fund
decreased by 0.5% while Sewer expenses increased by 0.9%. The other business type expenses
increased by 10.7%. Water and Sewer expense were held relatively in check due to decreases in
staffing levels. The increase in all other business type activities was due directly to the increase in
operating costs such as wage adjustments and insurance premiums the City pays.

Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds

As noted earlier, the City of Mason City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance
with finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental Funds

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental
activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial
statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of
spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year.
Such information may be useful in evaluating a government’s near term financing requirements. In
particular, unreserved fund balance serves as a useful measure of a government’s net resources available
for spending during the fiscal year.

In fiscal year 2011, the City adopted GASB Statement No. 54 Fund Balance Reporting and
Governmental Fund Type Definitions. The initial distinction that is made in reporting fund balance
information is identifying amounts that are considered nonspendable, such as fund balance associated
with inventories and prepaid expenses. The Statement also provides for additional classification as
restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned based on the relative strength of the constraints that
control how specific amounts can be spent,



As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Mason City’s governmental funds reported
combined ending fund balances of $19,768,128, a decrease of $341,209 in comparison with the prior
year. The decrease is due to the delay in receiving federal grant funds for the flood buyout project in
the HMGP fund which started in 2009. The fund balance has been reserved to indicate the amount not
available for new spending because it has already been committed 1) nonspendable for endowment
principal and prepaid expenses ($784,991); 2) restricted purposes such as streets, employee benefits,
parks, museum, cemetery and tort lability ($13,394,439); and 3) assigned purposes such as Airport,
Museum, Library and recreation ($1,854,856).

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City of Mason City. At the end of the current fiscal
year, unassigned fund balance of the General Fund was $5,125,768 while total fund balance reached
$7.056,782. As a measure of the General Fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unassigned
fund balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures. Unassigned fund balance represents
27.54% of total General Fund expenditures, while total fund balance represents 37.92% of that same
amount.

The General Fund balance decreased by $1,496,076. Major factors in this increase are as follows:

» The remaining bond proceeds were spent on the Library renovation project during the fiscal
year.

» The HMGP fund continues to have expenses for the flooded home buyout. The City pays these
expenses and then has grant requests for reimbursement to cover the costs, but those requests
have been delayed at the state level.

The debt service fund has a total negative fund balance of $121,160. The net decrease of $182,791 in
fund balance during the current year in the debt service fund is due to a transfer out of Debt Service
funds from a prior overpayment by the proprietary funds. The General Fund will transfer the necessary
funds into the Debt Service Fund to eliminate the deficit balance during the next fiscal year

During the fiscal year, the City of Mason City issued bonds for the following projects:

> $2,725,000 General Obligation bonds for Fire equipment, Airport firefighter facility, Street
improvements, Cemetery equipment and Water equipment.
> $4,050,000 General Obligation bonds for the Downtown Streetscape project.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 17-28.
Proprietary Funds

The City of Mason City’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the
government-wide financial statements, but in more detail.

Unrestricted net assets of the proprietary funds at the end of the year amounted to $6,281,429. Water
reported an increase in net assets of $625,944 and Sewer reported an increase of $1,111,463.

Rates remained the same for Water and Sewer. The increase in unrestricted net assets was due to an
increase in collection awareness for delinquent accounts. Also, outstanding grant requests were
received during the fiscal year.



The Capital Improvements Plan identifies and quantifies capital needs for the next several years. Rates in
all proprietary funds are anticipated to rise as capital projects are scheduled to begin construction in the next
few years.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Differences between original and final budget amounted to $914,629 and the significant items are
summarized as follows: :

Public safety expenses for overtime, Chapter 411 medical cost and office expense were
increased by $225,000.

Health and Social Services was increased by $2350,000 for Youth Task Force activities
originally not budgeted but funded through new state grants.

Culture and Recreation increased by $188,000. for additional supplies and equipment used in
Parks, Recreation and Library services.

Community and Economic Development increased by $113,000 for tax incentives for a new
development that began operation in FY 2011.

Y ¥V VYV Vv

The variance between the amended budget and actual was due mainly to the additional expenses with
public safety overtime and additional grant funds received and spent on social services activities as well
as a tax rebate to a new development that began operations during the fiscal year.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration
Capital Assets

The City of Mason City’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business type activities
as of June 30, 2011, amounts to $176,499,575 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in
capital assets includes land, construction in progress, buildings, improvements, machinery and
equipment, and infrastructure.

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following:

> Street construction projects including the Downtown Streetscape project as well as
rehabilitation and intersection improvements were completed.

The Delaware Avenue Bridge was removed and a new bridge was built in its place.

The Airport completed a rescue and firefighter facility.

Several parks enhancements including the Prairie Playground and East Park Band Shell
rehabilitation projects were completed.

Water main reroutes were completed.

The inflow and infiltration project continues to update the sewer mfrastructure

YV VVY
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City of Mason City’s Capital Assets
(net of depreciation)

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
Land $ 2634356 § 2634356 § 4823362 5 4823362 § 7457718 § 7457718
Buildings & Structures 3,850,084 4,086,965 12,575,793 12,960.417 16,425,877 17,047,382
Other Improverments 18,846,580 19,221,271 188,449 214,478 19,035,029 19,435,749
Machinery & Equip 2,279,862 2,366,365 1,067,460 1,156,247 3,347,322 3,522,612
Vehicles 2297622 2310,667 1,359,137 1,374,447 3,657,059 3,685,114
Infrastructure 45,664,988 47,593,944 - 48,883,746 37,449,508 94,548,734 85,043,452
Const in Progress 28,627,872 13,427,311 3,359,964 14,726,762 32,027,836 28,154,073
Total $ 104,201,664 § 91,640,879 § 72297911 § 72705221 § 176499575 § 164,346,100

Additional information on the City of Mason City’s capital assets can be found in note 7 on pages 53-
54 of this report.

Long-Term Debt

The amount of debt outstanding at fiscal year end was $59.80 million as compared to $58.03 million
last fiscal year. The increase is a result of new debt issued for the street, water and sewer consiruction
projects. Of the total general obligation debt outstanding, $25.63 million is backed by the full faith and
credit of the City. The remainder is either general obligation debt abated by enterprise revenues or
revenue bonds secured solely by specified revenue sources, namely tax increment revenues, water or
SEWET revenues.

City of Mason City’s Outstanding Debt

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
General obligation $25,634,320  §22279,824  § 7,333,567 § 7,197,024 $32,967,887 $29,476,848
Revenue bonds 1,233,400 1404,774 25,602,694 27,146,278 26,836,004 28,551,052
Total $26,867,720 $23,684,508  $32,936,261  $34,343,302  $59,803,981  $38,027,500

Moody’s Investor Services continues to rate the City’s General Obligation Bonds Aa2,

For more detailed information on the City’s debt and amortization terms, please refer to Notes to the
Financial Statements on page 57.

State statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt a governmental entity may issue to 5% of its
total assessed valuation. The current debt limitation for the City of Mason City is $82,847,356 and the
City of Mason City is currently at $39,918,400 or 48.18% of our outstanding general obligation debt.
As a comparison, the legal debt limit was $80,068,604 and Mason City had issued $30,524,732 or
38.12% of its legal debt capacity for the previous fiscal year.
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Additional information on the City of Mason City’s long-term debt can be found in Note 10 on pages
57-60 of this report.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budget and Rates

» The national average unemployment for June 2011 is 9.2%. The unemployment level for June
2010 was 9.5%. Cerro Gordo County’s rate for June 2011 is 6.2%, and the state’s rate is 6.0%.

» The hourly wage rate in Cerro Gordo County averaged $15.85 for 2010 and $16.30 for 4th
quarter 2011,

» Retail sales in Cerro Gordo County were $643 million for fiscal year ending 2010, slightly
down from 667 million in fiscal year 2009 and $651 million in fiscal year 2008.

> The total value of building permits for fiscal year 2011 was approximately $51.96 million. This
compares with an amount of $31.4 million for fiscal year 2010,

Next Year’s Budget and Rates

For FY 2012, department managers were again instructed to minimize any changes in budget in
anticipation of stagnant revenues. However, certain costs such as payroll, insurance and utilities are
anticipated to increase. Approximately 72% of our operating costs in the General Fund are for personal
services, including wages and benefits. Changes in personal services can be due to changes in the pay
rates, changes in benefits, changes in the number of employees, or any combination of these.

The City is planning to increase the amount of spending on improvements for water and sewer
infrastructure as well as to continue spending on street improvements. There are anticipated increases
in fees for water, sewer and sanitation being projected for FY 2013. There are several capital projects
currently under consideration for the FY 2013 budget. The capital projects will be funded with General
Obligation bonds, existing fund balances or new revenues from sales tax, road use tax, water and sewer
charges for FY 2013. With the projected increases, the combined water, sewer, storm sewer and
sanitation rates will again be slightly above the midpoint of surveyed cities in Jowa that provide similar
services.

Financial Information Contact

The City’s financial statements are designed to present users (citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors,
and creditors) with a general overview of the City’s finances and to demonstrate the. City’s
accountability. If you have questions about the report or need additional financial information, please
contact Kevin E. Jacobson, Finance Director, City of Mason City, 10 1% Street N.W., Mason City, [owa
50401.
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CITY OF MASON CITY,

IOWA

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

ASSETS:
Current assets:
Cash
Investments
Receivables:
- Taxes
Special assessments
Accounts (net)
Accrued interest
Notes
Internal balances
Due from other governments
Prepaid imsurance
Inventory
Deferred charges
Total current assets
Noncurrent assets:
Restricted assets:
Cash
Investments
Receivables
Notes receivable
Special assessments
Capital aesets:
Land and construction in
progress
Other capital assets net of
depreciation
Total noncurrent assets
Total assets

LIABILITIES:
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Salaries payable
Contractse payable
BAccrued compensated absences
Accrued interest payable
Due to other governments
Due to customers
Unearned revenue
Prepald interments
current portion of long-term
debt:
Bonds payable

. Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Bonds payable
Net OPEB cbhligation
Total noncurrent
liabilities
Total liabilities

JUNE 30,

2011

EXHIBIT 1

Primary Government

Governmental Busineas-Type Component
Activities Activities Total Unit

$ 10,016,295 & 984,868 $ 11,001,163 368,468

11,941,659 3,175,047 15,116,706 -

13,487,053 116,442 13,603,485 -

162,963 21,338 184,301 -

55,760 1,867,844 1,823,604 2,758

17,040 2,189 15,229 -

10,000 - 10,000 -

738,705 (738,705} - -

3,250,361 740,004 3,990,365 27,158

151,494 57,848 209,342 -

29,5591 385,265 384,856 -

- - - 5,433

§ 39,860,821 $ 6,582,140 S 46,443,061 5403,817

8 5,438 5 1,316,753 & 1,322,191 s -

502,924 1,550,000 2,052,924 -

649 215 864 -

70,000 - 70,000 -

11,987 1,538 13,925 -

31,262,228 8,223,326 39,485,554 -

72,938,436 64,074,585 137,014,021 10,322

5104,782,662 575,166,817 $179,955,478 5 10,322

§144,653,583 581,748,957 §226,402,540 5414,139

& 1,615,547 § 421,718 $ 2,037,265 § 2,814

687,685 243,749 931,438 10,014

1,376,762 171,215 1,547,977 -

1,034,610 299,525 1,334,135 9,628

94,369 B7,738 182,308 -

3,827 30,611 34,438 2,116

- 91,930 91,930 -

13,619,796 117,699 13,737,485 -

- 47,154 47,154 -

2,958,715 2,821,676 5,780,391 -

5 21,381,315 54,333,016 § 25,724,331 & 24,572

§ 23,875,456 $30,114,585 § 53,980,041 5 -

263,132 120,589 383,731 -

5 24,138,588 530,235,184 $ 54,373,772 ] -

8 45,529,903 534 568,200 $ 80,098,103 s 24,572

{continued)

- 13 -



EXHIBIT 1

{continued)
CITY OF MASON CITY, IOWA
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2011
Primary Government
Governmental Business-Type Component
Activities Activities Total Unit
NET ASSETS:
Invested in capital assets—net of
related debt 577,367,493 $39,361,650 $116,723,143 % 10,322
Restricted for:
Nonexpendable:
Museum Funding 633,638 - 633,638 -
Perpetual care 509,011 - 509,011 -
Expendable:
Bond retirement - 2,866,968 2,866,968 -
Unrestricted 20,613,538 4,952,139 25,565,677 379,245
Total net assets $99,123,680 447,180,757 $146,304,437 $3859,567

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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CITY OF MASON CITY, IOWA
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011
Program
Operating
Charges for Grants and
Functions/Programs Expenses Servicesn Contributions
Primary government:
Governmental activities:
Public safety % 9,402,887 $ 356,340 & 147,341
Publiec works 7,450,233 893,381 2,466,138
‘Health and social services B08, 916 3%e 455,234
Culture and recreation 3,503,976 550, 848 283,412
Community and economic development 2,252,333 175,678 396,749
General government 2,176,829 410,024 -
Interest on long-term debt 1,053,911 - -
Total governmental activities 426,649,085 5 1,586,677 $3,748,874
Business-type activities:
Cemetery s 314,613 s 91,746 5 -
Water 5,218,343 5,238,573 56,485
Sewer 3,505,748 4,658,234 562,721
Parking lots 127,198 117,378 -
Storm sewer 189,882 283,112 -
S0lid waste 1,289,603 1,205,672 -
Golf course 473,005 400,967 -
Ambulance 1,572,168 1,546,875 -
Total business-type activities $12,690,540 $13,542,557 5 @6l9,206
Total primary government £39,339,625 $15,128,234 54,368,080
Component unit:
Mason City Housing Authority 5 2,049,175 § 2,058,961 5 -

General Revenues:
Froperty taxes
Other taxes
tinrestricted state utility tax replacement
Grants and contributions not restricted
to specific program
Unrestricted investment income
Miscellaneous
Transfers
Total general revenues and transfers

Change in net assets

Net assets — beginning (a=z restated)
Net assets - ending

See Notes to Fipnancial Statements.
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Net (Expense) Revenue and Change in Net Assgets

EXHIBIT 2

Revenue Primary Government

Capital

Grants and Governmental Busineas-Type Component

Contributions Activities Activities Total Unit

$ ‘ - 4 (B,B899,206) 5 - 5 (8,899,208) I -

1,624,151 {3,266,553) - (3,266,553) -

- (353,286) - {353,286) -

726,102 {1,943,614) - (1,943,614) -

7,759,088 6,079,182 - 6,079,182 -

- (1,766,805) - {1,766,805) -

~ (1,053,911} - {1,053,911) -

510,109,341 §{11,204,193) S ~ £(11,204,193) 5 -

8 - $ - 4 (222,867) 5 (222,867) § -

602,660 - 679,375 679,375 -

312,075 - 2,027,282 2,027,282 -

- - {9,820) (9,820) -

- - 93,250 93,250 -

- - {83,931} (83,931) -

- - (72,038) (72,038) -

- - (25,293) (25,293) -

] 914,735 8 - s 2,385,958 g 2,385,958 & -

$11,024,076 ${(11,204,193) $ 2,385,958 $ (8,818,235) ] -

$ - ] - $ - 8 - 5 9,786

$ 14,145,418 $ 113,987 $ 14,259,405 -

4,783,420 - 4,783,420 -

151,361 - 151,361 -

386,403 - 386,403 -

596,673 96,638 693,311 1,981

259,307 . BL,894 341,201 -

(36,000} 36,0060 - -

4 20,286,582 § 328,519 5 20,615,101 5 1,981

5 19,082,388 5 2,714,477 5 11,796,866 S 11,767

80,041,251 44,466,280 134,507,571 377,800

% 99,123,680 547,180,757 $146,304,437 $3895,567
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CITY OF MASON CITY, IOWA
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
BALANCE SHEET
AS OF JUNE 30, 2011

ASSETS:
Cash
Investments
Receivables:
Property taxes
Other taxes
Accrued interest
Special assessments - current
Special assessments - deferred
Accounts (net)
Notes
Due from other funds
Due from state government
Due from federal government
Prepaid insurance
Restricted assets:
Cash
Investments
Accrued interest
Total assets

LIABILITIES ANWND FUND BALANCE:
Liabilities:

Accounts payable

Salaries payable

Contracts payable

Accrued vacation payable

Due to other funds

Due to state government

Deferred revenue

Total liabilities

Fund Balances:
Nonspendable
Regtricted
Assigned
Unagsigned
Total fund balances

Total liabilities and fund balance

{continued)
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HMGP
Voluntary
General Acquisition
4 5,425,644 ] -
2,900,672 -
8,312,641 -
12,070 -
6,058 -
B6,530 -
8,609 -
42,131 -
561,476 -
485,196 917,401
305,516 -
139,912 -
518,286,455 5 917,401
5 513,984 5 28,754
624,105 2,105
439,207 7,480
950,000 -
487,383 1,000,477
3,100 -
8,211,894 317,000
511,229,673 51,355,856
& 139,912 g -
1,316,949 -
474,153 -
5,125,768 {438,455)

§ 7,056,782

518,286,455

S (438,455)

5 917,401



Road Cther
Use Tax Governmental Total

51,411,434 5 2,502,081 % 9,339,158
500,000 7,535,037 10,835,709
175 4,387,185 12,700,001
- - 12,070
- 9,103 15,161
76,433 - 162,963
3,378 - 11,987
B75 12,754 55,760
- 10,000 13,000
- 2,194,286 2,755,762
616,333 825,315 2,944,845
- - 305,516
11,441 - 151,353
- 5,438 5,438
- 502,924 502,924
- 649 649
52,620,069 518,085,372 $39,509,297
% 180,256 s 162,597 & 885,631
49,549 3,586 679,345
356,454 573,621 1,376,762
75,716 - 1,025,716
96,289 1,751,307 3,335,456
- 727 3,827
3,378 4,302,160 12,834,432
& 761,642 5 6,793,558 $20,141,169
] 11,441 s 633,638 S 784,931
1,846,986 10,230,504 13,394,439
- 1,380,703 1,854,B56
- {953,471) 3,733,842

51,858,427

511,291,374

§19,768,128

52,620,069

£1.8,085,372

$35,909,287

- 18
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EXHIBIT 3

{continued)
CITY OF MASON CITY, IOWA
RECONCILIATION OF BALANCE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2011
Fund balances—total governmental funds 519,768,128
Amounts reported for govermmental activities in the statement
of net assets are different because:
Tnventories used in governmental activities recorded under the
purchases method of accounting are not reported as current
assets. 29,591
Other long-term assets are not available to pay for
current-period expenditures and, therefore, are deferred in the
funds. 70,333
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not
Finaneial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the
funds. 104,150,502
Internal service funds, net assets 2,296,758
Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and
payable in current period and, therefore, are mnot reported in
the funds:
Bonds payable $(26,867,720)
Accrued interest (94,369)
Bond discount 33,549
Net OPEB obligation {263,132} (27,191,672)
Net assets of governmental activitiea 499,123,680

Bee Notes to Financial Statements.
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CITY OF MASON CITY,

IowWa

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,

REVENUES:
Property taxes
TIF revenues
Other taxes
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for service
Fines and forfeitures
Use of money and property
Special assessments
Migcellaneous
Refunds

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Public safety
Public works
Health & social services
culture & recreation
Community & economic development
General government
Capital projects
Debt service:
Principal retirement
Interest
Contractual
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):

Izssuance of general obligation bonds

Premium/discount on bonds
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance beginning of year (as restated}

Fund balance end of year

(continued)
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2011

HMGP

Voluntary
General Acquigition
% B,069,120 s -
3,214,702 -
£27,128 -
2,085,427 7,055,823
763,510 -
81,317 -
352,375 -
B,682 -
746,848 -
7,984 -
515,967,093 57,055,823
4 7,659,686 & -
934,321 -
758,642 -
2,667,208 -
855,311 7,219,158
1,998,778 -
3,732,393 -
518,606,338 $7,219,158
${2,639,245) % (163,335)
S 308,000 s -
1,024,043 12,986
(161,874} -
% 1,170,169 5 12,986
${(1,469,076) S (150,349)
g,525,858 (288,106)
& 7,056,782 % (438,455}



EXHIBIT 4

Road Othex

Use Tax Governmental Total
5 - 5 3,864,751 $11,933,871
- 1,438,648 1,438,648
- 1,720,079 4,934,781
- - 627,128
3,457,411 901,510 13,550,171
19,118 B6,359 868,987
- - 81,317
478 227,290 580,143
563 - 9,245
- 269,990 1,016,838
- 7,984

$ 3,517,570 $ B,508,627 535,049,113

- 4 1,084,646  $ 8,744,332

2,252,213 41,600 3,228,134
- 29,008 787,650

- 250,276 2,917,485

- 4,550,294 12,624,763

- 114,425 2,113,201
3,410,023 360,215 7,502,631
- 2,601,875 2,601,875

- 993, 656 993,656

41,578 41,578

§ 5,662,236 510,067,573 $41,555,305

5(2,144,666) 5(1,558,946) 4(6,506,192)

5 1,257,500 8 4,218,500 % 5,785,000

- {32,017) {32,017)

1,000,000 541,257 2,578,286
(18, 000) {1,669,412) {1,849,286)

§ 2,239,500 % 3,059,328 5 6,481,983
& 94,834 $ 1,500,382 [ (24,209)
1,763,593 9,790,992 19,792,337

$ 1,858,427 $11,251,374 519,768,128
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EXHIBIT 4
{continued)
CITY OF MASON CITY, IOWA
"RECONCILIATICON OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Net change in fund balances—total governmental funds § (24,209)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of
activities are different because:

Tn the statement of activities, only the loss on the sale of

capital assets is reported. However, in the governmental funds,
the proceeds from the sale increase financial resources. Thus,
the change in fund balance differs by the cost of the capital
assets sold. {208,971)

covernmental funds reported capital outlays as expenditures.
However, in the statement of activities the cost of those assets
is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as
depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital outlays
exceeded depreciation in the current period:

Capital outlay $18,056,253
Depreciation expense (5,028,683) 13,027,570

The issuance of long-term debt provides current Einancial
resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the
principal of long-term ' debt consumes the current financial
resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has
any effect on net assets. Also, governmental funds report the
effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts, and similar items
when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and
amortized in the statement of activities. This amount is the net
effect of these differences in the treatment of long-term debt and
related items:

Repayments of bond principal 2,601,875

Issuance of debt (5,752,983}

Accrued interest (18,680}

Amortization of bond discount {6,068)
Other post-employment benefits (68,919) (3,244,773)
Tnternal service funds net change {467,228)
Change in net assets—governmental activities $9,082,389

See Noteg to Fimancial Statements.
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CITY OF MASON CITY, IOWA
GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES,

EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES—BUDGET TO ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,

REVENUES :
Property tax
Other tax
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for service
Fines and forfeitures
Use of money and property
Special assessments
Miscellaneous
Refunds

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Public safety
Fublic works
Health & social services
Culture & recreation
Community & economic development
General government
Capital projects
Total expenditures

Excess {(deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources {uses):
Issuance of general obligation bonds
Transfers in

Transfers out
Total other fimancing sources
{uzesg}
Net change in fund balance

Fund balance beginning of year

Fund balance end of year

2011

Original Amended

Budget Budget Actual
5 8,063,718 % 8,063,718 5 8,069,120
3,004,326 3,004,326 3,214,702
576,915 576,915 627,128
4,220,106 4,588,706 2,005,427
1,228,991 1,228,991 763,510
- - 81,317
166,500 166,500 352,395
- - 8,682
136,314 244,914 746,848
- 7,984

$17,396,870

517,874,070

§15,967,0583

$ 7,470,219
966,938
759,096
2,691,895

915,064
2,318,776
6,848,297

$ 7,683,019
966,938
1,001,755
2,840,434
935, 064
2,314,242
6,923,561

5 7,659,686
934,321
758,642
2,667,209

855,311
1,998,776
3,732,393

521,990,285

$22,665, 013

$18,606,338

$(4,593,415)

$(4,790,943)

$(2,639,245)

4 1,063,000

5 1,063,000

3 308,000

936,764 936,764 1,024,043
{152,764) {152, 764) (161,874)
4 1,847,000 $ 1,847,000 & 1,170,169

(2,746,415}

5(2,943,943)

$(1,469,076)

- - 8,525,858
5(2,746,415) ${2,943,943) $ 7,056,782

See Noteg to Financial Statements.
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EXHIBIT 5

Variance with
Amended Budget
Pogitive
ANegative)

g 5,402
210,376
50,213
(2,493,279}
{465, 481)
B1,317
185,875
8,682
501,934
7,984

$(1,906,977)

5 23,333
32,617
243,113
173,225
79,753
315,466
3,191,168

§ 4,058,675

5 2,151,658

& (755,000)
87,279

{9,110)

$ (676,831)
& 1,474,867
8,525,858

510,000,725
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CITY OF MASON CITY, IOWA
HM@P VOLUNTARY ACQUISITION FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES,

EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET TO ACTUAL

REVENUES:
Intergovernmental:
Federal assigtance

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

Community & economic developmernt:

Personal service
Contractual
Commodities

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over {under} expenditures

Other financing sources {(uses):
Transfers in

Net change in fund balance

rund balance beginning of year {(as
restated)

Fund balance end of year

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Original Amended
Budget Budget Actual
$18,620,6858 $18,620,6598 §7,055,823
5 440,675 5 440,675 8 39,885
9,491,552 9,491,552 7,141,838
8,688,471 8,688,471 37,424
$18,620,698 $18,620,698 §7,219,158
s - 5 - & {163,335)
- - 12,8986
5 - $ - § (150,349)
- - (288,106)
5 - 5 - 4 (438B,455)

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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EXHIBIT ©

Variance with
Amended Budget
Pogitive
(Negative)

${11,564,875)

$  (400,780)
(2,349,713)
{8,651,047)
5{11,401,540)

$  (163,335)

12,986

$  (150,349)
(288,106)

5  (438,455)
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CITY OF MASON CITY, IOWA

ROAD USE TAX FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET TO ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,

REVENUES:
Intergovernmental:
Road use tax allocation
Charges for service
Use of money and property
Special assessments
Miscellaneous
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Public works:
Personal services
Contractual
Commodities
Total public works
Capital projects
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
{under} expenditures

Other financing sources {uses):
Issuance of general obligation bonds
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources
{uzes)

Net change in fund balance
Fund balance beginning of year

Fund balance end of year

See Noteg to Financial Statements.

EXPENDITURES AND

2011
Original Amended

Budget Budget Actual
5 7,020,000 4 7,020,000 % 3,497,411
- - 19,118
- - 478
- - 563
45,000 45,000 -
5 7,065,000 5 7,065,000 5 3,517,570
5 1,166,285 5 1,166,285 5 1,215,353
472,708 472,708 557,625
392,868 392,869 479,235
§ 2,031,862 % 2,031,862 § 2,252,213
9,109,487 9,109,467 3,410,023

$11,141,329

511,341,328

5 5,662,236

4(4,076,329)

5(4,076,3239)

$(2,144,6686)

4 2,994,700 $ 2,994,700 $ 1,257,500
1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
{18,000) {18,000) {18,000)

$ 3,976,700 4 3,976,700 4 2,239,500
4§ (99,629) & (99,629) § 94,834
- - 1,763,593

4 (99,629} & (95,629) & 1,858,427
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Variance with
Amended Budget

Positive
{(Negative)

§(3,

522,58%)
19,118
478
563
{45,000}

547,430)

{3,

s

49,068
B4, 917
86,366

220,351
{5,

699,444)

479,093)

$(5,

931,663

§ 1,

$ (1,

73%,200)

737,200)

g1,

$

194,463

763,583

1,

5 1,958,056
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CITY OF MASON CITY, IOWA
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
AS OF JUNE 30, 2011

ASSETS:
Current assets:
Cash
Investments (at cost)
Receivables:
Property taxes
Special assessments - current
Special assessments - deferred
Accounts {net)
Accrued interest
Inventory
Due from other funds
Due from state government
Prepaid insurance
Tatal current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Restricted assets:
Cash
Investments
Accrued interest
Total restricted assets

Property, plant and egquipment:
Land
Buildings
Equipment
Distribution system
Meters
Plant and improvements
Sewer lines and lifts
Improvements
Vehicles
Construction in progress
Total property, plant and equipment
Less accumulated depreciation
Net property, plant and equipment

Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

{continued)
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Sewer

Waterworks Rental
5 30,829 & 538,878
1,324,987 i,075,000
- 21,338
- 1,938
610,651 502,793
498 949
291,058 27,694
587,895 -
178,014 857,050
16,389 36,350

5 3,050,341

§ 2,761,990

$ 1,161,054
§50, 000
95

§ 155,699
900,000
120

$ 1,811,148

5 1,055,819

& 167,220

$§ 316,209

14,720,379 -
887,343 913,538
30,811,751 -
1,157,454 -

- 26,513,023

- 15,739,351

492,640 890,276
750,007 2,626,191
548,986,794 546,998,588
{14,312,731) {1B,429,631)

£34,674,063

528,568,857

536,485,212

$29,624,776

539,535,553

£32,386,766




EXHIBIT B

Governmental
Activities-

Internal

Other Total Service
8 415,161 & 984,868 8 677,136
775,050 3,175,047 1,005,950
116,442 116,442 774,982
- 21,338 -
- 1,538 -
754,400 1,867,844 -
742 2,189 1,546
36,513 355,265 -
127,326 725,221 22,775
4,940 740,004 -
5,088 57,848 141
5 2,235,673 & 8,048,004 52,482,530
5 - % 1,316,753 s -
- 1,550,000 -
- 215 -
5 - & 2,866,568 5 -
% 4,339,933 § 4,823,362 g -
1,471,560 16,191,939 -
1,111,230 2,912,111 105,088
- 30,811,751 -
- 1,157,454 -
- 26,513,023 -
3,955,179 19,694,530 -
3,061,977 3,06L,977 -
1,613,877 2,996,783 85,174
23,766 3,399,964 -
§15,577,522 5111,562,904 5 180,272
{6,522,631) {39,264,993) {139,110)
$ 9,054,891 § 72,257,911 ] 51,162
5 9,054,891 & 75,164,879 5 51,162
§11,290,564 5 83,212,883 52,533,692
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CITY OF MASON CITY, IOWA
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
AS OF JUNE 30, 2011

Sewer
Waterworks Rental
LIABILITIES:
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable [ 150,993 5 158,775
Salaries payable 71,783 48,678
Contracts payable 130,183 41,032
Accrued vacation payable B5,228 80,089
Accrued interest payable 41,881 44,457
Due to other funds 20,156 2,088
Due to state government 27,238 -
Due to customers 91,5330 -
General obligation bonds 479,913 369,843
General obligation notes - -
Revenue bhonds 1,001,000 793,000
Prepaid interments - -
Unearned revenue : - 1,938
Total current liabilities $ 2,100,306 $ 1,539,900
Long-term debt:

: General cbligation bonds 5 3,086,482 § 2,914,442
General obligation notes - -
Revenue bonds : 11,519,000 12,488,000
Unamortized bond discount ' {70,1558) {128,151}
Net OPEB obligation 42,834 25,604

Total long-term debt 514,578,161 §15,299,895

Total liabilities $16,678,467 816,839,795

Net assets: .

invested in capital assets, net of related debt 518,657,823 412,131,823
Restricted for:

Bond retirement 1,811,149 1,055,819

Unreatricted 2,388,114 2,359,328

Total net assets $22,857,086 $15,546,971

Adjustment to reflect the conscolidation of intermal
service fund activities related to enterprise funds

Net assets of business-type activities

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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Governmental
Activities-

Internal

Other Totzal Service
5 111,950 ) 421,718 5 729,916
123,288 243,748 8,344
- 171,215 -
134,208 299,525 8,894
1,401 87,739 -
112,352 134,636 33,666
3,372 30,611 -
- 91,930 -
100,000 849,756 -
77,920 77,920 -
- 1,754,000 -
47,154 47,154 -
115,761 117,688 785,364
5 B27,446 $ 4,467,652 51,566,184
$ 100,000 $ 6,100,924 5 -
204,887 204,967 -
- 24,007,000 -
- (198,306} -
52,161 120,588 -
5 357,128 %30,235,184 8 -

5 1,184,574

534,702,836

51,566,184

5 8,572,004 $39,361,650 5 51,162
- 2,866,968 -

1,533,886 6,281,429 916,348
$10,105,950 548,510,047 § 567.508

(1,329,290)

547,180,757
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CITY OF MASON CITY,

IOWA

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Operating revenues:

Charges for service

Health insurance contributions
Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:
Business type activities:
Perasonal service
Contractual
Commodities
Other
Depreciation
Amortization
Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

Nonoperating revenues (expenses) :
Property taxes
Intergovernmental
Fines and forfeitures
Use of money and property
Special assessments
Miscellaneous
Interest
Loss on disposal of assets
Total nonoperating revenue {expense)

Tncome {loss) before contributions and transfers

Contributions and transfera:
Transfers in
Transfers out
Capital contributions
Total contributions and transfers
Change in net assets

Net assets beginning of year

Net asgets end of year

Waterworks

Sewer
Rental

$ 5,238,573

& 4,656,138

5 5,238,573

§ 4,656,139

$ 1,527,736 % 1,025,621
969,224 406,287
736,059 225,136

10,491 15,101
1,345,105 1,234,498
10,940 1,467

$ 4,619,555 S 2,908,110

$ 619,018 5 1,748,029

5 - 5 -

56,485 562,721
40,042 8,750

- 1,687

2,591 2,619
(552,302) {568,999)

5 (453,184} § 6,778

5 165,834

5 1,754,807

$ - -

{18, 000) (18, 000)

602,660 312,075
§ 584,660 § 294,075
5§ 750,494 § 2,048,882
22,106,592 13,498,089
422,857,086  $15,546,971

Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of internal

gervice fund activities related to e

nterprise funds

Change in net assets of business-type activities

Sae Notes ko Financial Statements.
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Governmental
Agtivities-

Internal

Other Total Service
% 3,587,822 $13,482,534 5 231,229
- - 2,456,548
$ 3,587,822 $13,482,534 52,687,777
$ 2,370,177 % 4,923,534 £3,003,477
596,006 1,971,517 17,303
422,048 1,383,244 20,896
15,096 60,688 -
496,360 3,075,963 14,401
- 12,407 -
5 3,899,688 511,427,353 53,056,177
5 (311,866) § 2,055,181 4 (368,400)
5 113,887 ] 113,987 & 772,899
- §19,206 -
57,928 57,928 -
47,8486 96,638 16,572
408 2,095 -
76,684 8l,894 -
(22, 045) (1,143,346) -
3,458 3,458 -
5 278,266 5 (168,140) S 789,471
] (33,600} $ 1,887,041 § 421,071
[ 72,000 5 72,000 -
- {36,000} {765, 000)
- 914,735 -
5 72,000 5 950,735 S (765,000)
=1 38,400 5 2,837,778 § (343,929}
10,067,590 1,311,437
$10,105,990 4 967,508

(123,299)
2,714,477

- 34

EXHIBIT 9



CITY OF MASON CITY, ICWA
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Sewer
Waterworks Rental
cash flows from operating activities:

Cash received from interfund charges s - 5 -
Cash received from employees and others - -
Cash received from customers 5,622,398 4,663,007
Cash paid to employees for services {1,509,2093) (1,016,598)
Cash paid to other suppliers of goods or services {2,082,171) (607,622)
Cash paid for health and life insurance - -
Rent received from operating assets 32,826 -
Proceeds from miscellaneous items 2,591 4,306

Net cash provided {used) by operating
activities

Cash flows from non-capital finaneing activities:

Proceeds from property tax levy
Transfers in

£ 2,066,435

$ 3,042,693

$ -

s -

Transfers out (18,000) (18, 000)
Intergovernmental proceeds 157,005 389,281
Advance from/to other funds (588,813} -
Advance repayment from/to other funds B0, 000 346,446

Net cash provided (used) by non-capital
financing activities

Ccash flows from capital and related financing

activities:
Net acquisition of capital assets
Proceeds from sale of capital assets

4 (369,808)

5 717,727

5(1,089,372)

$(1,727,152)

Principal payments (1,389,143) (1,162,313)
Interest payments (554,019) {572,333)
Proceeds from issuance of bonds 990, 000 311,008
Capital contributions 434,644 -

Net cash provided {used) for capital and
related financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities:

Proceeds from sale of investments
Purchase of investments
Interegt received
Rent received on investment property
Net cash provided ({(used)} by investing
activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash

$(1,607,890)

5{3,150,720)

§ 2,125,000
{3,750,000)
7,023

$ 2,125,000
{3,750,000)
8,665

5(1,617,977)

5(i,616,335)

$(1,529,240)

%(1,006,705)

Cash begimning of year 2,721,123 1,701,282
Cash end of year $ 1,191,883 § 694,577
Noncash capital, investing and financing activities:
Capital contributions 5 168,016 s 312,075
Tnerease in fair value of investments 5 - 5 -

{continued)
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Governmental
Activities-

Internal

othexr Total Service
[ - & - 42,280,784
- - 406,525
3,665,607 13,951,012 -
(2,230,994) {4,757,201) {(156,243)
{1,169,B47) {3,B59,640) (74,108)
- - (2,858,470}
- 32,826 -
135,020 141,917 -
$ 399,786 $ 5,508,814 4% (401,512)
5 114,134 [ 114,134 5 914,555
72,000 72,000 -
- (36,000) {765,000}
- 546,286 -
(33,666) (622,479) -
15,000 441,446 -
5 167,468 o] 515,387 5 149,555
S (281,628) 5(3,098,152) [ -
6,480 6,480 -
{189,003} (2,720,459) -
{22,675) (1,149,027} -
- 1,301,008 -
- 434,644 -
$ {466,826} 4(5,225,506) 5 -
& 450,000 £ 4,700,000 $2,975,000
(975,000) (8,475,000} (2,562,500)
28,192 43,880 17,448
23,886 23,886 -
8 (472,522} $(3,707,234) § 429,548
& (372,484} $(2,908,439) $ 177,991
787,655 5,210,060 499,145
g 415,161 $ 2,301,621 s 677,136
& - s 480,091 E] -
5 - & - 5 g

- 3§ -

EXHIBIT 10



CITY OF MASON CITY, IOWA
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Sewer
Waterworks Rental
Reconciliation of Operating Income ({Loes) '
to Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating
Activities:
Operating income {loss) & 619,018 51,748,029
Adjustments to reconcile operating income
to net cash from operating activities:
Deprec1at10n and amortization expense 1,356,045 1,235,965
Rental income 32,826 -
Miscellaneous income 2,591 4,306
Change in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in receivables (23,453) 7,246
(Inereape) decrease in inventory (21,736) 26,696
(Increase) decrease in due from other funds 1,133 -
{Increase) decrease in prepaid insurance 4,961 (20,523
Increase (decrease) in accounts and contracts
payable 41,5871 5,147
Tncrease {decrease) in salaries payable 7,775 3,186
Tnereage {decrease) in accrued compensated absences {3,8B58) {3,379)
Increase (decrease) in due to other funds 18,213 A47
Increase (decrease) in due to state government 8,076 -
TIncrease (decrease) in due to customers 9,087 -
Tncrease (decrease) in prepaid interments - -
Increase (decrease) in unearned revenue - (1,687}
Inerease (decrease) in net OPEB cbligation 13,770 6,860
Net cash provided (used) by operating
activities $2,066,435 43,042,693

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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Governmental
Activities-
Internal
Other Total Service
$(311,866) $2,055,181 5(368,400}
456,360 3,088,370 14,401
- 32,826 -
135,020 141,917 -
20,392 4,185 1,230
58,581 63,541 -
- 1,139 {68, 045)
{(1,283) (16,851) {52)
{37,017) 40,101 53,841
13,825 24,786 664
8,839 1,602 (3,905)
4,245 23,305 (33,584)
622 8,698 -
- 9,097 -
186 16 -
150 {1,537) 2,338
11,908 32,538 -
g 399,786 £5,508,914 4(401,512)
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CITY OF MASON CITY, IOWA
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

AS OF JUNE 30,

ASSETS:
Cash
Receivables:
Eroperty taxes
Total assets

LIABILITIES:
Deferred revenue

NET ASSETS:
Held in trust for pension benefits

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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Firemen's

Peunsion

4 4,921

&,900
511,821

6,800

S 4,921

EXHIBIT 11

Agency
Fund
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CITY OF MASON CITY,
. FIDUCIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

IOWA

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

ADDITIONS:
Use of money and property

DEDUCTIONS:

Public safety:
Benefits paid

Change in net assets

Net assets beginning of year

Net assets end of year

See Notes to Financial Statements.

- 40

EXHIBIT 12

Firemen’s
FPension

6,576
5(6,568)
11,430

5 4,921



{1}

(2)

CITY OF MASON CITY, IOWA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011

Financial Reporting Entity

The City of Mason City is a political subdivision of the State of Iowa. It was
first incorporated on December 21, 1869 and operates under the Home Rule

Provisions of the Constitution of Iowa. The City operates under the Mayor-
Council form of government and provides for public safety, highways and
streets, ganitation, health and social services, culture-recreation,

education, public improvements, planning and zoning, public transit and
general administrative services.

For financial reporting purposes, the City of Mason city has included all
funds, organizations, agencies, boards, commissions and authorities. The City
has also considered all potential component units for which it is financially
accountable, and other organizations for which the nature and significance of
their relationship with the City are such that exclusion would cause the

City's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. The Governmental
Accounting Standards Board has set forth criteria to be considered in
determining financial accountability. These criteria include appointing a

voting majority of an organization's governing body, and (1) the ability of
the City to impose its will on that organization or (2) the potential for the
organization to provide specific benefits to, or impose specifiec £inaneial
burdens on the City. The City of Mason City has determined the MacNider Art
Museum Foundation meets the Governmental Accounting Standards Board criteria
for a blended component unit and, accordingly, has been included in special
revenue funds. The directors of the foundation are appointed by the directors
of the museum who are appointed by the Mayor and approved by the Council. The
Foundation exists to support the City-owned MacNider Museum. The City has
determined the Mason City Housing Authority meets the Govermnmental Accounting
standards Board criteria for a discretely presented component unit, The
Authority’'s commissioners are appointed by the Mayor and approved by the
Council. The Authority provides low-income housing to the gitizens of Mason
city. Complete financial statements of the Mason City Housing Authority may
be obtained at the entity’s administrative offices at 22 N. Georgia, Suite
214, Magon City, TA 50401.

The City also participates in several jointly governed organizations that
provide goods or services to the citizenry of the City but do not meet the
criteria of a joint venture since there is no ongoing financial interest ox
responsibility by the participating governments. City officials are members
of the following boards and commissgions: Cerro Gordo County Assessor's
Conference Board, City of Mason City's City Assessor’s conference Board, Cerro
Gordo County Emergency Management Commission, Landfill of North Iowa Board and
Cerro Gordo County Joint ES11 Service Boaxd.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting policies of the City conform to accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America as applicable to governments. The
following is a summary of the more significant policies:

{p) CGovernment-wide and fund financial statements

The government-wide £inancial statements (i.e., the statement of net
assets and the statement of activities) report information on all of the
non-fiduciary activities of the City and its component unit. For the
most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these
gtatements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by
taxes and intergovermmental revenues, are reported separately from
business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and
charges for services.
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CITY OF MASON CITY, IOWA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011

{2) Summary of Sigmificant Accounting Policies - continued

(B)

The Statement of Net Assets presents the City’s nonfiduciary assets and
liabilities, with the difference reported as net assets. Net assets are
reported in the following categories.

Tnvested in capital assets, net of related debt consists of capital
assets, net of accumulated depreciation/amortization and reduced by
outstanding balances for bonds, notes and other debt attributable to
the acgquisition, construction or improvement of those assets.

Restricted net assets result when constraints placed on net asset use
are either externally dimposed or imposed by law through
canstitutional provisions or enabling legiglation.

Unrestricted net assets consist of net assets not meeting the
definition of the two preceding categories. Unrestricted net assets
often have constraints on resources imposed by management which can
be removed or modified.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct
expenses of a given function or segment is offset by program revernues.
Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a gpecific
function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers oOr
applicants who purchase, use, Or directly benefit from goods, gervices,
or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2} grants and
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items
not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as
general revenues.

Separate Ffinancial statements are provided for governmental funds,
proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, even though the 1latter are
excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual
governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as
geparate columns in the fund financial statements. Non-major funds are
consolidated into a single column within each fund type in the financial
section of the basic financial statements and are detailed in the
supplemental informatiom.

Measurement focusg, basis of accounting, and Ffinancial statement
presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are
the proprietary fund and fidueiary fund financial statements. Revenues
are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is
incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. ~Property taxes
are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants
and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility
requirements imposed by the provider have been met. Although the agency
fund is fiduciary, it is not involved in the measurement of results ok

operations; therefore, measurement focus is not applied to it.



CcITY OF MASON CITY, IOWA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011

(2) Summary of Sigmificant Accounting Policies - continued

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current
financial resources measurement Locus and the modified accrual hasis of
accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable
and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay
liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the government
considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 30 days
of the end of the current £iscal period. Expenditures generally are
recorded when a liability is incurred, as under acecrual accounting.
However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to
compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when
payment is due.

Property taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal
period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and 8o have been
recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. Only the portion of
special assessments receivable due within the current fiescal period is
considered to be susceptible to accrual as revenue of the current period.
all other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available
only when cash is received by the City.

Subgtantially all shared revenues are recorded when the underlying

exchange transaction has occurred. For governmental funds, revenue from
grant revenues is recorded as unearned revenue until they become
available.

Revenue from federal awards is recognized when the City has done
everything necessary to establish its right to revenue. For governmental
funds, revenue Ffrom federal grants is recognized when they become both
measurable and available. Expenditures of federal awards are recognized
in the accounting period when the liability is incurred. Income from
accounts receivables and unbilled usage is recagnized when earned.
Licenses and permits, fines and forfeiture fees and refunds, charges for
services {other than enterprise), miscellaneous and other revenues are
recorded as revenue when received in cash because they are generally not
measurable until actually received.

Special assessment receivables are recorded at the time of their levy.
The related revenue 18 recognized at the time it dg8 due in the
governmental funds and when levied for government-wide statements.

The City of Mason City reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund
The General Fund accounts for all the financial resources of the City,
except for those reguired to be accounted for by other funds. The
revenues of the General Fund are primarily derived £from general
property taxes, charges for services, fines and forfeitures, iicenses
and permits, and certain revenues from state and federal sources. The
expenditures of the General Fund primarily relate to general
administration, police and £fire protection, =streets and public
buildings operation and maintenance, and parks and recreation oriented
activities.



CITY OF MASON CITY, IOWA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011

{2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - continued

HMGP Voluntary Acquisition Fund
The HMGP Voluntary Acguisition Fund is used as part of the City’'s
flood recovery efforts. The fund includes five voluntary acquisition

and land clearance projects. Four of the five are funded through
FEMA's Hagzard Mitigation Grant Program. The fifth is funded through
HUD's Community Development Block Grant program. Expenses charged

against this fund include the cost to acquire land and structures, and
in some circumstances the costs associated with demolishing structures
and clearing the acquired lots. Land acguired through this fund will
be dedicated as open space in perpetuity and will be permanently held
by the City.

Road Use Tax Fund
The Road Use Tax Fund accounts for the operations of the streest
maintenance department. Financing is provided by the City’'s share of
state gasoline taxes. State law regquires these taxes to be used to
maintain streets.

The City reports the following major proprietary funds:

Water Fund
The Water Fund acccunts for the operation and maintenance of the
City's water system.

Sanitary Sewer Fund
The Sanitary Sewer Fund accounts for the operation and maintenance of
the City's sanitary sewer system.

Additionally, the City reports the following fund types:

The City's Internal Service Funds account for costs in wvehicle
maintenance, electrical repairs and health insurance. The vehicle
maintenance fund is used to account for maintenance and repair costs
related to City vehicles and equipment. The electrical repair fund is
used to account for costs for electrical for all City facilities and
traffic maintenance. The health insurance fund is usged to account for
health insurance premiums and claims for all Ccity employees.

Special Revenue Funds account for and report the proceeds of specific
revenue sources that are restricted oxr committed for a specified
purpose other than debt service or capital projects.

The Debt Service Fund acecounts for the accumulation of resources for,
and the payment of general Ilong-term and special debt principal,
interest and related costs. Financing is through annual property tax
levies. Tax levies in excess of actual requirements are legally
restricted to service of this debt. 8

The Capital Projects Funds account for financial resources to be used
for the construction of the 19 Street SW Overpasa and construction
and acquisition of other general capital improvements. These projects
are Financed mainly through bond proceeds and Local Option Sales Tax.

The Pension Trust Fund accounts for assets held by the City to be used
for retirement payments for qualified public safety employees.
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(2)

CITY OF MASON CITY, IOWA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - continued

The Agency Fund is to account for the collection of funds and purchase
of U.S. Savings Bonds on behalf of City employees.

Other enterprise funds account for operations and activities that are
financed and operated in a manner similar to a private business
enterprise, and where the costs of providing goods or services to the
general public on a continuing basis are expected to be financed or
recovered primarily through user charges, or where the City has decided
that periodic determination of revenues earned, eXpenses incurred,
and/or mnet income is appropriate for capital wmaintenance, public
policy, management control, accountability, or other purposes. The
ity has six funds classified as other enterprise funds and they are as
follows: cemetery, storm sewer, solid waste disposal, golf course,
parking lots and ambulance.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued
prior to December 1, 1983, generally are followed in both the government-
wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the extent that those
standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental

Accounting Standards Board. Govermments also have the option of
following subsequent private-sector guidance for their business-type
activities and enterprise funds, subject to this same limitation. The

Ccity has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance.

Transactions among City £funds that would be treated as revenues and
expenditures or expenses if they involved organizations extermal to City
government are accounted for as revenues and expenditures or expenses in
the funds involved.

Transactions which constitute reimbursements to a fund for expenditures
initially made from it which are properly applicable to another fund are
recorded as expenditures in the reimbursing fund and as reductions of
expenditures in the reimbursed fund.

Transactions, which constitute the transfer of resources from a fund
receiving revenues to a fund through which the revenues are to be
expended, are separately reported in the respective funds’ operating
statements.

Amounts reported as program revenues ineclude 1) charges to customers or
applicants for goods, services, or privileges provided, 2) operating
grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions,
including special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are
reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise,
general revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-
operating items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from
providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with
a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The prineipal
operating revenues of proprietary funds are user fees and charges to
customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for proprietary
Funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses,
and depreciation on capital assets. 211 revenues and expenses not
meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and
expenses.



CITY OF MASON CITY, IOWA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011

{2) Summary of Sigmnificant Accounting Policies - continued

()

Under terms of grant agreements, the city funds certain programs by a
combination of specific cost-reimbursement grants, categorical block

grants and general revenues. Thus, when program eXpenses are incurred,
there are both restricted and unrestricted net agsets available to
finance the program. Tt is the City’s policy to first apply cost-

reimbursement grant resources to such programs, followed by categorical
block grants and then by general revenues.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it
iz the City’'s policy to use restricted resources first, then to less
restrictive classifications—committed, assigned and then unassigned.

Assets, liabilities and net assets or equity

Cash Management and Investments

The City maintains one primary demand deposit account through which the
majority of the City's cash resources are processed. The City’'s cash and
cash equivalents include amounts in demand deposits as well as short-term
investments with an original maturity date within three months of the
date acquired by the City.

Tnvestments are stated at fair value except for nonnegotiable

certificates of deposit which are carried at cost. Securities traded on
a national or international exchange are valued at the last reported
sales price at current exchange rates. The City invests in the Iowa
Public Agency Investment Trust which is a 2a-7 - like pool. The Iowa

public Agency Investment Trust is a common law trust established under
Towa law and is administered by an appointed investment management
company. The fair value of the position in the trust is the same as the
value of the shares.

The Code of Iowa reguires all investment income of the Road Use Tax
Special Revenue Fund to be recorded as General Fund revenue. 57,372
and §16,523 of investment income for the years ended June 30, 2011 and
2010, respectively, were recorded in this manner.

Receivables and Payables

Accounts receivable as of June 30, 2011, in proprietary and governmental
funds is reported net of allowance for doubtful accountg in the amounts
of $795,233 and $149,745, respectively.

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing
arrangements cutstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as
either “due to/from other funds” (i.e., the current portion of interfund
loans) or ‘“advances to/from other funds” (i.e., the non-current portion
of interfund loans). a1l other outstanding balances between funds are
reported as “due to/from other funds”. Any residual balances outstanding
between the governmental activities and business-type activities are
reported in the government-wide financial statements as “internal
balances”.

Advances between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, are
offset by a fund balance reserve account in applicable governmental funds
to indicate that they are not available for appropriation and are not
expendable available financial resources.
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(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - continued

Property taxes receivable are recognized at the time an enforceable legal
claim is established. This is determined to occur when the budget is
certified. All City property taxes must be certified to the Cerro Gordo
County 2Zuditor on or before the fifteenth day of March of each year for
the upcoming fiscal year which runs from July 1 to June 30. The county
auditor is then required to place these city taxes upon the tax list.
This levying of property taxes procedurally occurs during June prior to
the fisecal year for which the taxes are to be collected. The property
taxes actually become an enforceable lien against the property when the
budget is certified.

Property taxes levied by the Cerro Gordo County Auditor Efor the year
ended June 30, 2011, were due by July 1, 2010, with the first half
installment being delinquent after September 30, 2010, and the second
half installment being delinquent after March 31, 2011. Any collections
remitted to the City within thirty days subsequent to year end are
recorded as property tax revenue. The current tax receivable represents
the 2011 levy certified on March 15, 2011, based on 2010 assessed
valuations. As the levy is intended for use in the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2012, the revenue has been recorded as unearned revenue.

Inventories and Prepaid Items

Inventories are recognized only in those funds in which they are material
to the extent of affecting operations. All inventories are carried at
lower of cost or market (first-in, first-out). The consumption method of
accounting is applied to the business-type inventories.

Restricted Aasets

Asgets within the enterprise funds which can be designated by the City
Council for any use within the fund's purpose are considered to be
unrestricted assets. Assets which are restricted for specific uses by
bonded debt reguirements, grant provisions, or other requirements are
clagsified as restricted assets. Tiabilities which are payable £from
vegtricted assets, are classgified as such.

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include land, buildings, improvements other than
buildings, and machinery and equipment are reported in the applicable

.

governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide

Financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the Qity as assets
with an initial, individual cost of more than $1,000 and an estimated
useful 1ife in excess of one Yyear. Such assets are recorded at
historical cost. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated failr

market value at the date of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value
of the asset or materially extend asset lives are not capitalized.
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(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - continued

Buildings, improvements other than buildings, and machinery and equipment
of the primary government, as well as component units, are depreciated
using the straight line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Buildings and structures 20 to 50 years
Improvements other than buildings 5 to 100 years
Machinery and equipment 3 to 20 years
Infrastructure 10 to 45 years

Collections such as library books and museum exhibits are held for public
exhibition, education, or research in the furtherance of public service
rather than finanecial gain, protected, kept unencumbered, cared for, and
preserved, and are subject to an organizational policy that requires the
proceeds from sales of collections to be used to acquire other items for
collections or access to the collections and, therefore, are not
capitalized.

Compensated Absences

Ccity employees earn vacation and sick leave at rates dependent on years

of service. Sick leave may be accumulated up to 360 hours but  is
forfeited if not used. Therefore, no accrual is recorded for accrued
gick leave. Vacation leave iz vested as earned, but must be used within
one year or is forfeited. The City records these acecumulations in the

fund in which they are earmed for governmental type funds as the City
anticipates paying these accruals from expendable available finaneial
resources. For proprietary type funds, these accumulations are recorded
as liabilities.

Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types
in the fund financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term
gbligations are reported asg liabilities in the applicable governmental
activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement
of net assets. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs,
are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective
interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond
premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred
charges and amortized over the term of the related debt.

Tn the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recagnize bond
premiums and discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the
current period. The face amount of debt issued is xeported as other
financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as
other financing sources while discounts on debt igsuances are reported as
other fimancing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the
actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

Fund Equity

In the governmental fund £inancial statements, fund balances are
classified as follows:

Nonspendable - Amounts which cannot be spent either because they are in a
nonspendable form or because they are legally or contractually recquired
to be maintained intact.
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(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - continued

(D)

Restricted - Amounts restricted to specific purposes when constraints
placed on the use of the resources are either externally imposed by
creditors, grantors or astate or federal laws or imposed by law through
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Committed - Amounts which can be used only for specific purposes pursuant
to comstraints formally imposed by the City Council through ordinance or
resolution approved prior to year end. Those committed amounts cannot he
used for any other purpose unless the ity Council removes or changes the
specified use by taking the same action it employed to commit those
amounts. :

Assigned - Amounts the City Council intends to use for specific purposes.
Unassigned - All amounts not included in other spendable classifications.

Budgetary control, compliance and appropriation data

The City prepares and adopts an annual program budget, as prescribed by
the Code of Iowa, for all funds except Westside TIF, city Administered
Grants, MacNider Museum Foundation special revenue funds; 195%™ Street SW
Overpass capital project fund; Cemetery Perpetual Care permanent fund and
fiduciary funds. The statutory level of control is on the program level
for all funds rather than at the individual fund level. The City's
budget as prescribed by the Code of Towa must contain the following:
5. Expenditures for each program:
Public Safety
Public Works
Health and Social Serxrvices
rulture and Recreation
Community and Economic Development
General Government
Debt Service
Capital Projects
b. The amount to be raised by property taxation
¢. Tncome from sources other than property taxation

City Council action to legally enact the budget goes beyond the State
requirement and includes budgets For individual funds except fiduciary
funds. The City budget is prepared and reported on a modified accrual
basis of accounting.

A City budget may be amended for any of the following purposes:

a. To permit the appropriation and expenditure of unexpended
unencumbered cash balances on hand at the end of the preceding
fiscal year.

b. To permit the appropriation and expenditure of amounts anticipated
to be available from sources other than property taxation.

c. To permit transfers between funde as prescribed by state law.

d. To permit transfers between programs.

A budget amendment must be prepared and adopted in the same manner as the
original budget. Management has no authority to amend the budget other
than as directed by the City Council; furthermore, it is the City
Council’s policy that only state required budget amendments will be
adopted. The City's budget was amended as prescribed and the effect of
that amendment is shown in the following table.
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CITY OF MASON CITY, IOWA
NOTES TO FINAWNCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - continued

The following table presented on a budgetary basis demonstrates the
statutory compliance with the anmual fiscal year 2011 budget:

Original Final
Certified Budget Certified Actual

Budget Amendment Budget Expenditures
Public Safety 5 8,885,574 5224,900 5 9,110,474 $ 8,744,332
Fublic Works 3,081,644 - 3,081,644 3,228,134
Health and Social Services A04,650 250,000 1,054,650 787,650
culture and Recreation 3,312,595 188,170 3,500,765 2,917,485
Community and Economic
Development 27,312,860 113,385 27,426,255 12,624,763
General Government 5,148,360 §2,464 5,210,824 2,113,201
Debt Service 4,603,840 60,700 4,664,540 3,637,109
Capital Projects 15,907,024 - 15,907,024 7,502,631
Business Type 20,267,134 15, 000 20,282,134 12,570,699

Total $89,323,6B1 5914,629 590,238,310 554,126,004

The fiscal year 2011 budget amendment resulted in an overall increase in
the appropriatiomn.

(E) Unbilled Revenues

The Waterworks, Sewer Rental, Storm Sewer and Solid Waste Funds accrue
unbilled revenues for services rendered subsequent to the last billing
date and prior to year-end based upon the number of days unbilled
compared to the first billing subsequent to year-end. At June 30, 201l
unbilled utility receivables £or the Waterworks, Sewer Rental, Storm
gewer and Solid Waste Funds were included in accounts receivable and
totaled approximately $360,436, 5357,597, $20,808 and 579,498,
respectively.

Cash and Investmente

The City’s deposits at June 30, 2011 were entirely covered by Federal
depository insurance or by a multiple financial institution collateral peol in
accordance with Chapter 12C of the Code of Iowa. This chapter provides for
additional assessments against the depositories to insure there will be no
logss of public funds.

The City is authorized by statute to invest public funds in cbligations of the
United States government, 1ts agencies and instrumentalities; certificates of
deposit or other evidences of deposit at federally insured depository
institutions approved by the City Council and the Treasurer of the State of
Towa; prime eligible bankers acceptances; certain high rated commercial paper;
perfected repurchase agreements; certain registered open-end management
investment companies; certain joint investment trusts; and - warrants - oxr
improvement certificates of a drainage district.

The City’'s investments are all insured or registered or the securities are
held by the City or its agent in the City's name.

The City’s investments in the Towa Public Agency Investment Trust are valued
at an amortized cost of $940,%28 pursuant to Rule 2a-7 under the Investment
Company Act of 1940 and are not subject to rigk categorization amnd are not
rated.
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CITY OF MASON CITY, IOWA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011

Cash and Investments - continued

The carrying amount and fair value of the City’s investments at June 30, 2011
are as follows:

Fair Value
U.&8. Government securities § 3,003,098
Equity securities 289,417
5 3,292,515

Deposits classified as investments:

Towa Public Agency Investment Trust 540,928
Nonnegotiable certificates of deposit 12,936,187

Total 517,169,630
Less: Restricted investments 2,052,924

Total unrestricted investments

per balance sheet 515,116,706
Interest rate risk: The City’s investment policy iimits the investment of

operating funds (funds expected to be expended in the current budget year or
within- 15 months of receipt) in imstruments that mature within 3387 days.
Funds not identified as operating funds may be invested in investmenta with
maturities longer than 397 days but the maturities shall be consistent with
the needs and use of the City.

Credit risk: The City's investment policy iimits investments in commercial
paper and other corxporate debt to the top two highest clasgifications. The
city did not invest in any commercial paper or other corporate debt during the
vear.

Concentration of credit risk: The City's investment policy does not allow for
a prime bankers’ acceptance or commercial paper and other corporate debt
balances to be greater than ten percent of its total deposits and investments,

further limited to no more than five percent from a single issuer. The City
held no such investments during the year.

Tpterfund Receivable and Payable Balances

Interfund balances at June 30, 2011 congisted of the following amounts:

Interfund Interfund
Fund Receivable Fayable
CGovernmental:
General % 561,476 5 487,383
HMGP veoluntary acquisition - 1,000,477
Road use tax - 96,289
Nonmajor funds 2,194,286 1,751,307
Internal Service funds 22,775 33,666
Total governmental 52,778,537 §3,369,122
Business-Type:
Waterworks 5§ 597,885 & 20,158
sSewer rental - 2,088
Nonmajor funds 127,326 112,332
Total business-type g 725,221 5 134,636
Total due to/from other funds $3,503,758 53,503,758
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CITY OF MASON CITY, IOWA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011

Tnterfund Receivable and Payable Balances - continued

The City's interfund receivables and payables eliminated what would have been
negative cash balances in various funds in the amount of $3,105,323. The
remainder of these balances resulted from the time lag between the dates that
(1) interfund goods and services are provided or reimbursable expenditures
occur, (2) transactions are recorded in the accounting system, and ({3}
payments between funds are made. In general, these balances will be repaid
within one year from year end.

Interfund Transfers

Transfers in and out for the year ended June 30, 2011 were:

Transfers Transfers
Fund In Qut
Governmental:
General 51,024,043 £ 161,874
HMEP voluntary acguisition 12,5986 -
Road uge tax 1,000,000 18,000
Nonmajor funds 541,257 1,669,412
Internal service funds - 765,000
Total governmental 52,578,286 $2,614,286
Business-Type:
Waterworks $ - & 18,000
Sewer rental - 18,000
Nonmajor funds 72,0040 -
Total business-type 8 72,000 8 36,000
Total transfers 52,650,286 £2,.650,288

Transfers are used to (1) move revenues frxrom the fund that statute or budget
requires to collect them to the fund that statute or budget requires to expend
them, (2) move receipts restricted to debt service from the funds collecting
the receipts to the debt service fund as debt service payments become due, and
(3} use unrestricted revenues collected to finance various programs accounted
for in other funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations.

Prior Period Adjustment

In the prior year, the City misclassified revenue from the state that was an
advance on a state-level grant to be authorized in a subgecquent period. The
City has determined the advance should have been classified as unearned
revenue. The grant has not yet been authorized and the balance remains
classified as unearned revenue. As a result, the HMGP fund balance has been
restated by $317,000.

Fund balance, July 1, 2010 4 28,854
2djustment {(317,000)
Fund balance, July 1, 2010 {(as restated) 5{288,106)

1
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JUNE 30,

2011

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2011

Governmental Bctivities:

Ccapital assets, not being
depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress
Total capital assets,
not being depreciated

Capital assets, being
deprecviated:
Buildings and structures
Improvements other than
buildings
Machinery and equipment
Vehicles
Infrastructure
Total capital assets
being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation

for:
Buildings and structures
I'mprovements other than
buildings
Machinery and equipment
vehicles
Infrastructure
Total accumulated
depreciation

Total capital assets, being
depreciated, net

Governmental activities
capital assets, net

was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
% 2,634,356 - 5 - % 2,634,356
13,427,311 16,713,387 1,612,826 28,627,872
$ 16,061,667 $16,713,387 51,512,026 5 31,262,228
$ 9,948,735 4 17,002 & 22,445 § 9,943,252
25,695,298 795,212 - 26,490,510
5,846,377 385,171 454,780 5,776,768
7,482,662 540,145 302,073 7,720,734
71,585,784 740,226 - 72,330,010
$120,562,856 & 2,477,756 5 779,288 $122,261,314

5 5,861,770

$ 248,550

=3 17,112 § 6,093,208

6,474,027 1,169,903 - 7,643,930
3,480,012 462,306 445,412 3,496,906
5,171,985 493,143 242,326 5,422,812
23,885,840 2,669,182 - 26,665,022
& 44 983,644 S 5,043,084 5 704,B50 § 49,321,878
4 75,579,212 $(2,565,328) g 74,448 & 72,939,436
$ 91,640,879 514,148,059 41,587,274 $104,201,664

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary

government as follows:

Covernmental activities:

Public safety
Public works

Health and social services
Culture and recreation

Community and economic development

General government

Internal service funds depreciation is charged te
wvarious Functicns based on their usage of assets

Total depreciation expense—governmental activities

8

437,184

3,874,267

6,425
569,063
97,749
43,995

14,401

$5,043,084
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IOWA
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(7} Capital Asgets - continued

Business-type Activities:

Capital assets, not being
depreciated:

Land

Construction in progress

Total capital assets,
not being depreciated

Capital assets, being
depreciated:
Buildings and structures
Improvements other than
buildings
Machinery and equipment
vehicles
Collection and
distribution systems
Total capital assets
being depreciated

ILess accumulated depreciation

for:
Buildings and structures
Improvements other than
buildings .
Machinery and equipment
vehicles
Collection and
distribution systems
Total accumulated
depreciation

Total capital assets, being
depreciated, net

Business-type activities
capital assets, net

JUNE 30, 2011
Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
4 4,823,362 - % - &5 4,823,362
i4,726,762 2,219,980 13,546,778 3,399,964

§19,550,124

$ 2,219,980

$13,546,778

S 8,223,326

416,191,339 8 - & - 8 16,151,939
3,061,977 - - 3,061,577
2,780,057 143,965 21,911 2,912,111
2,905,041 226,168 134,417 2,996,793

64,548,417 13,626,341 - 78,176,758

509,497,431

$13,998,475

5 156,328

$103,339,578

§ 3,231,522 § 384,624 5 -& 13,616,146
2,847,499 26,029 - 2,873,528
1,633,810 229,730 18,889 1,844,651
1,530,594 241,477 134,415 1,637,656

27,098,309 2,194,103 - 29,293,012

$36,342,334

5 3,075,963

5 153,304

5 39,264,933

$53,155, 097

$10,922,512

5 3,024

§ 64,074,585

§72,705,221

13,142,492

13,549,802

72,297,911

Depreciation expense was charged to the following business-type activitiea:

Business-type activities:

Water works
Sewer rental

Other business-type funds

Total depreciation expense—business-type activities

$1,345,105
1,234,498
496,360

3,075,963
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Pension and Retirement Systems

The City maintains three pension plans for employees in varicus departments.

Towa Public Employees Retirement System

The City contributes to the Iowa Public Employees Retirement System (IPERS)
which is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan

administered by the State of Iowa. IPERS provides retirement and death
benefits which are established by State statute to plan members and
beneficiaries. TPERS issues a publicly available financial report that
includes Ffinancial statements and reguired supplementary information. The

report may be obtained by writing to IPERS, P.0. Box 9117, Des Moines, Iowa,
50306-5117.

Plan members are required to contribute 4.50% of their anmnual salary and the
city is required to contribute 6.95% of annual covered payroll. Contribution
requirements are established by State statute. The City’'s contribution to
IPERS for the years ended June 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009 was $540,431, §509,818,
and $478,135 respectively, equal to the required contribution for each year.

Municipal Fire and Police Retirement System of Iowa

(A} Plan Description

The City is a participating employer in the Municipal Fire and Police
Retirement System of Iowa (MFPRSI), which iz a multi-employexr, cost
gharing, defined benefit pension plan for the exclusive benefit of
eligible employees of participating cities (substantially all full-time
employees of the respective cities’ fire and police departments). MFPRSI
issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial
statements and required supplementary information for MFPRSI. The
financial report may be obtained by writing to the Municipal Fire and
Police Retirement System of Iowa, 2836 104th Street, Des Moines, IA 50322
or by calling 1-515-254-5200.

Member contribution rates are established by statute. For the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2011, members contributed 9.40% of regular earxnable
compensation and the City contributed 19.90% of earnable compensation.
The City’'s contribution to MFPRSI for the years ended June 30, 2011, 2010
and 2009 was &1,032,595, $830,029, and $856,662 regpectively, equal to the
required contributions for each year.

Firemen Pension Plan

(A) Plan Description

The City maintains a contributory defined benefit pension plan for those
individuals previously covered under the provisions of Chapter 410 of the
Tfowa Code. The plan is funded from pension fund reserves. A1l
participants in the plan are presently retired, No information is
available regarding actuarially computed liability or assets. As of

June 30, 2011, there is one individual receiving benefits in the fire
plan.
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CITY OF MASON CITY, IOWA
NOTES T0 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011

Pension and Retirement Systems - continued

A summary of financial information relating to the plan as of June 30,
2011 is as follows:

Fire
Cash and investments 511,821
Fund equity 4,921
Pensions paid 6,576

{B) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Plan Asset Matters

Basis of Accounting

The finaneial statements are prepared using the accrual Dbasis of
accounting. Employer contributions are recognized as revenues for the
period.

Method TUsed to Value Investments

Investments, if any, are non-participating certificates of deposit and are
valued at historical cost.

(C) Trend Information

Firemen Pension Plan

Revenues Expenses
Fiscal Investment Property
Year Income TaxXes Totals Benefits
2011 [ 7 5 - 5 7 % 6,576
2010 76 - 76 6,457
2009 26 25,170 25,198 9,424
2008 - 15,370 15,370 12,147
2007 210 - 2140 11,745
2006 191 - sl 11,432
2005 - - - 11,127
2004 64 3,686 3,760 10,832
2003 723 - 723 10,546
2002 2,659 86 2,745 10,166

Deferred Comgensation Plan

The City offers its employees several deferred compensation plans created in
accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 457. These plans, available to
all City employees, permit them to defer a portion of their salary until
future years. The deferred compensation is not available to employees until
termination, retirement, death, or unforeseeable emergency and participation
in the plan is optional.

The City does not own or administer the amount deferred by employees and,
therefore, the liability and corresponding investment are not reflected in the
bagic financial statements.
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{10) Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt of the City is as follows:

Governmental Business-Type

3.25% to 4.05% Corporate Purpose bond

payable, issued 10/01/02 4 1,630,000 $ -
3.25% to 4.00% Eszential Corporate Purpose

bond payable, issued 10/1/03 410,000 -
3.30% to 3.60% Essential Corporate Purpose

bond payable, issued 10/1/04 994,320 1,055,680
3.50% to 3.60% Essential Corporate Furpose

bond payable, issued 11/1/05 430,000 1,205,000
31.70% to 3.90% Taxable General Obligation

bond payable, issued 8/1/06 1,860,000 -
3,75% Taxable General Obligation hond

payable, issued 9/4/07 955,000 2,240,000
3.95% to 4.10% General Obligation bond

payable, issued 7/1/08 1,910,000 535,000
3.35% to 4.35% General Obligation bond

payable, issued 7/1/08 : 2,570,000 200,000
2.50% to 4.375% Taxable General Obligation

hond payable, issued 7/1/09 8,7%85,000 825,000
1.50% to 2.90% General Obligation bond

payable, issued 8/1/10 1,735,000 980,000
1.00 to 2.B0% General Obligation bond

payable issued 8/1/10 3,630,000 -
1.00% to 1.40% General Obligation bond

payable, issued 8/1/10 420,000 -
2.95% General Obligation Capital Loan

note payable, issued 5/1/08 295,000 -
4.125% General Obligation Capital Loan

note payable, issued 5/5/04 - : 150,887
2.74% Taxable General Obligation Capital

Loan note payable, issued 4/20/10 - 132,000
4.75% to 5.60% Taxable Urban Renewal Tax

Tncrement Revenue bond payable, issued

4/01/03 1,145,000 - -
5.00% Taxable Urban Renewal Tax Increment

Revenue bond payable, issued 7/3/03 88,400 -
1.00% Water Revenue Capital Loan note payable,

issued 2/26/03, callable 6/01/13 at par - 10,239,845
4.00% Water Revenue bond payable, issued

9/1/06 - 1,215,000
4.10% to 4.35% Water Revenue bond payable,

issued 9/1/07 - 995,000
3.90% Sewer Revenue bond payable, issued

9/1/06 - 1,240,000
3.00% Sewer Revenue bond payable, issued

8/15/08 - 11,912,849

Totals 526,867,720 532,936,261
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011

{10) Long-Term Debt - continued

Bonded Debt:
General Obligation Debt

General obligation bonds are direct obligations issued on a pledge of the
general taxing power of the City for the payment of the debt.

There were $32,967,887 of general obligation bonds outstanding as of June 30,
2011. Unmatured general obligation bonds to be paid by governmental funds
totaled $25,634,320. General cbligation bonds to be paid by enterprise revenue
and, therefore, included as Enterprise Fund obligations totaled $7,333,567.

During the year ended June 30, 2011, the city issued $6,775,000 of general
ocbligation bonds. These bonds were used to finance the library renovation and
construction, reconstruction and repair of various public works, parks and
utility-related improvements.

Water and Sewer Revenue Debt

The City issues bonds where the City pledges income derived from the acgquired
or constructed assets to pay debt service. There were 25,602,694 of revenue
bonds outstanding as of June 30, 2011, payable through 2030, The City, as a
requirement of the bonds, maintains certain reserve requirements while these
bonds are outstanding. Thege reserves include a) one-twelfth of the annual
interest and principal due in the succeeding year plus b) the lesser of 10% of
the original note proceeds or the maximum amount of principal and interest due
in any remaining year of the individual issue or 25% of the amount required to
be deposited to a) since issue of the bond. One bond also requires the
reservation of an improvement amount equal to the lesser of 65,000 times the
number of months since issuance or $250,000. The combined total required to he
regerved is $2,207,849. The City has reserved $2,866,968 as of June 30, 2011.
The combined principal and interest paid for the current year and total
customer net revenues were $2,735,047 and $5,633,552, respectively, amounting
to approximately 49% of net revenues.

Tax Increment Financing Revenue Debt

The City issues bonds to finance its contribution to wvarious development
projects in the tax increment districts. The principal and interest on the
bonds are paid with the additional taxes generated by the various development
projects. As of June 30, 2011, there were $1,233,400 of tax increment
financing bonds outstanding.
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{10) Long-Term Debt - continued

Long-term liability activity for the year ended June 30,

General obligation:
Governmental
Business-type

activities:

Water
Sewer

Ambulance
Storm sewer

Revenue;

Governmental tax

increment financing

Business-type:

Water
Sewer

Total

2011, was as follows:

July 1, New June 30, Due Within
2010 Issues Payments 2011 One Year
$22,279,824 $5,785,000 $2,430,504 $25,634,320 2,775,244
2,995,537 390,000 419,142 3,566,395 478,913
3,549,587 - 265,312 3,284,285 369,843
356,890 - 74,003 282,887 77,820
295,000 - 835, 400 200,000 100,000
1,404,774 - 171,374 1,233,400 183,471
13,408,805 10,940 970,000 12,449,845 1,001,000
13,737,373 312,476 897,000 13,152,843 783,000
458,027,900 $£7,098,416 55,322,335 £59,803,981 55,780,393

At Jume 30, 2011, the non-revenue debt issued by the City did not exceed its
legal debt margin computed as follows:

Legal debt margin

Debt 1limit - 5% of total valuation
Debt applicable to debt limit:
General cbligation bonded debt outstanding

Total estimated actual valuation - real property

51,656,947,118

$82,847,356

33,918,400
542,928,556

A summary of bond principal and interest maturities by type of bond is as

follows:
Governmental Business-type Activities @eneral Obligation
General Obligation General Obligatiomn Totals

June 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2012 § 2,775,244 & B68,708 §1,027,676 § 254,731 $3,B802,920 $1,123,439

2013 2,897,520 703,911 1,104,397 220,764 4,001,517 1,004,675

2014 2,489,646 696,938 1,042,404 184,239 3,532,050 881,177

2015 2,551,910 519,293 1,034,090 149,838 3,586,000 769,131

2016 2,365,000 540,360 740,000 115,039 3,105,000 655,383
2017-2021 8,600,000 1,609,012 1,935,000 305,059 10,535,000 1,914,071
2022-2026 2,300,000 650,385 450,000 28,086 2,750,000 678,471
2027-2031 1,655,000 145,187 - - 1,655,000 145,187
525,634,320 $5,913,794 57,333,567 $1,257,756 532,967,887 57,171,550

Governmental Business-type Activities Revenue CObligation
Revenue Obligation Revenue Obligation Totals

June 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2012 § 183,471 5 85,1289 5 1,794,000 808,600 5 1,977,471 5 B73,72%

2013 189,929 55,5932 1,862,000 745,420 2,051,929 805,352

2014 155,000 46,289 1,522,000 §87,850 2,077,000 734,139

2015 165,000 38,383 1,992,000 624,220 2,157,000 662,603

2016 170,000 29,720 1,719,000 558,165 1,889,000 587, BAS
2017-2021 37¢,000 31,180 8,319,000 1,872,340 8,689,000 2,003,520
2022-2026 - - 5,676,000 Bo6,760 5,676,000 BO&, 760
2027-2031 - - 2,517,000 152,640 2,517,000 152,640
51,233,400 5266,633 $25,801, 000 $6,359,995 $27,034,400 56,626,628
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{10) Long-Term Debt - continued

(11)

(12)

Industrial Revenue Bonds

From time to time, the City has issued Industrial Revenue Bonds to provide
fipancial assistance to private-sector entities for the acquisition and
construction of industrial and commercial facilities deemed to be in the
public interest. The bonds are secured by the property financed and are
payable sclely £from paywments received on the underlying mortgage loans. Upon
repayment of the bonds, ownership of the acquired facilities transfers to the
private-sector entity served by the bend issuance. Neither the City, the.
State, nor any political subdivision thereof is obligated in any manner for
repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as liabilities
in the accompanying financial statements.

as of June 30, 2011, there was omne series of Industrial Revenue Bonds
oputstanding, with a principal amount payable of $4,900,000.

Contingent Liabilities

The City is a defendant in several lawsuits. The City Attorney estimates that
the potential claims not covered by insurance resulting from these claims
would not materially affect the finanecial position of the City.

Under the terms of federal and state grants, periodic audits are required and
certain costs may be questioned as not being appropriate expenditures under

the terms of the grants. queh audits could lead to reimbursement to the
grantor agencies. City management believes disallowances, if any, will be
immaterial.

Sales and payroll taxes collected from customers and employees respectively,
are subject to audit by federal and state governments. Any adjustments in
these amounts may constitute a liability of the city. The amount of changes,
if any, made by federal or state governments cannot be determined at this

time.

Rigk Management

Bs of July 1, 1993 the City established a self-insured medical plan for City
employees and families. The plan is administered by and an administration fee
paid to Blue Cxoss and Blue Shield of Towa. The City is responsible for
individual participant coverage of up to $100,000 of claims annually.
Tondividual claims in excess of $100,000 and aggregate group claims in excess
of approximately $2,916,153 for the year ended June 30, 2011 are covered by
commercial insurance. *

a1l funds of the City participate in the program and make payments to the
Employee Health Care Fund (an Tnternal Service Fund) based on premiums
recommended by the program administrator based on historical information. The
premiums are based on the amounts needed to pay current year claims and
provide a reserve for claims incurred but not reported during the current

vear.
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CITY OF MASON CITY, IOWA
NOTES TO FINANCIAIL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011

Risk Management - continued

The City has adopted Government Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 10,
which requires that a liability for claims be reported if information prior to
the issuance of the financial statements indicated that it is probable that a
liability has been incurred at the date of the financial statements and the
amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. Tncluded in the claims
liability at June 30, 2011 is $543,200 for claims incurred but not reported at
that date. Changes in the fund's claims liability amount in fiscal 2011 is as
follows:

Beginning of Current year End of
figcal year claims and changes Claim fiscal year
liability in estimates payments liability
Current year $653,818 52,585,029 52,530,145 $708,702
Prior year 623,000 2,378,012 2,347,184 653,818

In addition to health risks losses, the City is exposed to various other risks
of losses related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets;
errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and matural dismasters. ‘The City
covers these risks through commercial claims-made dinsurance policies. The
costs of this insurance are paid by the general fund and the enterprise funds.
There have been no substantial reductions in coverage £rom prior years.
gettled claims from these risks have exceeded commercial insurance coverage
due to the flood of June, 2008. However, aubstantially all excess costs were
reimbursed by disaster grants administered by the State of Iowa and FEMA.

Deficit Fund Balances/Net Assets

The basic Ffinancial statements include individual fund deficits a= Efollows:

Special Revenue Fund:

Westside TIF 5 55,756
5. Eisenhower TIF 42,002
Gateway TIF 26, 958
HMGPE Voluntary Acquisition 438,455
¥M2 Voluntary Acquisition 127,202
Softball Improvement Trust 7,491
CEBA 355
Debt Service Fund 121,160
Capital Projects Fund:
19" Street SW Overpass 372,547

The defiecits in the Westside TIF, 5. Eisenhower TIF and Gateway TIF funds will
eventually be eliminated through the retention of property tax proceeds rather
than the reinvestment in current projects or debt reduction.

The deficit balances in the HMGP Voluntary Acguisition, FMA Voluntary
Acquisition, CEBA and Softball Improvement Funds will be eliminated by
interfund transfers from the General Fund and grant proceeds.

The Debt Service fund deficit will be eliminated by property tax receipts and
bond proceeds.

w B1 =
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CITY OF MASON CITY, TIOWA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011

Termination Benefits

As of June 30, 2011, the City had one terminated employee participating in
COBRA health care coverage available from the City. COBRA participants pay
100% of the premium Ffor continuing coverage. COBRA continuation coverage
benefits are available for eligible employees for 18 months. Upon
termination, employees are paid for compensated absences that have bheen
acerued up to termination date.

Oother Postemployment Benefits

Plan Descriptions and Funding Policy

The City sponsors a single-employex health care plan that provides self-
insured medical and prescription drug coverage to all active and retired
employees and their eligible dependents. Employees must be a minimum of 55
years old and currently be enrolled in the sponsored health insurance plan at
the time of retirement to participate. Benefits terminate upon attaining
Medicare eligibility.

Eligible retirees receive health care coverage through the same plan that is
available for active employees.

Contributions are required for both retiree and dependent coverage. The
retiree contributions are based on and egual to the historical full cost of
active members. Retiree expenses are then offset by monthly contributions.

Funding Policy

The City, with assistance from their third-party administrators, establishes
and amends contribution regquirements for both active and retiree members on an
annual basis. The current funding peolicy is to pay health claims as they
occur. This arrangement does not qualify as OFER plan assets under GASB for
current GASB reporting.

The reguired contribution is based on pay-as-you-go financing. For £iscal
year 2011, the City contributed $31,575 and retirees receiving benefita
contributed $188,410 through their regquired contributions.

Anoual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation

The City'’s annual other postemployment benefit (OPEB) cost {expense) is based
on the annual regquired contribution of the employer ({ARC), an amount
actuarially determined imn accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 45.
Fiscal year 2010 was the year of implementation for GASBE Statement 45. The
ARC represents a level of funding that, 1f paid on an ongoing basils, is
projected to cover the normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded
actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty
yeara. The following schedule shows the components of the annual OFEB cost
for the year, the amount actually contributed to the plan, and changes in the
net OPER obligation.
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(15) Other Postemployment Benefits - continued

Annual required contribution 5136,940
Interest on net OPEB obligation 7,057
Adjustment to annual required contribution {10,964)
Annual OPEB cost/expense $133,033
Contributions and payments made {31,575}
Increase in net OPEB obligation $101,458
Net OPER obligation July 1, 2010 282,274
Net OPEB obligation June 30, 2011 53B3,732

The City’'s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to
the plan, and the net OPEB obligation for fiscal year 2011:

Percentage
of annual
Annual OPEB Cost Net OPEB
Figcal Year Ended OPEB Cost Contributed Cbligation
June 30, 2011 £133,033 23.7% $383,732

Funded Status and Funding Progress

As of July 1, 2009, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the actuarial
accerued liability (AAL) and unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL} for

benefits was $988,388. The City‘s plan is considered to be unfunded =ince
there are no assets and retiree benefits are paid anmially on a cash basgis.
Because the plans are unfunded, the AAL and UAAL are equal. The covered

payroll (fiscal year payroll of active employees covered by the plan} was
513,670,291, and the ratio of the URAL to the covered payroll was 7.23%.

potuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of
reported amounte and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events
far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future employment,
mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the
funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the
employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with
past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. A schedule of
funding progress is required to be present as supplementary information
following the notes to the financial statements.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the
substantive plan {the plan as understood by the employer and the plan members)
and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and
the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and
plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used
include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term
volatility in actuarial accrued 1iabilities and the actuarial value of assets,
consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.

In the July 1, 2009 actuarial valuation, entry age normal actuarial cost
method was used. The actuarial assumptions included a 2.5% discount rate
assuming funding on a pay as you go basis and an annual combined inflation and
healtheare cost trend rate of &6%.
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Other Postemployment Benefits - continued

The amortization of the UAAL is being amortized as a level percentage of
projected payrolls over a thirty-year time period.

Commitments

At June 30, 2011, the following construction and purchase commitments had been
made:

Total Costs
Contracts Incurred

Street projects 511,753,034 § 4,787,428
Library projects 7,842,064 B,644,883
Storm sewer projects 4,015,098 645,721
Sanitary sewer projects 2,890,098 2,513,294
Water projects 577,476 236,282
Flood buyout demolition projects 298,313 156,516
Police department projects 52,918 -
Parks and recreation projects 57,000 g, 152
Fire department projects 52,232 ig,432
Ambulance projects 25,632 19,250
Other 86,145 32,497

Total 427,690,010 517,112,453

Related Party Transactions

The City had material business transactions between the City and City
officials, totaling &5,745,622 during the year ended June 30, 2011 of which
45,599,606 was competitively bid.

Fund Balances

In fiscal vyear 2011, the City adopted GASB Statement No. 54 Fund Balance
Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions. The statement establishes

. uriteria for classifying fund  balances into specifically defined

classifications and clarifies definitions for governmental fund types. The
details For the City’s fund balance are the following:

HMGPE
Voluntary Road Use Nonmajor
General Acquisition Tax Governmental  Total
Nenspendable: _
Endowment principal S - 5 - £} - 5 633,638 5§ 533,638
Prepaid expenses 139,912 - 11,441 - 151,353
Total nonspendable $ 139,912 5 - ] 11,441 8 633,638 § 784,851
Restricted for:
Streets and road
construction 5 - [ - £1,B46,986 8 - 4§ 1,846,986

Employee benefits - - 6,030,062 6,030,062

Economic develcpment

projects - - - 1,855,764 1,B55,764
Grant qualified
projects - - - 16,895 16,895
Street and park
improvements - - - 1,609,033 1,609,033
Museum funding - - - 169,754 169,754
Cemetery perpetual care - - - 518,996 518,956
Tort liability 1,316,949 - - - 1,316,943
Total restricted $1,316,949 5 - 41,846,986 510,230,504 513,394,439
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(18) Fund Balances - continued

{19)

(20)

(21)

HMGP
Voluntary Road Use Nonmaior
General Acquisition Tax Governmental Total

Assigned for:
Airport 5 474,153 [ - [ - & - 5 474,153
Museum - - - 871,786 871,786
Library - - - 456,370 456,370
Youth softball complex - - - 53,547 53,547
Total assigned § 474,153 5 - 5 - $ 1,381,703 &% 1,854,856
TUnasgigned $5,125, 768 $(438,455) § - & (953,471)% 3,733,842

Total fund balance 57,056,782 5(438,455) 1,858,427 511,292,374 519,768,128

Budget Overexpenditure

Per the Code of Iowa, disbursements wmay wnot legally exceed budgeted
appropriations at the program level. During the year ended June 30, 2011,
disbursements in the Public Works program exceeded the amount budgeted.

Subsequent Events

In preparing thegse financial statements, the City has evaluated events and
transactions for potential recognition or disclosure through January 13, 2012,
the date the financial statements were issued.

The City awarded contracts subsequent to June 30 for the following projects:

Street projects 5193,523
Community and economic development projects 183,214
Ambulance projects 148,767
Water projects BO,374
Park and recreation projects 71,4989
Police department projects 50,793
Oother projects 247,604

§875,774

The City issued %1,400,000 of general cbligation bonds dated August 1, 2011
payable over a ten-year period at interest rates ranging from 0.5% to 2.8%.

The City issued $2,950,000 of general obligation refunding bonds dated
Augqust 1, 2011 payable over a seven-year period at interest rates ranging from
0.45% to 1.85%, to refund outstanding bond issues in the future.

New Governmental Accounting Standerds Board {(GASB) Standards

The City has implemented the following GASB standards during the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2011:

GASE Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type
Definitions. This Statement is intended to improve the usefulness of
information provided to financial xeport users about fund balances by
providing c¢learer, more structured fund balance classifications, and by
clarifying the definitions of existing governmental fund types. The new
standard establishes a hierarchy of fund balance classification based
primarily on the extent to which a government is bound to observe spending
constraints. As described in Note 18 to the basic financial statements, the
city reclassified the fund balances for all governmental funds as a result of
the implementation of this Statement.
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New Governmental Accounting_Standards Board (GASB) Standards - continued

GASE Statement No. 59, Financial Instruments Omnibus. This Statement is
intended to update and improve the existing standards regarding financial
reporting of certain finanecial instruments and external investment pools. The
adoption of this Statement had no effect on the city in the current year.

The CGovernmental Accounting Standards Board {GASB) has issued six statements
not yet implemented by the City. The statements, which might impact the City
are aa follows:

Statement No. 57, OPEB Measurements by Agent Employers and Agent Multiple-
Employer Flans; issued December 2003, will be effective for the fiscal year
ending June 30, 2012. This Statement permits an agent employer that has an
individual-employer OPEB plan with fewer than 100 total plan members to use
the alternative measurement method. '

Statement No. 60, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Service Concession
Arrangements; issued November 2010, will be effective for the £iscal year

ending June 30, 2013. The objective of this Statement is to improve financial
reporting by addressing issues related to service concession arrangements.

Statement No. 61, The Finaneial Reporting Entity: Omnibus - an amendment of
GASH Statements No. 14 and No. 34; issued November 2010, will be effective for
the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013. The objective of this Statement is to
improve financial reporting for a governmental financial reporting entity.

Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting and Finanecial Reporting Guidance
Contained in Pre-November 30, 1985 FASH and ATCPEA Pronouncements; issued
December 2010, will be effective for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013.
The objective of this Statement is to incorporate into the GASB’'s
authoritative literature certain accounting and financial reporting guidance.

Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources,
pDeferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Pogition; issued June 2011, will be
effective for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013. This Statement amends the
net asset reporting reguirements in Statement No. 34, Basic Financial
sratements—and Management’s Discussion and Analysis—for State and Local
Governments, and other pronouncements by incorporating deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources into the definitions of the
required components of the residual measure and by renaming that measure as
net position, rather than net assets.

Statement No. 64, Derivative Instruments: Application of Hedge Accounting
Termination Provision—an amendment to GASB Statement No. 53; issued June 2011,
will be effective for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2012. The objective of
this Statement is to clarify whether an effective hedging relationship
continues after the zreplacement of & swap counterparty or a swap
counterparty’s credit support provider.

The City’s management has not yet determined the effect these statements will

‘have on the City‘s financial statements.
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CITY OF MASON CITY,

IOWA

OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT FLAN
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING FPROGRESS

Actuarial UAAL as a
Actuarial Accrued Unfunded FPercentage
Figecal Actuarial Value of Liability (Overfunded) Funded Covered of Covered
‘Year Valuation Asgets (AAYL) AAL {UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Ended Date {a) (b} (b-a) {a/b} {c) [({b-a)/c}]
2011 7/1/2008 5 - £988,388 5988, 388 0.00% 13,670,281 7.23%
2010 7/1/2009 - 973,974 973,974 0.00 13,410,686 7.26
20089 7/1/2009 - 937,435 937,435 0.00 13,144,648 7.41
45.

Figecal year 2009 is the transition year for GASB Statement No.

The information

part of the actuarial valuations as of July 1, 2003,

The cost meth
method.

There are no plan assetbs.

Economic assumptions are as follows:

rate of 6%; discount rate of 2.5%.
The amortization method is open period, level dollar.

presented in the required supplementary schedule was determined as

od used to determine the ARC is the frozen entry age actuarial cost

combined inflation and health care cost trend
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GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS



ASSETS:
Cash
Investments
Receivables:
Property taxes
Accrued interest
Accounts recelvable
Notes
Due from other funds
Due from state government
Restricted assets:
Cash
Inveatments
Acerued interest
Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE:
Liabilities:

Accounts payable

Salaries payable

Contracts payable

Due to other funds

Due to state government

Deferred revenue

Total liabilities

Fund balance:
Nonspendable
Restricted
Agsigned
Unassigned
Total fund balance

QITY OF MASON CITY, IOWA
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
AS OF JUNE 30, 2011

FMA Community
Voluntary Growth
Acquisition TIF
s - 5 462,350

- 7,484
- 112
- 10,000
- 1,942,743

511,866 -
§ 511,868 52,422,689
5 933 g 59,840

28,077 484,223

810,058 301
$ 839,068 § 544,364
8 - -

- 1,878,325
(327,202) -
5{327,202) §1,878,325
42,422,689

Total liabilities and fund balance 4 511,866

{continued)
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Westside
TIF

<r
1

£t
1

(55,756)
$(55,756)

§ 12,033



Forest

Park TIF

47,439

SCHEDULE 1

South

Gateway Eisenhower Police Fire Employee

TIF TIF Retirement Retirement Retirement
] - 4 - % 115,781 $ 210,065 $298, 915
- - 2,982,285 2,287,065 -
18,089 - 486,357 402,573 403,105
- - 3,662 3,415 -
- - 13,125 - 111,285
$ 18,089 ] - 53,601,210 $2,903,118 $813,305
% 25,814 $ - B - % - $ -
- 31,321 - - -
19,233 10,681 - 13,125 -
- - 482,293 399, 027 393,126
5 45,047 § 42,002 § 482,293 5 412,152 $393,126
: - $ -8 -8 - -
- - 3,118,917 2,490, 966 420,179
{26,958) (42,002) - - -
%{26,958) 5{42,002) $3,118,817 52,490,966 5420,175
$ 18,089 ] - 53,601,210 $2,903,118 $813,305




CITY OF MASON CITY,
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

AS OF JUNE 30, 2011

Library
Trust
ASSETS:
Ccash $115,461
Investments 31398,523
Receivables:
Property taxes -
Accrued interest 359
Accounts receivable -
Notes -
Due from other funds 1,803
Due from state government -
Restricted assets:
Cash -
Investments -
Accrued interest -
Total assets 5457,146
L, IABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE:
Liabilities:
Accounts payable s 1,776
Salaries payable -
Contracts payable -
Due to other funds -
Due to state government -
Deferred revenue -
Total liabilities $ 1,776
Fund balance:
Nonspendable ] -
Restricted -
Assigned 455,370
Unassigned -
Total fund balance §455,370
Total liabilities and fund balance $457,146
{continued)

- 70

IOWA

MacNider Other
Museum Special
Foundation Revenue
$329,260 & 76,0893
542,526 -
- 721
- 64,715
$871,786 $141,529
5 - 5 55,182
- 3,588
- 15,439
- 726
5 - § 78,933
$ - $ -
- 16,8585
871,786 53,547
- (7,.846)
5871,786 $ 62,596
B71,786 141,529



SCHEDULE 1

(continued)

Total L.ocal Option Total Cemetery

Special Debt 19 sStreet Capital capital FPerpetual
Revenue Sexrvice 8W Overpasgs Improvement Project Care

§ 1,615,364 8 - 5 - 4 717,856 5 717,856 5 -

6,151,399 - - 750,000 750,000 -

1,317,608 3,069,577 - - - -

7,548 - - 662 662 =

12,754 - - - - -

10,000 - - - - -

2,068,956 21,685 - - - 103,645

576,581 - 196,437 152,856 349,333 -

- - - - - 5,438

- - - - - 502,924

- - - - - 649

$11,760,210 $3,081,262 $ 196,437 $1,621,414 $1,817,851 5612,656

5 147,545 & 2,500 5 171 & 12,381 & 12,552 5 -

3,586 - - - - -

543,621 - 30,000 - 30,000 -

936,626 182,208 538,813 - 538,813 93,660

726 - - - - -

1,274,446 3,027,714 - - - -

§ 2,906,550 53,212,422 5 568,984 ] 12,381 § S5B1,365 5 93,660

-~ % - $ - - - $ -

7,932,721 - - 1,609,033 1,609,033 518,996

1,380,703 - - - - -

{459, 764) {121,160} {372,547) - {372,547) -

§ B,B53,660 $ (121,160) % (372,547) $1,609,033 $1,236,486 5518, 986

£$11,760,210 £3,091,262 $ 196,437 $1,621,414 $1,817,851 8612,656
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SCHEDULE 1

(continued)
CITY OF MASON CITY, IOWA
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
COMBINING BALAWNCE SHEET
AS OF JUNE 30, 2011
MacNider Total
Museum Total Nounmajor
Trust Rermanent Governmental
ASSETS:
Casgh 5168,861 § 168,861 § 2,502,081
Investments 633,638 633,638 7,535,037
Receivables:
Property taxes - - 4,387,185
Acerued interest 893 893 9,103
Accounts receivable - - 12,754
Notes - - 10,000
Due from other funds - 103,645 2,154,286
Due from state government - - 925,914
Restricted assets:
Cash - 5,438 5,438
Investments - 502,924 502,924
Zcorued interest - 649 649
Total assets £803,392 $1,416,048 518,085,371
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE:
Liabilities:
Accounts payable ] - - 5 162,597
Salaries payable - - 3,586
Contracts payahle - - 573,621
Due to other funds - 93,660 1,751,307
pue to state govermment - - 726
Deferred revenue - - 4,302,160
Total liabilities 5 - 4 93,660 4% 6,793,997
Fund halance:
Nonspendable £633,638 % 633,638 & 633,638
Restricted 169,754 688,750 10,230,504
Assigned - - 1,380,703
Unasgigned - - {953,471}
Total fund balance $803,392 51,322,388 511,281,374
Total liabilities and fund balance £803,392 $1,416,048 418,085,371

See Accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report.
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CITY OF MASON CITY, TOWA

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

FMA Community
Voluntary Growth Westside
Acgquisition TLF TLF
REVENUES:
Property taxes $ - 5 - 5 -
TIF revenues - 910,660 231
Other taxes - - -
Intergovernmental 511,866 - -
Charges for service - - 60,760
Use of money and property - 5,247 37
Miscellaneous - 10,000 -
Total revenues 5 511,866 -] 925,907 $ 61,028
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Public safety 8 - 5 - [ -
Public works - - -
Health & social services - - -
Culture & recreation - - -
Community & economic development 579,882 3,155,572 -
General government - - -
Capital projects - - -
Debt service:
Principal retirement - - -
Interest - - -
Contractual - - -
Total expenditures 4 579,882 $ 3,155,572 ) -
Excesg {deficiency) of revenues
over {(under) expenditures s (68,016) ${2,229,665) & 61,028
Other financing sources (uses):
Issuance of general obligation bonds 5 - 5 4,050,000 & -
Premium/discount on bonds - {22,571} -
Transfers in - - -
Transfers out - {390,490) -
Total other financing sources
(uses) S - § 3,636,939 5 -
Net change in fund balances & (68,016) $ 1,407,274 $ 61,028
Fund balance beginning of year (259, 186) 471,051 {116,784)
Fund balance end of year 4(327,202) 51,878,325 4 (55,756)
{continued)

- 73 -



SCHEDULE 2

South
Forest Gateway Eigenhower Police Fire Employee
Park TIF TIF TIF Retirement Retirement Retirement
8 - & - 5 - $ 324,106 $ 282,857 $471,252
- 527,757 - - - -
- - - 14,378 31,226 -
- 19,715 97,206 - - -
5 - - $547,472 § 97,206 5 338,484 S 314,083 5471 ,252
g - $ - $ - 4 548,132 4 379,848 $156, 666
- - - - - 41,600
- - - - - 29,008
- - - - - 97,489
825 596,270 750 - - 28,026
- - - - - 114,425
- - 138,458 - - -
4 B25 5586,270 5139,208 S 548,132 5 379,848 5467,214
s {825) 5(48,798) §{42,002) & {209,648} $ (65,765) 5 4,038
% - $ - $ - g - 8 - 5 -
% - § - 5 - $ - 8 - 5 -
5 (825) $(48,798) £(42,002) & (209,648) 4 (65,765) $ 4,038
8,264 2),840 - 3,328,565 2,556,731 416,141
$7,439 5(26,958) ${42,002) $3,118,9817 52,490,968 $420,179
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CITY OF MASON CITY, ICWA

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXFENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

REVENUES :
Property taxes
TIF revenues
Other taxes
Intergovernmental
Charges for service
Use of money and property
Miscellaneous
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:

Current:
Public safety
Fublic works
Health and soclal services
culture and recreation
Community & economic development
General government

Library

Trust

$ -

(3,324)
69,482
$ 66,168

Capital projects
Debt service:
Principal retirement -
Interest -
Contractual -
Total expenditures § 82,940
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under} expenditures 5(le,772)
Other financing sources (uses):
Tssuance of general obligation bonds 5 -
Premium/discount on bonds -
Transfers in -
Transfers out (57,800}
Total other financing sources
{uses) 5{57,800]}
Net change in fund balances §{74,572)
Fund balance beginning of year 529,942
fund balance end of year £455,370
{continued)
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MacNider
Museum

Foundation

$ -

133,711
31,614
§165,325

5 36,856

$128,469

5128,469

743,317

$871,786

Other
Special

Revenue

$ -

188,726
17,380
30,587

7,376
5044,069

$242,091

$ 1,978

13
3

s 1,978
60,618

$ 62,596



SCHEDULE 2

{continued}

Total Local Option Total Cemetery

Special Debt 158 Street Capital Capital Perpetual
Revenue Service SW Overpases Improvement Project Care

$ 1,078,215 52,786,536 ] - 8 - 8 - 5 -

1,438,648 - - - - -

- - - 1,720,078 1,720,079 -

700,592 - 918 200,000 200,918 -

78,140 - - - - B,219

211,862 3,471 - 2,947 2,547 -

235,403 - - - - -

$ 3,742,860 $2,790,007 5 918 5 1,923,026 § 1,923,944 s 8,219

$ 1,084,646 $ - $ - $ - 5 - % -

41,600 - - - - -

29,008 - - - - -

239,704 - - - - -

4,550,294 - - - - -

114,425 - - - - -

169,161 - {1,442) 192,496 191,054 -

- 2,601,875 - - - -

- 993,656 - - - -

- 41,578 - - - -

S 6,228,838 $3,637,108 8 {1,442) 5 192,486 5 191,054 3 -

4(2,485,978) 5 {B47,102) ] 2,360 ¢ 1,730,530 § 1,732,880 5 §,219

% 4,050,000 4 169,500 & - g - [ - % -

(22,571} (9,446) - - - -

- 541,257 - - - -

(448,290) {37,000) - {1,150,768) (1,150,768} -

s 3,579,138 5 664,311 =] - ${1,150,768) {1,150, 768) ] -

$ 1,093,161 5 (18B2,791) -3 2,360 5 579,762 5 582,122 s 8,219

7,760,499 61,631 (374,907) 1,029,271 654,364 510,777

4 8,853,660 $ {121,160} 4(372,547) $ 1,609,033 § 1,236,486 $518,996
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CITY OF MASON CITY, IOWA

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SCHEDULE 2
(continued)

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

2011

Total
Total Nonmajor
Permanent Governmental

8§ - & 3,864,751
- 1,438,648

- 1,720,079

- 901,510

8,219 86,359
9,010 227,290
34,587 269,990

5 51,816 § 8,508,827

8 - & 1,0B4,646
- 41,600

- 29,008

10,572 250,276

- 4,550,294

- 114,425

- 360,215

- 2,601,875
- 993, 656
- 41,578

$ 10,572 $10,067,573

5 41,244 (1,558, 946}

8 - 5 4,219,500
- (32,017

- 541,257

(33,354) {1,669,412)

5 (33,354) § 3,059,328

g 7,890 & 1,500,382

1,314,498 9,790,992

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,
MacNider
Museum
Trust
REVENUES:
Droperty taxes 5 -
TIF revenues -
Other taxes -
Intergovernmental -
Charges for services -
Use of momney and property 9,010
Miscellaneous 34,587
Total revenues 4 43,597
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Public safety 3 -
Public works -
Health & sogial services -
Culture & recreation 10,572
Community & economic development -
General government -
Capital projects -
Debt service:
Principal retirement -
Interest -
Contractual -
Total expenditures 5 10,572
Excess {(deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures & 33,025
Other financing sources (uses):
Issuance of general obligation bonds s -
Premium/Discount on bonds : -
Tranafers in -
Transfers out {33,354)
Total other financing sources
{uses) $(33,354)
Net change in fund balances 3 {329)
Fund balance beginning of year B03,721
Fund balance end of year £803,392

51,322,388 $11,291,374

See Accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report.
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CITY OF MASON

CITY, IOWA

FMA VOLUNTARY ACQUISITION SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

BUDGET TO

ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,

Final
Budget
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental:
Federal assistance $1,350,000
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Community & economic development:
Contractual 41,350,000
Commodities -
Total expenditures 51,350,000
Net change in fund balance 8 -
Fund balance beginning of year -
Fund balance end of year 8 -

SCHEDULE 3

See Accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report.
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Variance
With Budget

Pogitive

Actual {Negative)
$ 511,866 5({838,134)
§ 440,183 5 909,817
139,699 (139,699)

5 579,882 5 776,118
4% (eB,018) s (68,016)
{(259,186) (259,188}
327.,202) 327,202)



CITY OF MASON CITY, IOWA

COMMUNITY GROWTH TIF SPECTIAL REVENUE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET TO ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,

REVENUES:
TIF revenues
Intergovernmental
Use of money and property
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Community & economic development:
Personal services
Contractual
Commodities
Total expenditures

Excess {(deficiency) of revenules
over {under) expenditures

Other Financing sources (uses):
Issuance of bonds
Transfers out
Total other financing sources
{uses)
Net change in fund balance

Fund balance beginning of year

Fund balance end of year

SCHEDULE 4

2011

Variance

With Budget

Final Pogitive
Budget Actual {Negative)

5 868,288 8 910,660 s 42,372
100,000 - (100,000)

- 5,247 ''5,247

- 140,000 10,000
-] 968,288 5 925,807 5 (42,381)
& - 14 § {14)
5,328,097 3,153,814 2,174,283
- 1,744 (1,744)

& 5,328,097 5 3,155,572 52,172,525
$(4,359,809)} $(2,229,665) 52,130,144
% 4,650,000 5 4,027,429 5 (622,571)
(338,182) {390,490) {52,308)

5 4,311,818

s 3,636,939

& (674,879)

& (47,991} 5 1,407,274 51,455,265
- 471,051 471,051
s (47,991) $.1,878,325 1,926,316

See Accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report.
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SCHEDULE 5

CITY OF MASON CITY, IOWA
FOREST PARK TIF SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET TO ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Variance
with Budget
Final Pogitive
Budget Actual (Negative)
REVENUES:
None 5 - 5 - ] -
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Community & economic development:
Contractual £ 2,000 -] - §2,000
Commodities - 825 (B825)
Total community & economic
development . § 2,000 § 825 1,175
Net change in fund balance 5(2,000) 5 {B25) 1,175
Fund balance beginning of year - 8,264 8,264
Fund balance end of year 4$(2,000) £7,439 49,439

Bee Accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report.
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CITY OF MASON CITY,
GATEWAY TIF SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

TOwWa

SCHEDULE 6

4CHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET TC ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,

REVENUES:
TIF revenues
Intergovernmental
Miscellaneocus

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Community & economic development:
Conktractual :
Net change in fund balance

Fund balance beginning of year

Fund balance end of year

Final
Budget

5511,545
5,395

5516, 940

§516,940

2011

Variance

With Budget
Positive

Actual (Negative)
527,757 % 16,212
- {5,395)
19,715 19,715
5547,472 4 30,532
5596,270 5(79,330)
$(48,798) $(48,798)
21,840 21,840
5(26,958) %(26,958)

See Accompanying Independent Auditor’g Report.
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CITY OF MASON CITY¥, TIOWA

©. EISENHOWER TIF SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET TO ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

REVENUES :
Intergovernmental
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Community & economic development:
Commodities

Capital projects
Total expenditures

Net change in fund balance
Fund balance begimning of year

Fund balance end of year

Final

Budget

$108,000

$108,000

108,000
$108,000

SCEEDULE 7

Variance
With Budget
Poagitive
Actual (Negative)
3 - &{108,000)
97,206 97,206
s 97,206 ] (10,794}
& 750 & {750)
138,458 (30,458}
5139,208 5 {31,208)
5(42,002) & (22,002)

$(42,002) $ (42,002)

gee Accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report.
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CITY OF MASON CITY, ICWA

POLICE RETIREMENT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE —
BUDGET TO ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,

REVENUES :
Property taxes
Other taxes
Use of money and property:
Interest on investments
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Public safety:
Pension contributions
Net change in fund balance

Fund balance beginning of year

Fund balance end of year

SCHEDULE B

2011

Variance
With Budget

Final Poeitive
Budget Actual (Negative)

$ 323,426 § 324,106 8 680
6,574 - (6,574}
130,000 14,378 {115,622)
$ 460,000 & 338,484 & (121,516)
5 560,000 5 548,132 S 11,868
4(100,000) 5 (209,648) 5 (109,648)
- 3,328,565 3,328,565
$({100,000) $3,118,917 43,218,917

See Accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report.
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CITY OF MASON CITY, IOWA

FIRE RETIREMENT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET TO ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

REVENUES:
Property taxes
Other taxes
Uze of money and property:
Tnterest on investments
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Public safety:
Pension contributions
Net change in fund balance

Fund balance beginning of year

Fund balance end of year

SCHEDULE 9

Variance
With Budget

Final Positive
Budget Actual {Negative)
$ 282,262 5 282,857 5985
5,738 - (5,738)
100,000 31,226 {68,774}
$ 388,000 5 314,083 5 {73,917)
5 488,000 5 379,848 % 108,152
$(100,000) $ (65,765) 5 34,235
- 2,556,731 2,556,731
$(100,000) $2,490,966 $2,590,966

See Accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report.
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SCHEDULE 10

CITY OF MASON CITY, IOWA
EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET TO ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Variance
With Budget
Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
REVENUES:
Property taxes 5456,210 5471,252 5 15,042
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Public safety $146,425 $156, 666 $(10,241)
Public works 42,577 41,600 977
Health & social services 29,952 29,008 944
Culture & recreation 96, 856 97,489 {533)
Community & economic development 26,656 28,026 {1,370)
General government 122,918 114,425 B,493
Total expenditures 4465, 484 $467,214 § (1,730)
Net change in fund balance & (9,274) 4 4,038 § 13,312
Fund balance beginning of year - 416,141 416,141
Fund balance end of year § (9,274) £420,179 $429,452

See Accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report.
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CITY QF MASON CITY,
LIBRARY TRUST SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

IOWA

SCHEDULE 11

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET TO ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,

REVENUES:
Charges for service
UUse of money and property
Contributions
Misecellaneous

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Culture & recreation:
Personal service
Contractual
Commodities
Total culture & recreation

Capital projects
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Tranafers out

Net change in fund balance
Fund balance beginning of year

Fund balance end of year

2011

Final

Budget

5 2,500
10,000

11,000
5 23,500

$ 11,000
7,000
16,000

§ 34,000

§ 34,000

$(10,500)

${10,500)

$(10,500)

Actuzl

{3,324)
69,482

S 66,168

3ag, 787
18,588

$ 57,376

25,564

5 82,940

§(16,772)

57,800

5(74,572)

529,942

$455,370

See Accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report.
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Variance
With Budget
Posgitive

(Negative)
% (2,500)
(13,324)
69,492

(11,000)
§ 42,668

$ 11,000
(31,787)
{2,589)
5(23,376)
(25,564)
§(48,940)
$ {6,272)

$({57,800)
5(64,072)
529,942

465,870



SCHEDULE 12

CITY OF MASON CITY, IOWA
ADDI SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET TO ACTUATL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Variance
With Budget
Final Pogitive
Budget Actual {(Negative}
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental:
Federal assistance 332,500 536,226 5{296,274)
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Community and economic development:
Personal service § 12,350 4 5,731 5 6,618
Contractual 320,150 30,738 289,412
Commodities - 8 {B)
Total expenditures $332,500 835,477 $ 296,023
Net change in fund balance 8 - § {251) 5 {251}
Fund balance beginning of vear - 3,525 3,525
Fund balance end of year 5 - 5 3,274 S 3,274

See Accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report.
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CITY OF MASON CITY, IOWA
SOFTBALL IMPROVEMENT TRUST SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

BUDGET TO ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,

REVENUES :
Charges for service
Use of money and property
Miscellaneous
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Culture & recreation:

Personal service

Contractual

Commodities

Other

Total culture & recreation

Capital projects
Total expenditures

Net change in fund balance
Fund balance beginning of year

Fund balance end of year

Final
Budget

$28,137

500
528,637

5 -
2,630
2,800
6,500
$11,830

18,207
530,137

${1,500)

$(1,500)

2011

SCHEDULE 13

See Accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report.
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Variance
With Budget
FPogitive
Actual (Negative)
5 5,528 5(22,609)
10,418 10,418
95 (405)
5 16,041 $(12,596)
5 11,304 $(11,304)
368 2,261
15,470 (12,670)
- 6,500
§ 27,143 §(15,213)
2,671 15,536
§ 29,814 3 323
$(13,773) 5(12,273)
6,282 6,282
§ (7,491) g (5,991)



CITY OF MASON CITY, IOWA

YOUTH SOFTBALL COMPLEX TRUST SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET TC ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

REVENUES:

charges for serxvice

Use of money and property
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Culture & recreation:
Contractual
Commodities
Total culture & recreation

Capital projects
Total expenditures

Net change in fund balance
Fund balance beginning of year

Fund balance end of year

Final
Budget

537,100

$37,100

$ 7,100
27,200
$34,300

6,800
£41,100

$(4,000)

${4,000)

SCHEDULE 14

Variance

With Budget
Positive

Actual (Negative)
511,666 4(25,434)
20,169 20,169
$31,835 & (5,265)
5 2,963 s 4,137
17,877 9,323
§20, 840 § 13,460
2,468 4,332
523,308 5 17,792
5 8,527 § 12,527
45,020 45,020
453,547 5 57,547

See Accompanying Independent Auditor’se Report.
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SCHEDULE 15

CITY OF MASON CITY, IOWA
THAP 2000 SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET TO ACTUAL
FOR THEE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Variance
With Budget
Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental :
Entitlement funds 56,000 3 - $5(6,000)
Miscellaneous - 700 700
Total revenues 56,000 $ 700 5(5,300}
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Community & economic development:
Contractual $6,000 s - 5 6,000
Net change in fund balance - - s 700 5 700
Fund balance beginning of year - 8,250 8,250
Fund balance end of year 5 - 58,950 $ 8,950

See Accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report.
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CITY OF MASON CITY, TOWA

DEBT SERVICE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET TC ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

REVENUES:
Property tax
other taxes
Use of money and property
Mi=scellaneous
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Community & economic development:
Contractual

Debt service:
Principal redemption
Interest payments
Contractual
Total debt service

Excess {(deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses}):
Tgsuance of general obligation bonds
Discount on bonds issued
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other fipancing sources {uses)

Net change in fund balance
Fund balance beginning of year

Fund balance end of year

SCHEDULE 16

Variance
With Budget
Final Posgitive
Budget Actual {Negative)
$ 2,729,718 52,786,536 5 56,817
53,011 - {53,011)
- 3,471 3,471
43,700 - (43,700)
5 2,826,430 52,790,007 -] (36,423)
$ 21,800 5 - 5 21,800
5 4,642,740 52,601,875 $ 2,040,865
- 993, 656 {993,656)
- 41,578 {41,578}
5 4,642,740 53,637,109 5 1,005,631
$(l,838,110) s g47,102) ] 991,008
4§ 247,000 & 169,500 $ {77,500)
- (9,448} {9,446)
1,574,110 541,257 (1,032,853)
- {37,000) (37,000)
$ 1,821,110 S5 664,311 4(1,156,799)
5 {17,000) $ (182,791) § (165,791)
- 61,631 61,631
] {17.000) % (121,160} 5 {104,160}

See Accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report.
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CITY OF MAHSON CITY, IOWA

1.0CAL OPTION CAPITAL IMFROVEMENT CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANCES IN FUND BALANCE -~
BUDGET TO ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,

REVENUES:

Other tax

Intergovernmental

Use of money and property
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Capital projects

Excess {(deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers out

Net change in fund balance
Fund balance beginning of year

Fund balance end of year

SCHEDULE 17

2011

Variance
with Budget

Final Pogitive
Budget Actual (Negative)
$ 1,400,000 4 1,720,079 $ 320,079
- 200,000 200,000

- 2,947 2,947

$ 1,400,000 4 1,923,026 & 523,026
5] 292,300 S 192,496 5§ 595,804
5 1,107,700 % 1,730,530 5 622,830
5(1,150,768) $(1,150, 768} g =
5 (43,068} 5 579,762 5 622,830
-~ 1,029,271 1,028,271
s (43,068) 4 1,605,033 41,652,101

See Accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report.
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CITY OF MASON CITY,
MACNIDER MUSUEM TRUST PERMANENT FUND

IOWA

SCHEDULE 18

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET TO ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,

REVENUES:
Use of money and property
Contributions
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Culture & recreation:
Commodities

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over {under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):

Transfers out
Net change in fund balance
FPund balance beginning of year

Fund balance end of year

2011

Final

Budget
§25,000

20,000
545,000

550,000

$(5,000)

$(5,000)

$(5,000)

Actual

$ 9,010
26,751
7,836

§ 43,597

$ 10,572

$ 33,025

{33,354)
§  (329)
803,721

$803,392

See Accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report.
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Variance
With Budget
Pogitive

(Negative)

$(15,990)
26,751
(12,164)
g {1,403)

4 39,428

$ 38,025

(33,354)
§ 4,671
803,721

$808,392



PROPRIETARY FUNDS



CITY OF MASON CITY
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
A8 OF JUNKE 30, 2011

Cemetery Storm Sewer
ASSETS:
Current assets:
Cash 5 46,159 s 115,297
Tnvestments 50 475,000
Receivables:
Property taxes lle,442 -
Accounts (net) 26,153 36,563
Accrued interest 25 407
Inventory 1,319 -
Due from other funds 93,860 -
Due from state government - -
Prepald insurance 1,062 -
Total current assets s284,870 8 627,247
Property, plant and equipment:
Land 5 - 5 -
Buildings 47,699 -
Equipment 216,682 24,728
Tmprovements 412,920 -
Vehicles 43,227 -
Storm sewer lines - 3,955,179
Construction in progress 7,764 16,002
Less accumulated depreciation {473,031) (1,742,878}
Total property, plant and equipment 255,261 52,253,031
Total assets §540,131 42,880,298
LIABILITIES:
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 5 3,675 8 749
Salaries payable 12,287 -
Acerued compensated absences 15,316 -
Accrued interest payable - 600
Due to other funds 103,645 3,581
Due to state government - -
general obligation bonds - 100,000
General obligation notes - -
Prepaid interments 47,154 -
Unearned revenue 114,711 -
Total current liabilities 5296, 788 5 104,930
Long-term debt: )
General obligation bonds [ - $ 100,000
General obligation notes - -
Net OPEE obligation 6,130 2,062
Total long-term debt $ 6,130 § 102,062
Total liabilities $302,918 5 206,992
Net assets:
Tnvested in capital assets, net of related debt 5255,261 52,053,031
Unrestricted {18,048} 620,275
Total net assets $237,213 42,673,306

Zee Accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report.
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golid Waste Golf Course Parking Lots Ambulance Total
5 108,992 $ 19,147 s 44,844 s 80,722 $ 415,161
125,000 - 25,000 150,000 775,050
- - - - 116,442
136,780 6,962 5,230 542,712, 754,400
218 - 23 69 742
- 15,629 - 19,565 36,513
- - - 33,666 127,326
4,940 - - - 4,940
771 1,550 - 1,716 5,089
5 376,701 5 43,288 & 75,0087 S 828,450 § 2,235,673
$ - %196, 813 54,143,120 & - $ 4,339,933
461,278 583,873 - 408,710 1,471,560
12,606 343,624 - 513,530 1,111,230
- 64,0866 2,584,991 - 3,081,977
814,353 31,433 13,000 711,864 1,613,877
- - - - 3,985,178
- - - - 23,766
{579, 685) (583,003) (2,563, 868) {580,166) (6,522, 631)
5§ 708,552 5606, 806 54,177,243 $1,053,998 5 9,054,881
$1,085,253 $650,094 $4,252, 340 51,882,448 $11,290,564
5 49,817 $ 33,241 5 779 8 23,689 5 111,950
38,182 19,935 2,224 50,660 123,288
49,165 12,189 5,653 51,875 134,208
- - - 801 1,401
3,705 241 - 1,220 112,392
- 3,372 - = 3,372
- - - - 100,000
- - - 77,920 77,820
- - - - 47,154
- - 1,050 - 115,761
s 140,868 % 68,988 o5 9,706 5 206,165 5 827,446
5 - 5 - § - 5 - 5 100,000
- - - 204,987 204,967
21,210 2,585 1,768 18,396 52,161
-] 21,210 5 2,585 5 1,768 g 223,363 5 357,128
s 162,078 5 71,583 o] 11,474 5 429,528 4 1,184,574
$ 708,552 5606,806 54,177,243 5 771,111 5 B,572,004
214,622 (28,295) 63,623 681,809 1,533,986
g 923,174 §578,511 $4,240,866 81,452,920 §10,105,950
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CITY OF MASCON CITY

NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,

Operating revenues:
Charges for service

Operating expenses:
Business-type activities:

Personal service

Contractual

Commodities

Other

Depreciation

Total operating expenses

Operating income {loss)

Nonoperating revenues {expenses):
Property taxes
Fines and forfeitures
Use of money and property
Special assessments
Miscellaneous
Interest
Gain (loss) on sale of capital assets
Total nonoperating revenue {expenses)

Income (loss) before contributions and transfers

Contributions and transfers:
Tranafers in

Change in net agsets
Net assets beginning of year

Net assets end of year

2011

Cemetery Storm Sewer
$ 91,746 4 283,112
4 249,341 = {554)
12,312 3,241
15,498 13,840
11,410 -
26,189 163,182

5 314,750 $ 179,709
$(223,004) 4 103,403
$ 113,987 5 -
22,193 897
40,498 -

- {10,155)

6,480 -

$ 183,158 5 (2,258)
& (39,846) 4 94,145
37,000 -

s (2,846) 5 94,145
240,059 2,579,161

$ 237,213 52,673,308

See Accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report.
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Solid Waste Golf Course Parking Lots Ambulance Total
$1,205,672 5400, 967 5 59,450 51,546,875 5 3,587,822
§ 777,055 267,289 % 51,057 41,025,989 $ 2,370,177
326,983 56,055 58,033 139,382 596,006
79,214 108,313 1,862 203,322 422,048
270 927 - 2,489 15,086
BG,632 37,765 14,434 168,158 496,360
51,270,154 5470,348 & 125,386 51,539,340 & 3,889,688
5 (64,482) $(69,382) s {65,936) S 7,535 5 (311,868}
5 - $ - $ - $ - & 113,987
- - 57,928 - 57,528
511 23,902 45 298 47,846
408 - - - 408
731 2,335 - 33,120 76,684
- - - (11,830) {22,045)
- - - (3,022) 3,458
] 1,650 & 26,237 5 57,873 8 18,506 [ 278,266
$ (62,832) §{43,145) [ (7,963) 5 26,041 8§ (33,600)
- - 35,000 - 72,000
$ (62,832) 5(43,145) & 27,037 s 26,041 & 38,400
986,006 621,656 4,213,828 1,426,879 10,067,590
§ 923,174 £578,511 %4,240,866 41,452,920 £10,105,990
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CITY OF MASON CITY, IOWA
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from customers
Cash paid to employees for services
Cash paid to other suppliers of goods or services
Proceeds from miscellaneous items
Net cash provided (used) by operating
activities

Cash flows from non-capital fipancing activities:
Proceeds from property tax levy
Transfers in
Advance to other funds
Advance repayment from other funds
Net cash provided {used)} by non-capital
financing activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing
activities:

Net acquisition of capital assets

Proceeds from sale of capital assets

Principal payments

Interest payments

Net cash provided (used) for capital and
related financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from sale of investments
Purchase of investments
Interest received
Rent received
Net cash provided (used) by investing
activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash
Cash beginning of year

Cash end of year

{continued)

- 58 -

Cemetery

% 91,078
(246,279)
{59,807)

40,498

§{174,510)

$ 114,134
37,000

$ 151,134

5 (54,527}
6,480

$ (48,047)

L=} -

26,667

5 26,667

5 (44,7586)
90,815

4 46,1589

Storm Sewer

$ 285,700

(13,742)

5 271,958

$ -

15,000

% 15,000

5 (19,901)

{95,000)
{10,420}

§{125,321)

$ 200,000
{575,000)
653

5(374,347)

${212,710)
328,007

$ 115,297



SCHEDULE 21
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Solid Waste Golf Coursge Parking Lots Ambulance Total
51,216,935 % 429,887 5 61,908 $1,580,299 5 3,665,607
{761, 090) {261,733) {50,102) {911,790) {2,230,994)
{399,565) {189,167) {(65,135) {442,431) {1,169,847)
1,139 2,335 57,928 33,120 135,020
4 57,418 4 (18,878) 4§ 4,599 $& 259,198 399,786
] - % - 4 - 5 - 114,134
- - 35,000 - 72,000
- - - {33,666) {33,666)
- - - - 15,000
4 - $ - $ 35,000 $ {33,666) ' 167,468
5 (136,152) 5 {720) [ - $ (70,288) (281, 628)
- - - - 6,480
- - - {74,003) {169, 003)
- - - {12,255) {22,675)
% (136,192) ] {720]) 5 - 4 (156,546) {466,B26)
$ 200,000 5 - - $ 50,000 450,000
{225, 000) - (25,000) (150,000) (975, 000)
550 16 22 284 28,192
- 23,886 - - 23,886
4§ (24,450) § 23,902 5(24,978) 5 (99,716} {472,922)
$ (103,223) ] 4,304 5 14,621 &  (30,730) {372,494)
212,215 14,843 30,223 111,452 787,655
§ 108,992 4 19,147 4 44,844 8 80,722 § 415,161




COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

CITY OF MASON CITY, IOWA
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss)
to Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating

Activities:

operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income
to nmet cash from operating activities:
Depreciation expense
Miscellaneocus income
Change in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease
{Increase) decrease
{Increa=ze) decrease

Increase

payable
Increase
Increase
Increase
Increase
Increase
Increase
Increase

{decrease)

(decrease)
{decrease)
{decrease)
{decreasge)
{decreasze)
(decrease)
(decrease}

in
in
in

in

in

in
in
in
in
in

in

receivables

inventory

prepaid insurance
accounts and contracts

salaries payable

accrued compensated absences
due to other funds

due to state government
prepaid interments

unearned revenue

net OPEB obligation

Net cash provided (used) by operating
activities

Cemetery Storm Sewer
5(223,004) 5103,403
26,189 163,182
40,498 -
{(685) 2,587
{769} -
{279) -
{19,378) 251
578 -

BE5 -

{161) 3,088

16 -

1,620 (554)
5{(174,510) $271,958

See Accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report.
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SCHEDULE 21
{continued)

Solid Waste Golf Course Parking Tots Anbulance Total
5(64,482) $(69,382) 5(65,936) 5 7,535 $(311,866)
86,632 37,765 14,434 168,158 496,360
1,138 2,335 57,928 33,120 135,020
11,262 - 2,308 4,920 20,392
- {439) - 59,789 58,581
{(140) {113) - {757) {1,289}
5,390 4,820 (5,241) (22,859) {(37,017)
4,294 3,677 214 5,062 13,825
5,989 1,178 273 534 8,839
1,652 (42} - (293) 4,245
- 622 - - 622
- - - - 16
- - 154 - 150
5,683 701 469 3,989 11,908
4 57,419 $(18,878) § 4,599 $259,198 $ 399,786
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS



CITY OF MASON CITY,

ICcWA

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
AS OF JUNE 30, 2011

ASSETS:
Current assets:
Cash
Investments
Receivables:
Property taxes
Accrued interest
Due from other funds
Prepaid insurance
Total current assets

Property, plant and equipment:
Equipment
Vehicles
Total property, plant and equipment
fess accumulated depreciation .

Net property, plant and equipment
Total assets

LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable
Salaries payable
Accrued compensated absences
Due to other funds
Unearned revenue
Total liabilities

Net Assets:

Invested in capital assets, net of
related debt

Unrestricted

Total net aseets

SCHEDULE 22

Central Employee

Services Health Care Total
5 - 5 677,136 5 677,136
- 1,005,950 1,005,850
- 774,982 774,982
- 1,546 1,546
22,775 - 22,775
141 - 141
s 22,916 52,459,614 52,482,530
$105,098 s - 5 105,098
g5,174 - g5,174
$190,272 $ - § 190,272
(139,110} - (139,110)
$ 51,162 5 - ] 51,162
5 74,078 52,459,614 $2,533,692
= 575 4§ 729,341 § 729,916
8,344 - 8,344
8,894 - B,884
33,666 - 33,666
- 785,364 785,364
5 51,479 61,514,705 51,566,184
$ 51,162 $ - 4 51,162
(28B,563) 944,908 916,346
g 22,595 4 _ 944,908 & 967,508

See Accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report.
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CITY OF MASON CITY, IOWA

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINTNG STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,

Operating revenues:

Charges for service

Health insurance contributions
Total operating revenues

Operating expenges:
Business type activities:
Personal services
Contractual
Commodities
Depreciation
Total operating expenses

Operating income {loss)
Nonoperating revenues:
Property taxes
Use of money and property

Total nonoperating revenues

Tncome before contributions and transfers

Contributions and transfers:
Transfers out

Change in net assets
Net assets beginning of year

Net assets end of year

SCHEDULE 23

2011
Central Employee
Services Health Care Total
$231,229 s - § 231,228
- 2,456,548 2,456,548
$231,2289 $2,456,548 52,687,777
$153,002 $2,850,475 43,003,477
17,303 - 17,303
20,996 - 20,886
14,401 - 14,401
5205,702 $2,850,475 43,056,177
5 25,527 s (393,927) 5 (368,400)
5 - s 772,899 5 772,889
- 16,572 16,572
& - 5 789,471 S 789,471
5 25,527 S 395,544 5§ 421,071
- g (765,000} &( 765,000}
5 25,527 S (369,456) & (343,929)
(2,928) 1,314,365 1,311,437
5 22,599 5 944,908 & 967,508

See Accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report.
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CITY OF MASON CITY, IOWA
INTERWAL SERVICE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 201l

SCHEDULE 24

Central Employee
Services Health Care Total
Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from interfund charges $230,351 2,050,433 $2,280,784
Cash received from employees and others - 406,525 406,525
Cash paid to employees for services {156,243} - (156, 243)
Cash paid to suppliers (74,108) - (74,108)
Cash paid for health and life
insurance - (2,858,470) (2,858,470}
Net cash provided {used) by
operating activities ] - § {401,512} $ (401,512)
Cash flows from non-capital finaneing
activities:
Proceeds from property tax levy 5 - 4 914,555 4 914,555
Transfers out - {765, 000) (765,000)
Net cash provided ({used) by
non-capital financing activities S - 4 149,555 § 149,555
Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from sale of investments s - 52,975,000 52,975,000
Purchase of investments - (2,562,500} (2,562,500)
Interest received - 17,448 17,448
Net cash provided ({used) by
investing activities ) - 5 429,948 § 429,948
Net increase in cash 5 - & 177,991 s 177,991
Cash beginning of year - 499,145 499,145
Cash end of year s ~ 4 677,136 & 677,136
Noncash capital, investing and financing
activities:
Increasze in fair market wvalue of
investments 5 - g & <] (<]
Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss)
to Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating
Activities: .
Operating income (loss) 4§ 25,527 & (393,927) %5 (368,400)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income
(loss) to net cash from operating activities:
Depreciation expense 14,401 - 14,401
Change in assets and liabilities:
{Increase) decrease in receivables - 1,230 1,230
(Increase) decrease in due from other
funds {878} {67,1867) (68, 045)
(Increase) decrease in prepaid insurance (52) - (52)
Increase {decrease} in accounts payable {2,173} 56,014 53,841
Increase (decrease) in salaries payable 664 - 664
Tncrease (decrease) in compensated absences (3,905) - (3,905)
Trncrease (decrease) in unearned revenues - 2,338 2,338
Increase (decrease) in due to other funds (33,584) - {33,584)
Net cash provided {used) by operating
activities ] - § {(401,512) 4% {401,512)

See Accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report.
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AGENCY FUND



CITY OF MASON CITY, IOWA
U.8. SAVINGS BOND AGENCY FUND
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Balance
July 1, 2010C Additions DPeductions

SCHEDULE 25

Balance
June 30, 2011

ASSETS:

Cash 5400 S 900 41,300

LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable 5200 8 - § 200
Due to purchase bonds 200 - 200
Total liabilities 5400 g - 5 400

See Accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report.
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SCHEDULE 26

CITY OF MASON CITY, IOWA
CAPTTAL ASSETS USED IN THE OPERATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SCHEDULE BY SOURCE
JUNE 30, 2011

General capital assets:

Land & 2,634,356
Buildings and structures 9,943,250
Improvements other than buildings 26,490,510
Machinery and equipment 5,671,670
Vehicles 7,635,560
Infrastructure 72,330,010
Construction in progress 28,627,872

Total general capital assets §153,333,268

Investment in gemeral capital assets by source:

General fund $153,333,268

This schedule presents only the capital asset balances related to govermmental
funds. Accordingly, the capital assets reported in the internal service funds are
excluded from the above amounts. Generally, the capital assets of internal service
funds are included as govermmental activities in the statement of net assets.

See Accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report.
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CITY OF MASON CITY,

CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE OPERATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

IOWA

SCHEDULE BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY

JUNE 30, 2011

Function and Activity
Public Safety:

Police

Fire

Civil Defense

Building

Inspectors

Neighborhood Services

Total public safety

Public Works:
Airport
Street
Infrastructure
Arborist
Engineer
Total public works

Health and Social Services:
Youth Task Force
Health
Human Rights
Total health and social services

Culture and Recreation:
Parks
Swimming Pool
Recreation
Library
Museum
Band
Total culture and recreation

Community and Economic Development:
Growth Development and Plamning
Transit
Total community and economic development

General Government:
Mayoxr
Council/Coffee room
Administrator
Finance
Clerk
City Hall
Safety Director
GIs
Total general government

Total general capital assets

Total

Land

$ 3,210,803
3,813,662
225,118
46,998
39,024
835,178

s 115,000
75,150

§ 8,170,783

% 150,150

$ 23,081,853
3,992,785
78,390,957
144,213
221,060

51,725,891
31,363

£105,830, 868

51,757,254

4 17,414
4,391
42,577

5 64,382

$ 21,442,189
3,179,584
398,815
9,875,285
1,578,967
2,881

§ 36,477,721

Y 45,665
1,350,128
§ 1,395,793

5 5,252
31,267
18,347
90,714
18,470

1,218,252
7,844

3,575

§ 1,393,721

4153,333,268

See Accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report.
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S 673,452

13,500

S 6B6,952

5 -
2,634,356



SCHEDULE 27

Buildings Improvements
and Other Than Machinery Construction
Structures Buildings & Equipment Vehicles Infrastructure in Progress
41,697,228 - $ 714,188 4 684,386 5 - $ -
910,973 94,412 784,481 1,948,646 - -
- - 225,118 - - -
- - 15,409 31,589 - -
- - 10,001 29,023 - -
791,990 - 5,590 37,598 - -
53,400,191 S 94,412 §1,754,788 52,731,242 5 - -] -
41,844,254 $17,239,717 5 483,488 £1,326,130 5 - $ 262,373
886,405 - B77,463 2,197,554 - -
- - - - 72,330,010 6,060,947
- - 7,883 136,330 - -
- - 138,680 82,370 - -
$2,730,658 §17,439,717 51,507,524 $3,742,384 $72,330,010 5 6,323,320
$ - $ - $ 17,414 g - $ - $ -
- - 4,391 - - -
- - 42,577 - - -
§ - 5 - § 64,382 $ - 8 - g -
$ 941,056 4 5,493,326 5 967,986 & 188,657 5 - 513,177,712
- 3,080,480 99,104 - - -
- 129,151 205,523 64,141 - -
181,170 237,696 316,075 - - 9,126,840
1,399,325 14,188 165,454 - - -
- - 2,881 - - -
52,521,551 S 8,954,841 51,757,027 5 252,798 [5] - 522,304,552
- $ - % 45,665 5 - § - § -
394,539 - 46,453 909,136 - -
5 394,539 5 - S 92,118 5 908,136 5 - § -
B - $ - $ 5,252 % - 5 - $ -
- - 31,267 - - -
- - 18,347 - - -
- - 90,714 - - -
- - 18,470 -~ - -
896,350 1,540 320,362 - = -
- - 7,844 - - -
- - 3,575 - - -
5 896,350 5 1,540 4 495,831 [ - 5 - 3 -
59,943,250 526,490,510 §5,671,670 57,635,560 $72,330,010 $28,627,872
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CITY OF MASON CITY,

IOWA

CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE OPERATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,

Function and Activity
Public Safety:

Police

Fire

Civil Defense

Bullding

Inspectors

Neighborhood Services

Total public safety

Public Works:
Airport
Street
Infrastructure
Arborist
Engineer
Total public works

Health and Social Services:
Youth Task Force
Health
Human Rights
Total health and social services

Culture and Recreation:
Parks
Swimming Pool
Recreation
Library
Museum
Band
Total culture and recreation

Community and Economic Development:
Growth Development and Planning
Transit
Total community and economic development

General Government:
Mayor
Council/Coffee room
Administrator
Finance
Clerk
Ccity Hall
Safety Director
GIS
Total general government

Construction in progress

Total general capital assets

See Accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report.
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2011

Balance

June 30, 2010

$

3,303,587
3,782,601
225,118
46,998
39,024
835,178

8,232,506

22,122,258
3,771,874
71,589,783
144,213
228,974

97,857,102

17,414
4,391
43,005

64,810

B,294,425
3,178,585
255,839
763,388
1,567,757
2,881

14,063,876

45,665
1,350,128

1,395,783

5,252
31,267
18,347
89,844
18,470

1,218,252
7,844
3,575

$

1,392,851

5

13,427,311

$136,434,249



Balance
Additions Deletions June 30, 2011
$ 252,143 5 344,928 ¢ 3,210,802
131,570 100,508 3,813,663
- - 225,118
- - 46,998
- - 39,024
- - 835,178
-] 183,713 3 445,436 s 8,170,783
$ 710,687 & 13,465 & 22,819,480
310,878 Bg, 967 3,982,785
740,227 - 72,330,010
- - 144,213
20,883 28,897 221,060
5 1,782,775 § 132,329 5 99,507,548
s - 5 - 5 17,414
- - 4,381
- 428 42,577
3 - 5 428 & 64,382
[ 97,9239 § 127,877 & B,264,477
- - 3,179,585
158,181 15,205 398,815
34,453 49,397 748,445
19,507 g,298 1,578,966
- - 2,881
5 310,070 & 200,777 5 14,173,169
§ - $ - % 45,8665
- - 1,350,128
] - $ - § 1,395,793
§ - $ - 8 5,252
- - 31,267
- - 18,347
1,185 325 aQ,714
: - - 18,470
- - 1,218,252
- - 7,844
- - 3,575
3 1,185 5 325 g 1,393,721
$16,713,387 $1,512,826 $ 28,627,872
519,191,140 $2,292,121 $153,333,268
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CITY OF MASON CITY, IOWA
STATISTICAL SECTION

This part of the City of Mascn Ccity's comprehensive annual report presents
detailed statistical information as a context for understanding what the

information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and
supplementary information says about the City's overall financial health.

Contente

Financial Trends
These schedules contain trend information to help the readexr
understand how the City’s financial performance and well-being have
changed over time.

Revenue Capacity
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the
city's most significant local revenue source, the property tax.

Debt Capacity
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the
affordability of the City's current levels of outstanding debt and
the City’s ability to issue additional debt in the £future.

Demographic and Economic Information
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicatora to help the
reader understand the environment within which the City’s financial
activities take place.

Operating Information
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the
reader understand how the information in the City's financial report
relates to the services the City provides and the activities it
performs.

gSources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is
derived from the comprehensive annual financial reports for the relevant
vear. The City implemented GASE Statement 34 in 2003; schedules
presenting government-wide information include information beginning in
that year.
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CITY OF MASON CITY,
NET ASSETS BY COMPONENT
LAST NINE FISCAL YEARS

IOWA

{accrual basis of accounting)

Governmental activities:
Invested in capital assets, net
of related debt

Restricted for:
Museum funding
Bond retirement
Perpetual care
Unrestricted
Total governmental
activities net assets

Business-type activities:

Tnvested in capital assets, net

of related debt
Restricted for:

Bond retirement

Capital projects
Unrestriected

Total business-type
activities net assets

Primary government:
Invested in capital assets, net
of related debt
Restricted for:
Museum funding
Bond retirement
Capital projects
Perpetual care
Unrestricted
Total primary government
net assets

2011

2010

2009

5 77,367,493

5 67,769,666

§ 60,958,677

633,638 633,638 633,638

- 61,631 267,858

509,011 505,269 488,855
20,613,538 21,388,087 20,911,732

§ 99,123,680 § 950,358,291 4 83,258,760

5 39,361,650

$ 38,361,918

$ 38,209,810

2,866,968 2,853,334 2,836,665
4,952,138 3,251,027 2,085,637
$§ 47,180,757 $ 44,466,280 $ 43,132,312

5116,729,143

5106,131,585

$ 99,168,487

633,638 633,638 633,638
2,866,968 2,914,965 3,104,523
509,011 505,269 486,855
25,565,677 24,639,114 22,897,638

$£146,304,437

£134,824,571

See Accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report.
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SCHEDULE 1

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
% 54,151,661 % 51,373,331 $ 47,154,271 5 41,643,488 533,654,513 $25,910,44589
533,638 610,638 - - - -
362,803 505,025 619,718 769,200 1,221,315 2,313,361
455,442 429,743 418,734 448,408 414,424 440,142
23,700,863 22,247,468 20,839,020 22,232,547 21,906,460 27,179,852
4 79,304,413 % 75,172,205 & 69,031,743 5 65,094,044 $57,196,712 355,843,904

% 36,086,120

4 35,294,652

$ 34,761,907

§ 34,113,573

$34,673,507

429,846,554

2,789,606 2,578,675 2,379,182 1,920,304 1,695,224 1,587,958

- - - - 435,680 -

2,148,576 1,274,797 1,206,696 1,926,433 {1,240,259) 626,337

4 41,035,302 & 35,148,124 $ 38,347,785 $ 37,960,310 535,564,152 $32,060,849

5 50,237,781

$ 86,673,983

$ 81,916,178

§ 75,757,061

468,328,020

$55,757,003

633,638 610,638 - - - -
3,162,409 3,083,700 2,998,300 2,688,504 2,916,539 3,901,319

- - - - 435,680 -

455,442 429,743 418,734 448,400 414,424 440,142
25,850,445 23,522,265 22,045,716 24,159,380 20,666,201 27,806,283
$120,339,715 $114,320,329 4$107,379,528 £103,054,354 592,760,864 $87,504,753
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CITY OF MASON CITY,
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
LAST NINE FISCAL YEARS

IOWA

(accrual basis of accounting)

Expenses:
Governmental activities:
Public safety
Public works
Health and social services
culture and recreation
Community and economic
development
General government
Interest on long-term debt
Total governmental
activities expenses

Business-type activities:
Cemetery
Water
Sewer
Parking lots
Storm sewer
Solid waste
Golf course
Ambulance
Total business-type
activities expenses
Total primary government
expensges

Program Revenues:
Governmental activities:
Charges for services:
Public safety
Culture and recreation
General government
Other activities
Operating grants and
contributions

Capital grants and contributions
Total governmental activities

program revenues

Business-type activities:
Charges for services:
Water
Sewer
Other activities

Operating grants and contributions
Capital grants and contributions

Total business-type

2011

2010

2009

4 9,402,887
7,450,233
808,916
3,503,976

2,252,333
2,176,829
1,053,911

$ 8,897,795
&,910,495
779,197
3,475,535

2,368,084
2,593,594
987,814

$ 8,776,634
6,912,927
769,456
3,720,434

1,937,074
2,668,372
695,529

§ 26,649,085

$ 26,012,514

§ 25,480,426

g 314,613
5,218,343
3,505,748

127,198
189,862
1,289,603
473,005
1,572,168

$ 300,661
5,244,979
3,473,401

135,289
182,262
1,244,442
453,765
1,265,397

8 282,484
5,047,464
3,118,427

118,762
178,107
1,216,902
463,543
1,353,951

$ 12,690,540

5 12,300,186

§ 11,773,640

39,338,625

4 356,340
550,848
410,024
269,465

3,748,874
10,109,341

38,312,710

$ 287,781
458,412
382,266
587,134

2,380,822
7,737,713

37,260,066

% 388,341
474,665
453,072
215,322

1,970,043
4,828,170

$ 15,444,892

% 11,834,128

$ 8,329,613

4 5,238,573
4,658,234
3,645,750

619,206
914,735

§ 4,979,982
4,304,033
3,612,573

188,313
206,190

$ 4,647,118
4,196,151
3,637,931

584,695
270,810

activities program revenues § 15,076,498

Total primary government
program revenues

Net {(Expense) Revenues:
Governmental activities
Businesg-type activities
Total primary government
net (expense)/ revenues

$ 13,291,091

5 13,336,703

% 30,521,390

&(11,204,193)

5 25,125,219

${14,178,386)

21,666,316

5{17,150,813)
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2,385,958 990,895 1,557,063
% (8,818,235} £(13.,187,451) $(15,593,750)
{continued)



2008

2007

2006

2005

2004

SCHEDULE 2

2003

$ 8,836,067

5 8,497,763

4 8,550,232

s 7,926,815

$ 7,651,154

& 6,906,490

6,547,510 5,695,837 5,510,270 4,320,043 5,408,728 5,478,863
838,912 719,340 614,429 661,340 556,758 484,978
3,192,566 3,197,601 3,029,345 2,852,682 2,739,284 2,298,424
1,516,775 1,429,911 3,610,475 2,886,020 3,885,016 4,005,048
2,206,251 2,241,467 2,366,733 2,215,481 2,013,286 2,176,336
580,638 541,891 509,503 521,935 589,257 544,542

5 23,718,718

$ 22,323,810

5 24,190,987

§21,384,316

§ 22,843,483

5 21,894,681

$ 263,411 & 265,149 & 258,434 § 243,474 % 242,607 & 236,838
4,896,428 4,791,948 4,193,851 3,165,550 2,755,310 2,461,202
2,841,619 2,754,070 2,670,534 2,519,795 2,375,568 2,518,571

112,018 103,884 114,494 96,321 93,865 86,350
188,876 116,252 125, 947 122,333 108,823 116,243
1,201,526 1,141,987 1,090,911 1,020,631 980,181 980,430
496,383 465,044 404,347 326,498 333,049 312,588
1,300,570 1,169,878 1,150,308 907,072 213,640 -

§ 11,300,831

% 10,808,212

$ 10,008,826

$ 8,401,074

S 7,103,043

5 6,712,222

¢ 35,019,550 4 33,132,022 § 34,195,813 429,785,990 & 29,946,526 & 28,606,903
% 331,821 & 469,917 & 503,548 5 569,319 § 533,677 § 603,241
462,564 529,079 465,783 443,535 495,459 440,545
399,780 372,805 203,975 481,621 298, 815 325,566
266,913 229,317 506,608 292,758 380,010 478,847
1,586,253 1,690,908 3,382,410 3,200,201 2,982,349 2,343,486
3,383,038 4,537,680 4,771,256 7,357,615 1,404,793 1,632,310

& 6,430,369

s 7,819,706

$ 9,833,581

512,345,049

$ 6,085,103

& 5,823,995

$ 4,701,954

& 4,587,840

$ 4,091,801

$ 3,996,205

S 3,542,206

5 2,891,747

3,060,266 2,583,223 2,347,982 2,275,044 2,028,147 2,125,686
3,525,466 3,272,750 3,043,408 2,630,558 1,621,988 1,582,947
01,111,405 583,409 523,134 1,236,866 3,289,676 1,667,106

§ 12,398,095

% 11,027,222

S 10,006,325

$10,138,673

5 10,482,017

5 B,367,4B6

& 18,829,464 4 18,856,928 $ 19,839,006  $22,483,722 $ 16,577,120 § 14,191,481
$(17,288,350) &${14,494,104) $(14,357,406) %(9,039,267) $(16,748,380) 4{16,070,686)
1,098,264 219,010 {(2,501) 1,736,999 3,378,974 1,655,264

5(16,190,086) %(14,275,084) 4$(14,359,507) $(7.,302,268) $5(13,369,406) 4{14,415,422)
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CITY OF MASON CITY, IOCWA
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
LAST NINE FISCAL YEARS
{accrual basis of accounting)

2011 2010 2009
General Revenues and Other Changes
in Net Assets:
Governmental activities:
General revenues:
Property taxes £14,145,418 513,104,150 512,884,283
Other taxes 4,783,420 4,435,881 4,576,634
Franchise taxes - - -
Road use tax - 2,466,138 2,417,780
Unrestricted state utility
tax replacement 151,361 174,130 186,493
Grants and contributions not
restricted to specific program 386,403 19,107 44,895
Unrestricted investment income 596,673 1,068,587 795,157
Gain (loss) on sale of capital
assets - - -
Miscellaneous 259,307 13,663 265,548
Transfers {36,000} {3,749} (65,630}
Total governmental activities $20,286,582 $21,277,917 $21,105,160

Businesg-type activities:
General revenues:
Property taxes & 113,987 5 112,825 5 105,232
Grants and contributions not
restricted to specific program - - -
Unrestricted investment income 94,638 133,399 198,766

Gain (loss) on sale of capital
assets - - -
Miscellaneous 81,894 93,300 170,119
Transfers . 316,000 3,749 65,630
Total business-type activitiess 328,519 ] 343,273 [ 539,747
Total primary government $20,615,101 $21,621,190 $21,644,907

Change in Net Assets:

Governmental activities 5 5,082,389 § 7,089,531 § 3,954,347
Business-type activities 2,714,477 1,334,168 2,096,810
Total primary government %11,796,866 4 8,433,699 $ 6,051,157

See Accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report.
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SCHEDULE 2
{continued}

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003

$12,343,528 $11,819,970 $10,490,524 $ 9,449,162 5 9,121,213 % B,897,703

5,032,706 4,400,683 4,112,909 3,628,930 5,260,326 3,981,825
- - - 12,883 72,000 20,628
2,499,599 2,440,873 2,442,817 2,422,050 2,444,356 2,355,322
186,315 184,216 159,226 161,992 171,678 388,170
10,001 92,191 80,804 17,401 132,876 319,333
1,478,799 1,746,741 1,028,584 1,340,758 693,661 1,059,921
_ _ _ - - (286,153)

104,746 46,892 10,037 259,635 146,427 130,268
(235,136) {97,000) (29,796) (356,212) 58,651 (791,038)

£21,420,558 520,634,566 518,295,105 516,936,589 518,101,188 516,075,879

$ 100,873 3 92,417 & 92,994  § 87,090 $ 83,372 g 87,734
2,825 - - - - -
346,442 343,964 185,868 182,609 65,418 124,702

_ _ - - - {2,437)

103,638 47,948 81,318 33,248 34,190 37,944
235,136 97,000 29,796 356,212 (58,651) ' 791,038

5 788,514 S 581,329 5 389,976 3 659,159 5 124,329 % 1,038,981

$22,209,472 $21,215,895 $18,685,081 517,595,758 §18,255,517 $17,114,3960

$ 4,132,208 $ 6,140,462 $ 3,937,699  %.7,897,332  § 1,352,808 3 5,293
1,887,178 80O, 339 387,475 2,396,158 3,503,303 2,694,245
$ 6,019,386 s 6,940,801 & 4,325,174 510,293,490 $ 4,856,111 £ 2,699,538
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CITY OF MASON CITY,

IOWA

FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
LAST NINE FISCAL YEARS
{modified acerual basis of accounting)

General Fund:
Reserved

Unreserved

Nonspendable
Restricted

Assigned

Unassigned

Total general fund

21l Other Governmental Funds:

Reserved

Unreserved, reported im:
Special revenue funds
Capital project funds
Permanent funds

Nonspendable

Restricted

Agsigned

Unagsicgned

Total all other
governmental funds

2011 2010 2009
5 - & 214,097 4§ 227,684
- 8,311,761 7,035,343
139,912 - -
1,316,949 - -
474,153 - -
5,125,768 - -
$ 7,056,782 %5 8,525,858 5 7,263,027
% - $ 1,211,159 4 1,398,244
- 9,542,365 8,662,741
- 654,364 2,371,946
- 175,591 268,182
645,079 - -
12,077,490 - -
1,380,703 - -
(1,39L,926) - -
$12,711,346 $11,583,479 $12,701,113

Note: GASB 34 implemented in 2003, therefore, only nine years presented.

The City implemented GASBE 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Goveramental Fund
Type Definitions, in fiscal year 2011.

See Accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report.
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SCHEDULE 3

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
$ 209,866 5 211,759 5 208,096 $ 212,286 3 190,564 & 222,936
8,412,260 B,669,062 8,593,915 8,052,118 B,976,676 B,472,303
5 8,622,126 5 8,880,821 $ 8,802,011 $ 5,264,414 5 9,167,240 5 8,695,239

§ 1,457,861

$ 1,551,247

& 1,045,151

5 1,344,270

§ 1,766,522

5 2,874,058

8,760,295 7,807,530 6,722,890 6,655,168 4,864,385 10,096,350
3,882,653 3,788,901 3,614,649 4,631,731 5,927,280 5,924,481
299,917 301,100 893,426 751,927 818,046 760,774
514,400,726 £13,448,838 $12,276,116 513,423,097 $13,376,233 519,656,273
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CITY OF MASON CITY,

IOWA

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

LAST NINE FISCAL YEARS

{modified accrual basis of accounting)

Revenues:
Property taxes
TIF revenues
Other taxes
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Use of money and property
Special assessments
Miscellaneous
Refunds

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Public safety
tublic works
Health and social services
Culture and recreation
Community and economic development
General government
capital projects
Debt service:

Principal retirement

Interest

Contractual

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
{under) expenditures

Oother finaneing sourcees (uses):
Tasuance of refunding bonds

Payment to refunding escrow agent
Tssuance of general obligation bonds
Premium (discount) on bonds issued
Bale of capital assets

Transfers in

Transfers out

. 2011

2010

411,933,871
1,438,648
4,934,781

§27,128
13,550,171
868, 987
81,317
580,143
9,245
1,016,838
7,984

$11,227,096
1,113,291
4,610,021
526,228
11,920,642
1,098,884
73,912
1,046,555
16,569
637,005
34,447

535,049,113

$32,304, 650

§ 8,744,332
3,228,134
787,650
2,917,485
12,624,763
2,113,201
7,502,631

2,601,875
993,656
41,578

% 8,377,479
3,398,998
765,063
2,988,797
7,278,193
2,469,483
13,623,213

2,117,833
955,151
9,669

541,555,305

541,983,879

5(6,506,192)

$({9,679,223)

Total other financing sources {uses) § 6,481,983

Net change in fund balances

Debt service as a percentage of
noncapital expenditures

s - % -
5,785,000 9,108,900
{32,017) - 25,275
2,578,286 2,655,746
(1,849,286) (1,965,495)
$ 9,824,426

3 {24,209) $ 145,197
10.68% 10.87%

2009

510,615,964
1,293,624
4,763,020
594,809
8,771,337
788,428
117,261
747,268
30,900
591,339
207,873

528,521,930

L

8,121,819
2,879,684
750,863
3,046,106
1,693,168
2,531,895
16,059,284

1,659,835
634,734

48,424
537,425,812

& (8,903,0882)

R

5,485,800

2,537,998
{2,178,628)
5 5,845,170

4(3,058,712)

10.40%

Note: GASB 34 implemented in 2003, therefore, only nine years presented.

See Accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report.
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SCHEDULE 4

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
4 9,991,874 $ 9,509,937 $ 8,441,105 $ 7,764,803 § 7,821,949 $ 7,588,119
1,549,165 1,539,641 1,324,877 1,334,795 1,299,264 1,309,583
5,219,025 4,584,899 4,272,135 3,803,805 5,504,004 4,390,623
589,770 583,098 422,326 752,700 576,466 777,534
7,062,389 7,917,610 9,576,497 11,825,024 6,394,531 5,910,170
€73, 796 804,962 986,768 715,507 715,657 634,019
88,621 169,377 195,322 228,678 162,745 92,439
1,408,275 1,685,388 994,387 1,305,195 671,163 1,019,077
108,927 43,681 75,497 90,348 253,091 344,207
497,160 860,681 1,127,791 1,078,449 634,460 B40,337
72,695 73,281 111,921 87,314 72,811 55,458

527,261,697

$27,772,552

527,528,626

528,986,618

524,106,141

$22,961,566

5 8,339,210

5 8,088,943

$ 7,904,694

§ 7,396,491

s 7,038,308

§ 6,277,854

3,278,651 3,218,936 2,954,535 2,922,781 3,158,130 3,368,579
805,599 699,620 586,664 638,500 532,232 456,108
2,785,729 2,815,767 2,596,250 2,456,088 2,341,327 2,161,533
1,134,548 1,301,826 3,617,369 2,741,518 3,744,709 3,888,304
2,134,146 2,175,747 2,244,677 2,114,246 1,905,417 2,056,340
7,859,352 8,772,725 8,734,458 11,064,257 9,594,988 7,201,659
1,792,073 1,571,570 1,396,363 1,255,708 3,660,020 1,442,000
530,122 515, 464 490,091 486,787 563,568 474,521
50,115 22,100 16,113 26,847 20,261 27,468
528,710,245 599,182,704 530,541,214 531,103,223 531,558,960 §27,354,366

$(1,448,548)

5{1,410,152)

(3,012,588}

5{2,116,605)

$5({7,452,819)

$(4,392,800)

% - $ - S - 5 - & - & 895,000
- - - - - {870,385)
2,400,300 2,775,000 1,280,000 2,253,000 1,586,128 6,121,896
(23,422} (16,317} - 13,855 - -

- - 153, 000 - - -

1,462,290 1,494,141 1,808,784 1,979,733 8,499,176 1,760,819
(1,697,426) {1,591,141) (1,838,580) {1,985,945) (B,440,525) (2,551,856)
S 2,141,742 5 2,661,683 § 1,403,204 8 2,260,643 s 1,644,778 5 5,355,474
4 693,194 $ 1,251,531 &(1,609,384) & 144,038  %(5,808,040) $ 962,674
10.84% 10.33% 8.56% 9.02% 14.54% 9.51%
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CITY OF MASON CITY,

Ag Bank
Fiscal Property Tax Land Monies & Franchise
Year Taxes Increment Taxesd Credits Tax
2011 $11,533,871 51,438,648 517,385 5 6,028 8 -
2010 11,227,096 1,113,291 17,898 6,034 -
2009 10,595,874 1,293,624 20,090 - -
2008 9,951,874 1,549,165 17,051 - -
2007 9,508,834 1,538,641 16,878 - -
2006 8,441,105 1,324,877 16,416 - -
2005 7,764,803 1,344,795 16,555 - 12,883
2004 7,821,949 1,299,624 19,350 - 72,000
2003 7,588,119 1,309,583 19,702 9,869 20,628
2002 7,415,453 1,250,365 20,034 10,396 30,554
Personal Utility Local
Hotel/ Property Property Option
Fiscal Motel Replacement Tax Sales Total
Year Tax Tax Replacement Tax Taxes
2011 $412,712 - £151,361 §2,580,116 516,540,121
2010 449,699 - 174,130 2,460,515 15,448,663
2008 439,464 - 186,493 2,458,596 14,994,141
2008 333,278 - 186,316 2,797,987 14,875,671
2007 303,510 - 184,216 2,430,608 13,984,787
2006 308,951 - 159,226 2,258,668 12,509,243
2005 288,301 - 161,992 1,976,896 11,566,225
2004 299,046 - 171,678 2,948,279 12,631,926
2003 282,093 176,219 211,951 2,186,902 11,805,066
2002 232,947 185,670 207,237 2,125,411 11,498,067

IOWA
CENERAL GOVERNMENTAL TAX REVENUES BY SOURCE (1)
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

SCHEDULE 5

{1) Includes General, gpecial Revenue and Debt Service Funds

See Accompanying Independent Auditor‘s Report.
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Levy
Year

2010
2009
2008
2007
2006
2005
2004
2003
2002
2001

CITY OF MASON CITY,

ASSESSED AND ACTUAL VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Aesegsed Valuation

Fiscal ‘Residential Commercial Industrial Agricultural
Year Propexrty Property Property Property
2011 §1,087,197,118 $373,188,488 511,132,318 510,462,956
2010 1,075,186,271 358,218,056 118,180,425 10,603,851
2009 1,073,694,584 357,754,516 123,274,907 7,445,461
2008 1,059,165,761 334,628,381 118,779,067 7,401,777
2007 986,438,850 332,716,426 115,210,126 6,699,559
2006 gB3,657,384 321,964,594 105,003,491 5,666,734
2005 B67,459,879 311,548,936 103,881,782 5,458,615
2004 790,087,827 306,387,381 99,802,422 5,542,014
2003 777,136,361 293,473,167 97,666,712 6,533,109
2002 766,841,430 276,169,772 107,559,015 6,217,411

(1) State mandated rollbacks have been applied to each class of property

Source;

City Rssessorxr

- 123 -

See Accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report.



Utilities

$55,575,034
39,183,481
38,557,472
38,557,472
40,823,425
33,420,085
31,674,231
32,546,117
35,492,451
34,542,151

Total

Total
Taxable

valuation (1)

§1,642,555, 915
1,601,372,084
1,600,726,940
1,558,532,458
1,481,888,386
1,349,752,288
1,320,103,443
1,234,365,761
1,210,301,800
1,191,329,779

§1,079,732,545
1,026,972,722
1,016,064,811

964,618,055
944,867,130
869,786,552
BG8,622,941
B29,968,057
832,515,610
814,538,602
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Total
Direct

Tax Rate

13.35427
12.73451
12.80116
12.67114
12.25642
11.63721
10.55108
10.46693
10.248691
10.08507

SCHEDULE 6



CITY OF MASON CITY¥, IOWA
PROPERTY TAX RATES -
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

REGULAR DISTRICTS
CITY OF MASON CITY

Debt Total
Fiscal Operating Service Retirement city
Year Millage Millage Millage Millage
2011 8.67914 2.78243 1.93270 13.35427
2010 8.71062 2.10902 1.9148B7 12.73451
2009 B.B83574 1.52791 2.43751 12.80116
2008 B8.86B66 1.33259 2.4698B9 12.67114
2007 8.83050 1.058727 : 2.36865 12.25642
2006 8.66274 .88534 2.0B8913 11.63721
2005 8.69532 .26452 1.59125 10.55109
2004 8.82860 .59627 1.04208 10.46693
2003 B.66010 .73054 .B5627 10.246591
2002 B.55876 .68841 .B0730 10.09507

Source: Cerro Gorde County Auditor

Note: The City's general fund maximum property tax rate may only be $8.10 per
%1, 000 of valuation. The remaining portion of the operating rate and the
rates for debt service and retirement are set based on each yeaxr's

requirements.

See Accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report.

- 125 -



CERRO GORDC COUNTY

MASON CITY COMMUNITY
SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE 7

Debt Total Debt Total

Operating Service County Operating Service School Total

Millage Millage Millage Millage  Millage Millage Otherxr Millage
5.81451 .45591 6.27042 15.11732 - 15.11732 3.00375 37.78576
5.82555 465892 6.29147 13.61683 - 13.61683 3.00375 35.64656
5.83058 .48632 6.31691 13.67407 - 13.687407 3.00375 35,79588
5.83592 .758786 6.59468 14.08418 - 14.08418 3.00375 36.35375
5.78266 .81202 6.59468 14.088B25 - 14.05825 3.00375 35,95310
5.86024 .338910 6.18934 14.718B69 - 14.71869 3.00375 35.55899
5.0479%9 .22866 5.27665 14.11808 - 14.11808 3.00375 32.54957
4.59418 - 4.59418 13.65058 - 13.65058 3,00387 31.71536
4.59778 .10738 4.,70516 14.15478 .95269 15.10747 3.00375 33.06328
4 .59178 .10877 4.70156 13.30290 .93850 14.24240 31.00363 32.04266
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CITY OF MASON CITY, IOWA
PRINCIPAL PROFPERTY TAX PAYERS
CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO

2011

Percent

Taxable of Total

Assessed Agsegsed

Taxpayexr valuation Rank Valuation

Interstate Power Company 5 39,662,903 1 2.39%
Golden Grain Energy, Inc. 17,028,420 2 1.03
Lehigh Portland Cement Company 16,389,995 3 .98
Mills Fleet Farm 12,327,797 4 T4
Wal-Mart 11,589,630 g .70
AADG 10,087,777 6 .61
North Iowa Mercy 9,147,828 7 .55
Principal Mutual Life Insurance Co. 8,844,150 8 .53
Mason City Shopping Center, Ltd. B,425,710 9 .51
Mall Associates 8,332,197 10 .50
CAG Subsgidiary, Inc. - -
Northwestern States Cement-Holcim. Inc. - -
Curries Manufacturing, Inc. - -
Dayton Hudson - -
Qwest - -
Menards - -

Total $141,816,407 8.55%

Source: City Assess0r

See Accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report.
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SCHEDULE 8

2002
Percent
Taxable of Total
Assessed Asgessgsed
Vvaluation Rank Valuation
$ 26,164,645 1 2.16%
17,323,024 2 1.43
8,779,280 6 0.72
12,082,830 5 1.00
7,180,840 7 0.59
13,960,635 4 1.15
14,282,012 3 1.18
7,120,080 8 0.59
6,190,652 9 0.51
5,140,660 10 0.42
£118,224,666 9.75%
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CITY OF MASON CITY
PROPERTY TAXY LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Collected Within the

For Fiscal Fipcal Year of the Levy Collections
Levy Year Ended Total Percentage in Subsequent
Year June 30, Tax Levy Amount of Levy Years
2010 2011 $12,549,529 512,922,145 99.78% = -
2009 2010 12,268,045 12,246,928 899.82 525
2008 2009 11,901,194 11,885,781 995.87 618
2007 2008 11,085,910 11,062,272 99,96 718
2006 2007 10,549,474 10,547,547 99.58 100
2005 2006 9,414,330 9,411,788 99.97 945
2004 2005 B,380,157 B,377,255 99.96 o84
2003 2004 8,107,644 8,103,655 89.95 2,885
2002 2003 7,745,522 7,724,156 99.72 20,285
2001 2002 7,686,241 7,677,666 99,88 71753

See Accompanying Independent Auditor‘s Report.
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Total Collections to Date

Amount

12,922,145
12,247,456
11,886,399
11,062,990
10,547,647
9,412,734
8,378,239
8,106,540
7,744,451
7,685,419

Percentage

of Levy

99,78%
99.82
99.88
99.97
99.98
95.98
99,97
59.98
99.9%
99.9%9
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Fiecal

Year

2011
2010
2009
2008
2007
2006
2005
2004
2003
2002

Fiecal

Year

2011
2010
2009
2008
2007
2006
2005
2004
2003
2002

CITY OF MASON CITY,

TOWA

RATTIO OF QUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Governmental Activities

General Obligation

Bonds

$25,339,320

21,684,866
14,138,132
9,776,550
9,777,692
8,153,984
8,453,000
7,140,000
8,345,000
5,230,000

Notes

$

295,000
594, 958
884,958
1,333,671
408,671
500,000

155,000

Special
Assegament
Bonds

$ -

TIF Revenue

Bonds

$1,233,400
1,404,774
1,569,339
1,727,044
2,072,975
2,401,925
2,719,272
3,034,980
2,895,000
937,000

Business-Type Activities

General Obligation Revenue Capital
Bonds Notes Bonds Leage
47,050,680 $282,887 425,602,694 4 -
6,840,134 356,890 27,146,278 -
6,236,868 696,052 26,057,827 -
5,903,450 410,780 18,740,604 105,480
3,667,308 513,735 17,888,281 207,231
3,991,018 362,596 15,429,715 305,324
2,392,000 399,870 16,199,167 399,842
- 495,680 16,806,970 490,990
- 50,000 9,218,080 -
- 120,000 4,435,000 -

See Accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report.
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Lease

64,829
126,867
186,233
243,043

Total

$32,936,261
34,343,302
32,990,747
25,160,314
22,276,555
20,088,651
19,390,879
17,893,640

9,308,080

4,555, 000

dettlement
Note Total
L] - 526,867,720
- 23,684,598
- 16,552,428
- 12,837,265
4,889 12,264,227
31,528 11,152,266
56,125 11,355,264
75,000 10,436,213
- 11,483,043
- 6,347,000
Total Percentage
Primary of Persconal
Government Income
559,803,981 6.14%
58,027,900 5,37
49,583,176 4.91
37,987,579 3.88
34,540,782 3.63
31,240,917 3.40
30,746,143 3.78
28,329,853 3.43
20,791,123 3.51
10,802,000 1.40

- 132

Per
Capita

$2,130
1,989
1,700
1,303
1,184
1,071
1,054
971
713
374

SCHEDULE 10



Levy
Year

2011
2010
2009
2008
2007
2006
2005
2004
2003
2002

Levy
Year

2011
2010
2009
2008
2007

2006 -

2005
2004
2003
2002

CITY OF MASON CITY,

IOWA

SCHEDULE 11

RATIO OF NET GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDED DEBT TO ASSESSED
VALUE AND NET GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDED DEBT PER CAPITA

Population (1}

Taxable
Aggesged
Vvalue (2)

28,079
29,172
29,172
29,172
29,172
29,172
29,172
29,172
29,172
29,172

Source:

(1) U.5. Census Bureau

(2)

City Assessor

See Accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report.

51,079,732,545
1,026,972,722
1,016,064,811

964,618,055
944,867,130
869,786,552
868,622,941
829,968,057
832,515,610
814,538,602

Net
Bonded
Debt

$33,089,047
29,415,218
21,688,152
17,061, 648
13,862,381
12,387,878
10,475,670

6,414,365

5,941,639

3,368,105
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LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Gross Less Debt
Bonded Service
Debt Funds
$32,967,887 5 {121,160}
29,476,848 6l,630
21,956,010 267,858
17,424,451 3R2,8B03
14,367,406 505,025
13,007,586 619,718
11,244,870 769,200
7,635,680 1,221,315
B, 255,000 2,313,361
5,530,000 2,161,895

Ratio of
Net Bonded Net
Debt to Bonded
Assessed Debt
Yalue Per Capita
3.06% $1,178.43
2.86 1,008.34
2.13 743 .46
1.77 584.86
1.47 475,19
1.42 424 .65
1.21 359.10
LT 2195.88
L7l 203.67
.41 115.46



SCHEDULE 12

CITY OF MASON CITY, IOWA
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT
JUNE 30, 2011

Percentage Amount
et Applicable Applicable
Debt To City Of To City Of
Jurisdicticn Outstanding Mason City Mason City
Direct:
city of Mason City (1) $26,867,720 100.00% 526,867,720
overlapping (2}:
Mason City Community .

School Digtrict 37,367,052 90.0% 33,630,347
Cerro Gordo County 11,000,000 46.7% 5,137,000
North Iowa Area Community College g,095,000 - -

Total 483,329,772 5 565,635,067

Source: Information provided by individual unit.
(1) Excluding general obligation debt reported in the Enterprise Funds

(2) Overlapping governments are those that coincide, at least in part, with the
geographic boundaries of the city. This schedule egtimates the portion of the
outstanding debt of those overlapping governments that iz borne by the
residents and businesses of Mason City. This process recognizes that, when
considering the city's ability to issue and repay long-term debt, the entire
debt burden borne by the residents and businesses should be taken into account.
However, this does not imply that every taxpayer is a resident—and therefore
responsible for repaying the debt—of each overlapping government.

For debt repaid with property taxes, the percentage of overlapping debt
applicable is estimated using taxable assessed property values. Applicable
percentages were estimated by determining the portion of another governmental
unit’'s taxable assessed value that is within the city's boundaries and dividing
it by each unit's total taxable assessed value.

See Accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report.
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CITY OF MASON CITY, IOWA
LEGAL DEBT MARGIN INFORMATION
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

2011 2010 2009 2008

Debt limit . 582,847,356 580,068,604 580,036,347 577,926,623
Total net debt applicable

to limit _ 33,818,400 30,524,732 23,206,321 15,643,215
Legal debt margin 548,928,556 549,543,872 456,830,026 562,283,408
Total net debt applicable

to the limit as a percentage

of debt limit 40.94% 38.12% 28.99% 20.07%

Legal Debt Margin Calculation for Fiscal Year 2011

Actual assessed valuation:
Real property
Utilities
Total actual assessed valuation
pebt limit - 5% of actual valuation
Total net debt applicable to limit

Legal debt margin

$1,601,372,084
55,575,034
51,656,947,118

5 82,847,356

33,918,400

8 48,928,956

See Accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report.
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SCHEDULE 13

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002

$74,094,419 $67,487,614 $67,400,322 66,048,766  $56,120,090 560,538,444

15,926,646 15,111,754 13,751,123 10,361,213 11,483,043 4,850,000

458,167,773 $52,375,860 $53,649,193 555,687,553 $44,637,047 455,688,444

21.50% 22.39% 20.40% 15.68% 20.46% 8.01%
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SCHEDULE 14

CcITY OF MASON CITY, IOWA
PLEDGED REVENUE COVERAGE - ESEWER
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Net Revenue

Fiscal Gross Operating Available for
Year Revenues Expenses {1) Debt Service
2011 45,231,916 $1,672,145 53,559,771
2010 4,405,338 2,014,228 2,391,110
2009 4,442,190 1,908,966 2,533,224
2008 3,173,778 1,786,007 1,387,772
2007 2,673,287 1,814,148 859,139
2006 2,412,484 1,759,738 652,746
2005 2,311,231 1,660,486 650,745
2004 2,014,835 1,481,459 523,376
2003 2,125,686 1,520,466 605,220
2002 2,077,256 1,285,030 792,226

Fiscal Debt Service Requirements
Year Principal Interest Total Coverage
2011 897,000 5437,287 51,334,287 2.66
2010 867,000 413,322 1,280,322 1.86
2009 690,000 169,170 859,170 2.85
2008 450,000 119,760 569,760 2.43
2007 455,000 117,276 572,276 1.50
2006 340,000 97,755 437,755 1.49
2005 330,000 127,679 457,679 1.42
2004 310,600 142,511 452,511 1.16
2003 295,000 156,546 451,546 1.34
2002 280,000 169,859 449,859 1.76

(1) Total operating expenses exclusive of depreciation and amortizatiom.

See Accompanying Independent Auditor s Report.
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CITY OF MASON CITY,

IOWA

PLEDGED REVENUE COVERAGE - WATER
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

SCHEDULE 15

Net Revenue

Fiscal Gross Operating Available for
Year Revenues Expenses (1) Debt Service
2011 55,337,691 $3,263,510 £2,074,181
2010 5,171,917 3,315,053 1,856,864
2008 4,950,216 3,145,518 1,804,698
2008 4,889,040 3,065,967 1,823,073
2007 4,781,241 3,063,083 1,718,148
2006 4,214,116 2,837,040 1,377,067
2005 4,069,839 2,534,220 1,535,619
2004 3,542,206 2,178,226 1,363,980
2003 2,991,747 1,855,372 1,136,375
2002 2,381,344 1,810,814 570,530

Fiscal Debt Service Requirements
Year Principal Interest Total Coverage
2011 & 970,000 £430,760 51,400,760 1.48
2010 940,000 461,453 1,401,453 1.32
2009 915,000 491,288 1,406,288 1.28
2008 775,000 502,103 1,277,103 1.43
2007 727,000 463,806 1,180,806 1.44
2006 693,000 426,008 1,119,008 1.23
2005 1,088,000 457,617 1,545,617 0.99
2004 1,049,000 379,007 1,428,007 0.96
2003 375,000 88,206 463,206 2.45
2002 355,000 85,510 440,510 1.30

{1) Total operating expenses exclusive of depreciation and amortization.

See Accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report.
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CITY OF MASON CITY, TIOWA
DEMOGRAPHIC STATISTICS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

SCHEDULE 16

Personal Per
Fiscal Income {in Capita Median School Unemployment
Year Population{l) thousands) Income (2) _ége(z) Enrollment (3) Rate (4)

2011 28,079 $ 974,538 534,707 43 .30 3,860 6.6
2010 29,172 1,080,618 37,043 42 .10 3,909 7.8
2009 29,172 1,010,401 34,636 42.40 3,649 5.4
2008 29,172 880,850 33,623 £1.70 3,965 3.5
2007 29,172 951,824 32,628 42,20 4,102 3.3
2006 29,172 919,326 31,514 39.30 4,103 4.1
2005 28,172 B31l,023 28,487 41 .55 4,241 4.8
2004 29,172 896,951 30,747 41.13 4,298 3.9
2003 29,172 807,481 27,680 40.30 4,357 3.5
2002 28,172 777,025 26,636 39,30 4,455 3.6
Source: (1) U.S. Census Bureau decennial census

(2) Department of Economic Development, State Demographer
{3) Mason City Community School District
{4) Iowa Workforce Development

See Accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report.
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CITY OF MASON CITY,
PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS
CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO

Taxpayer

Mercy Medical Center - North IA
Curries Manufacturing Company
Hy-Vee Food Stores
Mason City Community School District
Principal Life Insurance Co.
Wal-Mart Stores
Good Shepherd Geriatric Center
city of Mason City
Kraft Foods
Armour Eckrich Meats, LLC

Total

Source: Mason City Economic Development Commission
Mason City Chamber of Commerce

Iowa Workforce Development

{1) Information not available

See Accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report.
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2011

Employees

2,650
673
570
502
448
373
302
292
278
260
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SCHEDULE 17

2002
Percent of
Total City
Employees (1) Rank Employment (1)}
1
3
4
B8
10

AR
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CITY OF MASON CITY,
FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT CITY EMFLOYEES BY FUNCTION

IOWA

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Public safety:
Police - sworn
Police - civilian
Fire - sworn
Fire - civilian
Building inspection
plumbing/electrical inspection

Public works:
Alrport
Street
Arborist
Engineer

Health and social services:
Youth Task Force
Health
Human Rights

culture and recreation:
Parks
Recreation
Library
Museum

Community and economic development:
Neighborhood Services
Growth Development and Planning
Transit

General government:
Administrator
Mayor
Finance
Clerk
City Hall
Personnel/Safety

Business-type activities:
Watexr
Sewer
Sanitation
Cemetery
Golf course

Total

See Accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report.

2011
48

44

Ll W
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2010 2009 2008 2007
48 48 45 48
5 2 4 10
44 44 44 44
2 2 2 2
3 3 3 3
2 1 2 2
5 5 5 5
20 22 21 21
1 1 1 1
) 7 7 5
4 5 4 4
1 1 1 1
3 3 2 2
6 &6 7 7
3 4 4 4
14 15 15 14
7 7 7 7
2 2 2 3
3 3 3 1
17 17 14 15
2 2 2 2
1% 1l 11 8
1 2 2 2
1 1 1 1
2 2 2 2
i9 18 19 22
16 16 16 17
12 11 1z 12
3 3 3 3
2 2 2 1
266 266 263 269

H



2006 2005 2004
50 47 49
9 15 12
44 44 43
1 1 1
3 3 3
2 2 2
& 5 4
21 20 20
1 1 1
7 7 6
3 3 3
1 1 1
2 2 2
7 7 7
4 4 4
14 13 13
6 5 6
3 3 1
3 4 4
14 14 17
2 2 2
- - 1
7 7 5’
3 3 3
1 1 1
2 2 2
21 22 19
17 17 16
12 12 12
3 3 3
2 2 2
277 277 274

)

NP W

N WWm=EN

2002

45
13
4

N W H R

21
17
12

L\JUJ

=]
(=)
| =%

1\
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CITY OF MASON CITY,

IOWA

OPERATING INDICATORS BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM
L.AST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Function
Police:
Physical arrests
Parking violations
Traffic violations

Fire:
Fire calls answered
Ambulance calls answered
Inspections

Highways and streets:
gtreet resurfacing (miles)
Potholez repaired

Sanitation:
Refuse collected (tons/day)
Recyclables collected {tons/day)

Culture and recreation:
Aquatic Center admissions

Water:
New cconnections
Water main breaks
Average daily consumption
{thousands of gallons)

Wastewater:
Average daily sewage treatment
{thousands of gallons)

See Accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report.

2011
2,776

4,432
5,311

793
4,057
1,690

2.68
5,400

31.94
4,84

42,179
31

17

5,300

&,810
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2010 2008 2008 2007
2,295 4,129 3,049 3,373
4,161 5,885 7,560 4,328
2,043 3,117 5,952 6,502
731 762 766 746
3,755 3,912 4,032 4,138
1,411 1,216 1,025 600
2,40 2.60 3.04 5.59
5,300 5,000 5,000 5,000
32.6 27.5 35.52 32.09
4.86 5.5 5.5 5.5
33,616 39,074 39,726 51,751
15 21 3 15

17 11 10 11
5,324 5,865 5,673 5,784
6,689 6,658 7,421 7,040



SCHEDULE 19

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
3,309 3,551 3,362 3,180 3,247
3,870 4,041 5,827 6,180 7,088
4,463 2,688 3,478 2,990 3,928

778 772 842 1,070 1,086
4,374 3,420 3la - -

373 781 673 1,087 2,004
4,22 3.41 2.71 2.24 3.93
‘5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000

31.44 32.8 33.55 31.64 31.2

5.7 5.9 5.87 5.88 5.83

54,997 58,951 42,484 75,846 25,929

10 1 8 7 7

8 i0 14 17 10
5,818 5,889 5,571 4,964 5,003
6,637 6,618 5,433 5,832 5,127
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CAPITAL ASSET STATISTICS BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM

Function
Public safety:
Police stations
Fire stations

Public works:
Street miles:
Paved
Unpaved
Street lights

culture and recreation:
Parks
Acreage
Playgrounds
Baseball/softball diamonds
Golf courses
Swimming pools
Tennis courts

Business-type activities:
Sewer miles:
Storm
Sanitary-
Cemetery:
Facilities
Acreage

See Accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report.

CITY OF MASON CITY, IOWA

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

2011

152.33
41.12
1,761

41
639
12
12
1

1

7

48.13

164 .53

100
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2010 2009 2008 2007
i 1 1 i

1 1 1 1
152.33 152.06 151.93 151.93
41.12 41.12 41.12 41,12
1,761 1,760 1,760 1,760
41 41 41 41

639 638 639 639

12 12 12 12

12 12 12 12

1 1 1 1

1 1 1 1

7 7 7 7
48.13 47.95 47.95 47.95
1l64.53 164.31 164.31 1s0.82
2 1 1 1

100 100 100 100



2006 2005 2004 2003 2002

1 1 1 1 1

1l 1 1 1 1
151.69 150.78 148,12 148.12 148.12
41,12 41.12 41 .80 41.80 41.80
1,750 1,744 1,714 1,714 1,684
47 471 41 41 40

638 639 638 639 580

12 12 12 12 12

12 12 12 12 13

1 1 1 1 1

1 1 1 1 1

7 7 7 7 7
456.91 46 .44 46.26 46.26 46.32
159.84 159.05 158.30 158.30 158.36
1 1 1 1 1

100 100 100 io00 100
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Kronlage & Olson P C

Certlﬁed PubhcAccountants | Douglas E: Kronlage CPA
LEn Johnc Olson CPA

s . REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND _. : RER T
ON COMPLIANCE "AND OTHER -MATTERS BASED ON' AN -AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RO
T PEREORHED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERMNENT AUDITING STANDARDS -

' ﬂ;To the Honorable Mayor and
- Members of - ‘the. City Counc1l
-~01ty of Mason Clty, Iowa-gm

uﬁfWe have faudlted the flnanc1a1 statements of the governmental act1v1t1es, the,j'
—Vfbu51ness type actlvltles, the dlscretely presented component unit,.. each major fund ™
V'and the aggregate remalnlng fund 1nformatlon of the City.of Mason Clty, Iowa, as of. . L
--and- ‘for’ the. year “ended.- June 30, .2011, which: collectlvely comprise -the ity of ‘Mason .-
city's basic ™ flnanc1al statements . and-. have  ‘issued out report ‘thereon ‘dated;:3f .
 January 13 '2012 We-conducted our “audit oin accordance ‘with - anditing standards - .
,ﬁgenerally accepted in ‘the- United ‘States ‘of’ Amerlca and -the’ standards appllcahle ol o
. -7 financial - audits: _contained  in - Government . Audltlng Standards 1ssued by the_-;ber-
"Tﬂ*Comptroller General of the Unlted States. Tk - SRRARREL e .

”iInternal Control Over Fananc1al Reportlng

In plannlng and performlng our audlt,' we; con51dered the Clty of
“interdal control ‘over f1nanc1al reportlng as ‘a’ basis for: de
. ‘procedures for the purpose’ of expre551ng our oplnlons on th
. ~but mnot:for the-, purpose .of expre551ng an. oplnlon on’. the e
.of Mason Clty &, internal control over flnanc1al reportln
',express an . oplnlon on-, the effectlveness of the
'control over flnanCLal reportlng o o

4—0ur conslderatlon of 1nterna1 control over fln 2 : he 1 i
purpose described:in the , preceding paragraph A ot designe idéntify all
;“deflclencles in 1nternal control over. flnancl :
_def1c1enc1es or. material weaknesses and, ther assurance that
Call def1c1enc1es,~ 51gnlflcant def1c1enc1 ial -sses . have. been . |
-.ﬂldentlfled- However,-as described in ‘th 0 ] hedule of Flndlngs “and ;)
. ‘Questioned ' Costs, .we.-identified certain 4 ternal control over .
. financial- reportlng that we ‘consider. t aknesses and an’ othéx )
'deflclency we consmder to be a srgnlflcan' B T T

gniior . operatlon of the control P
rse .of performing . their -
sstatements on. a tlmely_

of deflClenc1es, in.os
that a wmaterial-

e . prevented, ~or -

';A def1c1ency in 1nterna1 control ex1sts'
jdoes not: allow management or’: employees,
_;asslgned functions,; to prevent or -detg
~basis.. A material weakness is.a def
'.1nternal control such that there is
';mlsstatement .0f . the entity’s. ~financ
- ‘detected and, corrected -on’a t1me1y basis )
11-II-B, descrlbed in the . accompanylng chedul Fi d:iQue t;oned Costs,fj*
- to be materlal weaknesses.,-;- - PR

S A 51gn1f1cant def1c1ency is . a. def1c1en ymbd dc ncies, in o
.. dinternal control that is: less severe: than L hooo
_ to merit attention by those charged w1th
< 11-III-B,  described in" the accompanylng

,ito he a 31gn1f1cant def1c1ency :
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the city of Mascon City’s
financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, requlations, contracts and grant
agreements, non-compliance with which could have a direct and material effect on
the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an cbjective of our audit and,
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed
an instance of non-compliance or other matters that is required to be reported
under Government Auditing Standards and which is described in the accompanying
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs as item 11-ITI-B.

We noted certain matters that we reported to management of the City of Mason City,
Towa, in a separate letter dated January 13, 2012.

The City of Mason City’'s responses to the findings identified in our audit are

described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. We did not
audit the City‘s responses and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.
This report, a public record by law, is intended solely for the information and use
of the officials, management and citizens of the City of Mason City and federal
awarding agencies and pass-through entities. This report is not intended to be and
should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

We would like to acknowledge the many courtesies and assistance extended to us by
personnel of the City of Mason City, Iowa, during the course of our audit.

Roondoge- & Oboan , £. C.

January 13, 2012
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Kl‘Onla g e . & Olson , P C o |
Certlﬁed PubhcAccountants “ Douglas E Kronlage CPA

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS AEPLICAELE,‘TT
TO 'EACH MAJOR PROGRAM ‘AND INTERNAI CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE
' CIN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A- 133

'“4fTo the Honorable Mayor and .
o ‘Members .of ‘the City Councrl
'_Clty of Mason Clty, Iowa L

e ompllance

.fWe have audlted the- Compllance - of the Clty of Mason Clty w1th, the types of
.jcompllance requlrementswdescrlbed in the ‘U. S..Offlce.of Management  and: Budget'“;: -
" {OMB) "Circular A-133 Compliance’ Supplement that ‘are‘applicable to each of its major o
{federal.. programs for ‘the year ended .June’ 30, 20117 - The Clty g major  federal’ _
programs are . identified in. the summary of the. 1ndependent anditor ' s results .section i -

-+ ‘of the. aceompanylng schedule of flndlngs ‘and- questioned - costs. Compllanoe ‘with the
"]requlrements of "laws,’ regulatlons,'contracts and grants. applloable to each of its’
Tnomajor ~federal . programs ‘s the respon51b111ty “of: the Clty :of  Mason City' s]'
. management“ Our responslblllty is to express ;an . oplnlon on the Clty of ‘Mason- -

;Clty 8. compllance based .on_ oux’ audlt : Do Sl AR

okl L
R J

“We Conducted our. ‘audlt of :Compllance in . aocordance w1th ai
hgenerally accepted in the Unlted States. of Amerrcag the*s
financial . -audits: 'contalned ~in Government Audltlng ‘St
VH:Comptroller General -of -the United States, and OMB Circ
- Local, Governments,.and ‘Non-Profit . Organizations. ‘Those
~A-133 require ‘that -we plan and. perform the audlt
“about. whether noncompllance ‘with the types of Com
. o .above ‘that “‘dould “have a ‘direct’ and materlalv
'”Nf‘.“”occurred. \An audlt includes examlnlng,‘on a-
¢ - Masorn. CltY’S Compllance w1th - those .. requi ing - such’, other‘J
. ¢ ‘procedures as . we considered necessary in 't oelieve. that our
- oaudit provides a reasonable. basis for ouxr 1 T does- not. provide ‘a
*legal determlnatlon of the Clty of Mason Ci ance: w: those;reqnirements.,;-'

" the Crty ofjfﬁ

_”tlalhrespects;”with thejﬁ___
ave . a -direct -and materlal-:&“'
he year ended June 30, 2011.
disclosed ~an ‘instance Jof
‘requ1rsd to be reportedf; '
in . the accompanylng

'In our oplnlon, the Clty of Mason Clty {ale]
Vcompllance requlrements referred ‘to ~abo
- effect. onfeach of  its major federal prog am
; “However,, the results of’ ‘our, audltl
- noncompliance with these - compllance requ
.~A4n accordance with. OMB - Circular A-133. and: whi
f}Schedule of Flndlngs and Questloned Cos

-}dInternal Control Over Compllance

"-Management of the . Clty Cof Mason - Ci
maintaining effective 1nternal Contro
3‘laws,_regulatlons,‘contracts dnd: grant
cand'. performing “our  audit, .we Consldered t
.over compliance. Wwith requlrements that ¢
fma]or federal program in order to determl

- 15¢
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of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal control
over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’'s
internal control over compliance.

Our consideration of intermal control over compliance was for the limited purpose
described in the preceding paragraph and would not necessarily identify all
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be significant
deficiencies or material weaknesses and, therefore, there can be no assurance that
all deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses have been
identified. However, as discussed below, we identified a certain deficiency in
internal control over compliance that we consider to be a material weakness and an

other deficiency that we consider to be a sigmificant deficiency.

A deficlency in dintermal control over compliance exista when the deaign or
operation of a control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in
the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and
correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program
on a timely basis. A material weakness in intermal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance,
such that there ia a reasomable possibility that material noncompliance with a type
of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected
and corrected, on a timely basis. We consider the deficiency in internal control
over compliance described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned
Costs as item 11-ITI-A to be a material weakness.

A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance iz a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with govermance. We consider the deficiency in internal
control over compliance described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and
Questioned Costs as item 11-III-B to be a significant deficiency.

The City of Mason City‘s responses to the findings identified in our audit are
dezeribed in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. We did
not audit the City of Mason City’'s response and, accordingly, we express no opinion
on the responses.

This report, a public record by law, is intended solely for the information and use
of the officials, management and citizens of the City of Mason City and federal

awarding agencies and pass-through entities. This report is not intended to be and
should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Ronondsge. & Oboom , P C.

January 13, 2012
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CITY OF MASON CITY, IOWA
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Agency or
C¥DA Pags-Through
Grantor/Program Numbexr Number

DIRECT:

Department of Housing and Urban Development
Falir Housing Assistance Program - State
and Local

Contributions and Training 14.401 FF207K107002

Contributions and Training 14.401 FF207K097002

Contributions and Training 14,401 FF207K117002
Total

Department of Justice
Bullet Proof Veat Program 16.607 2008
Public Safety Partnership and Community
Policing Grants:

rops — Secure Our Schools 16.710 2009-CEK-WX-0670
Edward Byrne Justice Assistance Grant 16.738 2009-DJ-BX-0228
Edward Byrne Justice Assistance Grant 16.738 2010-DJ-BX-0807

Recovery Act - Edward Byrne Memorial
Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) Granted
to Units of Local Government 16.8B04 2009-5B-B9-1946
Recovery Act - Rssistance to Rural Law .
Enforcement to Combat Crime and Drugs

Competitive Grant Program 16.810 2010-SD-BS-0004
Total
Department of Transportation
Alrport Improvement Program 20.106 3-19-0059-28-2007
Airport Improvement Program 20.106 32-19-0055-30-2008
Airport Improvement Program 20.106 3-19-0059-31-2008
Airport Improvement Program 20.106 3-189-0059-32-2010
Airport Improvement Program 20.106 3-19-0059-34-2010
Adirport Improvement Program . 20.106 3-19-0059-35-2010
Passenger Facility Charge
Total

Department of Health and Human Services
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services -
Projects of Regional and National

Significance 93.243 5 H79 SP015490-03

Projects of Regional and National

Significance 893.243 1 H75 SP015490-02
Total

Department of Homeland Security
T.aw Enforcement OEficer Reimbursement
Agreement Program 97.090 HSTSNZ208HSLR204

Total direct

{continued)
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Program

Expenditures

4 55,191

§ 55,191
§ 1,201

11,600
1,631
11,341

7,026

36,763
5 69,562

5 -
2,837

8,683
561,273
_ 57,013
§629,806

§ 23,307

30,861
5 54,168

$ 13,208

§821,935



CITY OF MASON CITY
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Grantor/Program
INDIRECT:

Department of Housing and Urban Development:
Towa Department of Economic Development
Community Development Block Grant/
State Program
Owner Occupied Housing Rehab
100% Flood and Demolition Buyout
Disaster Recovery Infrastructure
Disaster Recovery Infrastructure
Disaster Recovery Infrastructure
Hazard Mitigation Grant Program Match
for Property Acquisition
Flood Buyout #1
Flood Buyout {2
Flood Buyout #3
Flood Buyout #4
Home Investment Partnership Frogram
Home Investment Partnership Program
Total

Department of Justice:

Governor's Office of Drug Control Policy
Public Safety Partnership and Community
Policing
Recovery Act - Edward Byrne Memorial
Justice Assistance Grant Program
Recovery Act - Edward Byrne Memorial
Justice Assistance Grant Program
Recovery Act - Edward Byrne Memorial
Justice Assistance Grant Program
Recovery Act - Edward Byrne Memorial
Justice Assistance Grant Program
Recovery Act - Edward Byrne Memorial
Justice Assistance Grant Program
Recovery Act - Edward Byrne Memorial
Justice Assistance Grant Program

Total

Towa Department of Justice
Federal Violence Against Women Formula
Grant
Federal Viclence Against Women Formula
Grant
Total
Total

Agency ox

CFDA Pass-through Program
Numbex Number Expenditures
14,228 08-HS5G-061 5 B9,294
14.228 0B-DRHB-226 6,110,701
14.228 0B-DRI-226 312,075
14,228 08-DRMI-002 84,524
14.228 08-DRMI-003 B9, 368
14.228 0B-DRMH-231 79,876
14.228 08-DRMH-232 132
14,228 08-DRMH-247 120,924
14.228 08-DRMH-237 (33,766)
14.2389 07-HM-110-68%9 22,581
14.238 10-HM-116-65 13,645

56,889,454
16.710 0B-HOTSPOTS-12 5 -
16.803 03JAG-ARRA4154B 22,899
16.803 09JAG/ARRA-249 -
16.803 09JAG/ARRA-4155B 13,485
1l6.803 09JAG/ARRA-3344B 49,423
16.803 09JAG/ARRA-270 -
16.803 09JAG/ARRA-287 -

[ 85,807
16.588 VW-10-46 5 5,586
16.588 VW-11-55 23,000

{continued)
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CITY OF MASON CITY, IOWA
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Agency or
CFDA Pass-through Brogram
Grantor/Program Number Number Expenditures
INDIRECT:

Department of Transportation:
Towa Department of Transportation
Highway Planning and Construction
ICAAP — 19°" Street Overpass 20.205 2-07-ICAAP-006 & 882
19" gtreet Overpass Approach 20.205 02-08-HDP-015 -
Federal Transit - Capital Investment Grant
Capital Assistance 20.500 04-0113-4B2-08 -
Formula Grants for Other than Urbanized Areas
Capital Assistance 20.509 18-0028-482-07 i5, 041
Operating Assigtance 20.509 1B-0025-482-11 302,184
ARRA - Capital Assistance 20.509 B86-0001-482-09 (2}
Total § 338,105

Towa Department of Public Safety
Governor's Traffic Safety Bureau
State and Community Highway Safety :
Police Traffic Services 20.600 PAP-10-02 ] 5,069
Police Traffic Services 20.600 PAP-11-02 7,533
Total ] 12,602
Total % 350,707

National Endowment for the Arts:
Towa Arts Council
Promotion of the Arts - Partnership
Agreements
Operating Support 45,025 2011-7576 5 14,400

Department of Education:
Iowa Department of Public Health
Safe and Drug Free Schools and
Communities - State Grants 84.186 5880DV0S & -
gafe and Drug Free Schools and
Communities — State Grants B4 .186 5881DV0S9 34,446
Total ] 34,446

Governor's Office of Drug Control Policy
Safe and Drug Free Schools and
Communities - National Frograms B4 .18B47Z 09-IHE-01 5] 95,546

Total § 129,892

{continued)
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CITY OF MASON CITY, IOWA
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

CFDA Agency or Program
@rantor/Program Number Pase-through Number Expenditures
INDIRECT:
Department of Homeland Security:
Towa Homeland Security and Emergency
Management Division
Disaster Grants - Fublic Assistance
(Presidentially Declared Disasters)
Small Projects 97.036 DR #1763 S 87,874
Demolition Debris Removal 97.036 DR #1763-PW-85585 263,812
Demolition Debris Removal 97.036 DR #1763-PW-10528 142,824
Demolition Debris Removal 97.036 DR #1763-PW-10528 55,170
Demolition Debris Removal 97.036 DR #1763-PW-10533 29,5186
Hazard Mitigation Grant
Flood Buyout #2 97.033 HMEP-DR-1763-0031-01 396
Flood Buyout #1 97.039 HMGP-DR-1763-0032-01 235,828
Floecd Buyout #4 97.039 HMGP-DR-1763-0037-01 274,138
Flood Buyout #3 97.039 HMGP-DR-1763-0047-01 362,772
Water Reclamation Facility 97.03% HMGP-DR-1703-0061-01 422,622
Water Distribution Flood Wall 97.039 HMGP-DR-DR-1763-0062-01 446,838
Newman Schools Safe Room 97,039 HMPG-DR-1763-0171-01 45,063
Tatal 5 2,340,953
Total indirect $ 9,839,858
Total expenditures of federal awards 510,661,834

See Accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report.
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CITY OF MASON CITY, TIOWA
SCHEDULE OFf SELECTED EXPENDITURES OF STATE AWARDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Agency or

Pass-through Program
Grantor/Program Number Expenditures
Iowa Department of Transportation:
Commercial Air Service Vertical Infrastructure
Program 10477 § 97,459
Commercial Air Service Vertical Infrastructure
Program 12288 14,483
Total Expenditures for State Awards £111,942

See Accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report.
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(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

CITY OF MASON CITY
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
JUNE 30, 2011

General

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards presents the
activity of all federal financial assistance programs of the City of Mason
city, Iowa. The City of Mason City reporting entity is defined in Note 1 to
the City's general purpose financial statements. All federal {inancial
assistance received directly £rom federal agencies as well as federal
financial asasistance passed through other government agencies is included on
the schedule.

Basis of Accounting

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented
uging the modified accrual basis of accounting, which is described in Note 2
to the City's general purpose finanecial statements.

Relationship to Gemeral Purpose Financial Statemente

Federal financial assistance revenues are reported in the City's general
purpose financial statements as follows:

Qperating Capital Loan
Grants Grants Proceeds Total
General Fund ¢1,014,527 % 1,066,385 5 - 5 2,080,912
Special Revenue Funds:
ADDI - 36,226 - 36,226
FMA - 511,866 - 511,866
Road Use Tax - 659,924 - 859,924
city Administered Grants 11,600 - - 11,600
Housing 89,293 - - BY,293
HMGF - 6,738,283 - 6,738,283
PDM-FEMA - 51,607 - 81,607
Capital Project Funds:
19%" Street SW Overpass - 818 - 918
Local Option Capital
Improvements . - 200,000 - 200,000
Enterprise Funds:
Water 56,485 602,660 - 659,145
Sewer 562,721 312,075 - B74,796

$1,734,626 §10,179,544 5 - 511,814,570

Relationship to Federal Financial Reports

Amounts reported in the accompanying schedule agree with the amounts reported
in the related federal financial reports.
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CITY OF MASON CITY, IOWA
dchedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2011

Part I: Summary of the Independent Auditors’ Results:

(a}
{b)

{c)

{d)

(e)

(£)

{g)

(1}

an unqualified opinion was issued on the fipmancial statements.

The audit did not disclose any noncompliance which is material to the
financial statements.

Two material weaknesses in internal control over major programs were
disclosed by the audit of the financial statements.

One significant deficiency in internal control over a major federal program
during the audit is reported. The deficiency is not reported as a material
weakneas.

an unqualified opinion was issued on compliance with requirements applicable
to each of the City's major programs.

The audit disclosed audit £findings that are required to be reported in
accordance with Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Section
510{a).

The programs tested as the major programs are:

e CFDA Number 14.228 - Community Development Block Grants
s CFDA Number 20.106 - Airport Improvement Program

e« CFDA Number 97.036 - Disaster Grants - Public Assistance
« CFDA Number 97.039 - Hazard Mitigation Grants

The dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs
was $300,000.

The City did not qualify as a low-risk auditee.

Part II: Findings Related to the Financial Statements

INSTANCES OF NONCOMPLIANCE:

There were no prior year or current year instances of noncompliance identified.

MATERIAL WEAKNESSES:

11-II-A Determination of Accounts and Contracts Payable - At the end of each

Fiscal vyear, finance department interns determine the accounts and
contracts payable that should be recognized in the City's financial
statements. At June 30, 2011, they recognized over 52,165,000 of
accounts and contracts payable, including approximately $20,420 {(not
material to any opinion unit) incorrectly recorded as payables.
However, they did not recognize an ddditional $144,000 (material to one
opinion unit) of mostly contracts payable at June 30, 2011.

Recommendation - This is a significant improvement over previous years.
The interns should be further instructed by their supervisor in the
requirements for an item to be recognized as a payable at the end of
the year. I would suggest that a written process be develcped for the
interns to use to determine when a payable ghould be
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CITY OF MASOM CITY, IOWA
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2011

Part II: Findings Related to the Financial Statements: {continued)

INSTANCES OF NONCOMPLIANCE:

11-II-B

Part III:

recognized in the financial statements. An alternative would be for
the interns to use a flow-chart process. In addition, the supervisor
needs to provide closer direct gupervision of the interms so that the
auditors may maintain their independence by not being so closely
involved in the initial determination of payables.

Regponse - We will be providing additiomal guidance to the interns and
investigating the development of f£low charts or materials to assist the
interns in determining the appropriate classification at year end.
These additional materials will be added to the written documents
already included as part of the intern processes.

Conclusion - Response accepted.

Financial Statement Classification and valuation - It was noted that
the City's financial statements required a significant number of
material adjusting journal entries to properly classify and value the
financial statement amounts. A gystem of internal control includes the
controls over the preparation of the financial statements.

Recommendation - There has been significant improvement in the initial
determination of the financial statement clagsifications and amounts by
the finance department interns. Additional instruction and supervision
should be given to the interns by their direct supervisor. In
addition, the finance interns’ supervisor should review their work on a
reqular basis to determine the correct classification and valuation of
amounts in the financial statements.

Response - We will be providing additional guidance and supervision to
the interns to assist with financial statement preparation, including
the proper classification and valuation

Conclusion - Response accepted.

Findings and Questioned Costs for Federal Awards:

ALL GRANTS:

11-IITI-A

See items 11-II-A and 11-II-B above.

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT:

SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCIES:

DEPARTMENT

DEPARTMENT

DEPARTMENT

OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOFMENT:
Community Development Block Grants - CFDA 14.228, Grants 08-DRMH-231,
08-DRMH-232, 08-DRMH-247, 08-DRMH-237, 08-DRHB-226.

OF HOMELAND SECURITY:

Disaster Grants - Public Assistance (Presidentially Declared Disaster)
- CFDA 97.036, QGrants DR #1763 PWS5B5, DR #1763 PW10528B, DR #1763
PW10529, DR #1763 PW1l0533.

OF HOMELAND SECURITY:
Hazard Mitigation Grant - CFDA 97.039, OGrants HMGP-DR-1763-0031-1,
HMGP-DR-1763-0032-01, HMGP-DR-1763-0037-01, HMEEP-DR-1763-0047-01,
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CITY OF MASON CITY, IOWA
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2011

Findings and Questioned Costs for Federal Awards: (continued)

Part III:

11-TII-B

Part IV:

Condition - The expenses related to the 2008 filood buyouts and
demolition are not being reconciled to the City’s general ledger prior
to a reimbursement request being prepared.

Criteria - All actual expenses related to the projects should be
reimbursed to the City through the reimbursement requests.

Effect - The City has not requested reimbursement for all reimbursable

flood related expenses.

Caugse - Due to the complexity and need for allocation of expenditures
to specific properties for reporting purposes, internal spreadsheets
have been developed to track expenses. These spreadsheets have not
been reconciled to the City’s general ledger, resulting in various
expenses not being used in the reimbursement regquests.

Context - Total items reconciled exceeded §763,000 in the grants
tested. There was an initial discrepancy in excess of $36,700. This
discrepancy was reconciled to $11,700 that was unaccounted for after
investigation. ©Of the remaining amount, &§22,800 represented expenses
that should have been included, but were not in the reimbursement
requests. The remaining amounts were ineligible costs or posted to the
wrong fund.

Recommendation - The City should emphasize the importance of recording
all appropriate expenses in the internal spreadsheet on a timely basis.

Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Action - The City
agrees with the finding and Wwill remind all those involved of the
importance of capturing all allowable costs and including them in the
appropriate reimbursement request. Tn addition, there will be a
reconciliation performed monthly between the City’s general ledger and
the internally generated spreadsheets.

Other Findings Related to Required Statutory Reporting:

11-IV-A

11-IV-B

11-IV-C

11-IV-D

Official Depositories - A resolution naming official depositories has
been adopted by the City Council.

Certified Budget - Disbursements during the year ended June 30, 2011,
did not exceed the amounts budgeted.

Questionable Digbursements - No expenditures that I believe may not
meet the requirements of public purpose as defined in an Attorney
General's opinion dated April 25, 19739 were noted.

Travel Expense - No disbursements of city money for travel expenses of
gpouses of City officials or employees were noted.
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CITY OF MASON CITY, IOWA
gchedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2011

Part IV: Other Findings Related to Required Statutory Reporting: continued

11-IV-E Business Transactions - Business transactions between the City and City
officials or empioyees are detailed as follows:

Wame, Title and ‘ Transaction
Business Connection Description Amount

Dave Hopper, River City TREES -
owner, Natural Plus Trees & landscaping 5 78

¢indy Stephenson, Communications
Utility Board - owner, Stephens
Hearing Associates Services 280

Craig MacDougall, Plumbing
Examiners Board - owner, Hank’'s
Plumbing Plumbing repairs apl

John Pappas, River City TREES -
owner, Pappas Landscaping Grounds maintenance 805

Larry Elwood, Plumbing Appeals
and Exam Board - owner, Larry
Elwood Construction Construction services 1,425

Matt Brick, Plumbing Appeals and
Exam Board - owner, Brick
Furniture Furniture 2,080

Mark Ewy, Housing Advisory and
Appeals Board - owner, Custom
Auto Body Repairs 5,188

Robin Anderson, Youth Task Force -
Executive Director, Masomn City
Chamber of Commerce Conference travel 5,411

Kevin Hardy, Environmental
Stewardship Advisory Commission -
owner, Cutting Edge Tree Service Landscaping 6,885

Kris Kramer, Enterprise Zone
Commission - manager, Kramer Ace
Hardware Supplies 7,348

Jay Leaman, Electrical Examiners
and Appeals Board - owner, The
Electricians RBlectrical services 7,812

Dennis Reidel, Library Board -

CEO & CFO, Overhead Door of
Mason City & Mid-West Roofing Construction services 9,274
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CITY OF MASON CITY, IOWA
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2011

Part IV: Other Findings Related to Required Statutory Reporting: {continued)

Name, Title and Transaction
Buginess Connection Description Amount

Daniel Moorehead, Electrical
Examiners and Appeals Board -
owner, Moorehead Electric Electrical services & 9,457

Mary Hardin, River City TREES -
owner, Blackmore Nursery Landscaping 9,696

Steve Clausen, Plumbing Appeals
and Examiners Board - owner,
Clausen Plumbing Plumbing repairs 16,656

Tom Douglas, Housing Advisory &
Appeals Board - owner, Edwards
Brandt Insurance and Realty Insurance 22,8687

Tom Hovland, Airport Commission -
ownier, Tom Hovland Enterprises Automotive supplies 23,2B0

Gary Anderson, Cable Television

Commission and Craig Skott,

Economic Development Corporation

Board - partners, Skott &

Anderson Architects Architectural services 40,040

Terry McCarthy, Human Rights
Commission, - partner, Yaggy
Colby Assoclates Engineering services 103,820

Kevin Pals, Youth Task Force,
Sheriff - Cerro Gordo County 28E Agreement 374,283

George Jessen, Zoning Board
of Adjustment - owner,
Heartland Asphalt Road construction 638,873

Fouad Daoud, Building Advisory
and Appeals Board - partner,
WHES and Co. Engineering services 960,031

gary Schmidt, Economic Development
Corporation Board - Henkel :
Construction Construction services 3,459,693

Tn accordance with Chapter 362.5(10} of the Code of Iowa, the first
Five transactions do mot appear to represent a conflict of-interest
gince the transactions were less than $1,500 during the fiscal year.

All or significant amounts of the payments to S8kott and Anderson
Architecte, Yaggy Colby Associates, WHKS and Co., Heartland Asphalt,
Cerro Gordo County Sheriff, Henkel Censtruction and Edwards Brandt and
Associates were competitively bid or reguired by 28E agreement and,
therefore, do not represent a conflict of interest. The remaining
items may represent conflicts of interest. The City should consult
legal counsel to determine the disposition of this matter,
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Part IV:

CITY OF MASON CITY, IOWA
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2011

Other Findings Related to Recuired Statutory Reporting: (continued}

11-IV-F

11-IV-G

11-IV-H

11-IV-I

11-TV-T

Response - We will do this.
Conclusion - Response accepted.

Related Party Purchase Discrepancies - city purchasing policy requires
department heads to obtain competitive bids (to include publication of
a request for bids, description of the item being sought and a public
opening and award of bids) for all anmual cumulative purchase from a
Ccity employee, official or member of a board or commission exceeding
£1,500. Department heads are not aware of this policy and are mnot
complying with the policy.

Recommendation - The policy should be reviewed to determinme if this is
the policy that the City actually wishes to enforce. The policy
requires department heads to know the extent of purchases from a
related party and would essentially require publication and taking of
bids for purchases of minimal amounts.

Response - We are presently reviewing the policy to determine the
extent of restrictions desired by the council.

Conclusion - Response accepted.

Bond Coverage - Surety bond coverage of Ccity officials and employees is
in accordance with statutory provisions. The amount of coverage should
be reviewed annually to insure that the coverage is adecquate for
current operations.

Deposits and Investments - We noted no instances of noncompliance with
the deposit and investment provisions of Chapter 12B and 12C of the
Code of Towa and the City's investment policy.

Council Minutes - No transactions were found that we believe should
have been approved in the Council minutes but were not.

Water Billing Shortages - A wmulti-year analysis of water pumped from
the water distribution center versus water billed shows that a
significant amount of water pumped is not being billed. Water may not
be billed for a number of reasons, including water used for
firefighting, line f£lushing, certain municipal processes, line leaks,
etc. An acceptable unbilled percentage of water pumped is in the 15%
range. The percentage of water billed has steadily decreased from B1%
in FYE 1996 to 71% in FYE 2004. The percentages hilled in 2005 and
2006 were 59% and 56%, respectively. These were the years when major
improvements were being made to the water distribution system. All of
the construction and testing were completed prior to the 2011 fiscal
year. During FYE 2007, 2008, 2009, 2010 and 2011, records maintained
by the water distribution supervisor and the water billing department
show that only 60%, 63%, 59%, 53% and 63% of the water pumped from the
water distribution plant was actually billed, regpectively.

Recommendation - The City should investigate the calculation of water
pumped to determine that it is being accurately measured. The City
shonld also review its billing process to determine that all customers
are being billed. Gallons of water billed have decreased approximately
19% since FY 2003, at the same time that gallons of water pumped have
increased approximately 15%.
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CITY OF MASON CITY, IOWA
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2011

Part IV: Other Findings Related to Required Statutory Reporting:

Response — We have purchased leak detectors and are
identifying leaks in the system. The capital

{continued)

in the process of
improvements plan
includes projects each of the next five years to replace leaking or old
water lines. We are also tracking City-owned facilities’ usage that is

not being billed to determine how much it affects the percentage.

Conclusion - Response accepted.
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CITY OF MASON CITY, IOWA
Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings
vear Ended June 30, 2011

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Finding 10-II-A: Determination of Accounts and Contracts Payable

Condition - Material amounts of accounts and contracts payable were not being
properly recognized.

Recommendation - Additional instructions and processes should be developed to assist
the interns in arriving at a wmaterially correct number for these items.

Current Status - Progress has been made with this process, but additional
supervision and instruction is needed to arrive at materially correct payable items.

Finding 10-II-B: Financial Statement Classification and Valuation

Condition - Material adjusting journal entries were required to properly classify
and value financial statement amounts.

Recommendation - Additional instruction and supervision of the interns by the
Director of Finance would reduce the number and amount of misstatements.

Current Status - Additional oversight was provided this year, but additional
supervision and oversight is required.

Finding 10-III-A: Financial Statement Findings

See items 10-II-A and 10-II-B above.

Finding 10-III-B: Overstated Transit System Operating Expenses

condition - Transit operating costs were erroneously overstated, resulting in a
Teimbursement that was larger than the City was entitled to receive,

Recommendation - The City should develop a gystem teo more accurately track costs
related to transit costs.

Current Status - The transit direct has developed a more comprehensive system for
tracking transit operating expenses eligible for reimbursement.

Finding 10-TII-C: Tneorrect Information was gubmitted on Federal Cash Transaction.
Report

Condition - The Federal, Cash Transaction report was filed using information frxom a
different grant. Reimbursement requests were not submitted for the grant.

Recommendation - A more - refined. process should be developed to insure that the
correct forms and expenses are submitted for reimbursement requests.

Current Status - The department has developed written processes fox submitting
timely and correct reports for each of its grants. A correct reimbursement request
was submitted for the affected grant.
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